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HEALTH CARE REFORM: HOW DO WOMEN,
CHILDREN, AND TEENS FARE?

TUESDAY, MAY 5, 1992

House OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SeLECT COMMITTEE ON CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES,
Washington, DC.

The committee met, pursuant to call, at 9:30 a.m., in room 2226,
Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Patricia Schroeder (chair-
woman of the committee) presiding.

Members present: Representatives Schroeder, Lehman, Martinez,
Evans, Durbin, Sarpalius, Peterson, Cramer, Jr., Wolf, Holloway,
Smith, Walsh, Klug, and Barrett.

Staff present: Karabelle Pizzigati, staff director; Jill Kagan,
deputy staff director; Madlyn Morreale, research assistant; Carol
Statuto, minority deputy staff director; Elizabeth Maier, profession-
al staff; and Joan Godley, committee clerk.

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. Let’s begin this morning. I want to
thank you all for coming. We are very excited on the select com-
mittee because for the first time in 20 years we see serious discus-
sions about health care going on in the United States and Con-
gress. And there are dozens of bills. There is kind of a fast bill
breeder reactor, kicking out more and more health care bills. And
we also see lots of states trying very hard to figure out what to do.

What this committee wants to do is monitor what is being done
and make sure that women, children and teens don’t get lost in the
shuffle. Very often those voices are not heard here. And we cer-
tainly don’t want to end up finding out that the Congress has
adopted something and then it is, oops, look at the oversight, we
forgot to do this.

I think that any kind of health care that we adopt, whether it is
employer-based, single-payer, or grounded in the tax system, must
be sure that we are dealing with preventive care and we are deal-
ing with families in a much fairer way.

We know the financial barriers that have been out there for
many families. We know that 12 million children and adolescents
and 9 million women of childbearing age have absolutely no health
insurance. And then you add to those numbers a significant
number of millions of people who have inadequate insurance.

So we see those in the private sector competing for more and
more overworked staff and inaccessible clinics, and states that are
squeezing their pennies very tightly. And so it becomes a very diffi-
cult problem.

M
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We also have been looking in this committee at mental health
problems and making sure that those be included, especially vis-a-
vis adolescents.

Our last hearing was very discouraging because we found that
we had for some adolescents absolutely no mental health care, ac-
tually for a large majority of them. And then for some of those who
had any health care at all, there were a few who were being
abused by the mental health care system.

So the question is how we make sure that all of those areas are
included, also incorporating help for families to care for children
who have disabilities or chronic illnesses at home. We also find it
amazing that people get locked into jobs and can’t move because of
their insurance or that they have to choose between poverty or
marital break-up to find some way to get the proper insurance for
their families. All of those seem absolutely nuts to us,

I could go on and on and on with the different things that we
have uncovered as we listen to people. But I think what we have
today here are some very good experts who have been studying it,
and we are looking forward to hearing from them. And we are
going to lead off with some families who have been feeling it and
we will have the people who felt some of the discrimination. And
then we will have some of the experts talking about what to do.

So I think it will be an interesting hearing and this record will
certainly help the select committee evaluate the different programs
this body will be taking up.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. PATRICIA SCHROEDER, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
FRrOM THE STATE OF COLORADO, AND CHAIRWOMAN, SELECT COMMITTEE ON CHIL-
DREN, YOUTH, AND FAMILIES

For the first time in 20 years, the nation has begun serious discussions about
major health care reform. While action to date has been stymied over which ap-
proach to take, there are dozens of bills in Congress improving, modifying or dis-
carding the current insurance system. Several States, despite serious financial con-
straints, are enacting their own statewide health insurance reform.

But as the debate progresses, my fear is that women, children, and especiaily

" teens will get lost in the shuffle, I am especially pleased that with this hearing, the

Select Committee begins an exploration of the special problems of women, children
and teens in gaining access to health care. The goal is to ensure that any health
care policy that moves forward—whether it is employer-based, single-payer, or
grounded in the tax system—knocks down the barriers that still keep so many from
receiving the care, especially the preventive care, they need.

Financial barriers, including lack of health insurance, are by far the most
common and significant reasons that women and children don’t get adequate care.
Twelve million children and adolescents, and nine million women of childbearing
age, have no health insurance, and millions more have inadequate insurance.

There are other barriers keeping children and families out, even when they are
trying their hardest to get the best possible care, including services that are un-
friendly and often demeaning, inaccessible clinicg with overworked staff, a critical
shortage of private primary health care providers, a crumbling public health
system, and bureaucratic hassles.

Under the current system, even families with health insurance don't get the hasic
preventive care they need, because many insurance policies won’t cover immuniza-
tions or well-child doctor visits, or even maternity care. Substance abuse treatment
or mental health services for teens are not only in short supply, but private insur-

. ance often won't cover those services either. And families struggling to care for

childen with disabilities or chronic illness at home, are often forced to choose be-
tween poverty, institutionalization, or marital break-up because of limitations in
their insurance policies.

Add to this maze the growing complexities and social ills that afflict millions of
children and teens across the nation. High infant mortality and shockingly low

i BEST CPY AUTILITIE
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childhood immunization rates warn that the system is in crisis. AIDS, violence, and
drug addiction terrorize our youth and add further stress to the current health care
system.

How do most of the current health care reform proposals in Congress address
these concerns? Is a universal insurance system alone sufficient to ensure access to
care for women and children? Do these proposals also sufficiently ameliorate or
eliminate all of the obstacles that prohibit children, teens and families from getting
the care they need?

These are among the questions the Select Committee will attempt to answer
today. I welcome the experts who have already compiled the criteria we need to
evaluate the major reform proposals under consideration by the Congress and the
states and look forward to their testimony. I especially want to welcome the families
who have confronted the system head on and been forced to retreat—and their fam-
ilies have suffered as a result. Their stories should motivate us to take immediate
action.

No one should have to endure undue hardship just to obtain medical or support
services for themselves or their children. Other nations have demonstrated that it
doesn’t have to be this way.

No pregnant woman in Europe has to ask how or where she will receive prenatal
care or who will pay for it. Immunization rates among infants in countries like Bot-
swana and Brazil far surpass what the U.S. has been able to accomplish. And, com-
pared with our friends in Europe, we fall far short of offering families in need sup-
port services such as respite care or home visiting.

We already know that the U.S. is the only industrialized nation, other than South
Africa, without a family leave policy that allows parents time off at the birth or
adoption of a child, or to care for a seriously ill child.

I welcome all of you here today and look forward to your testimony. But most of
all, I look forward to putting this information to good use in the pursuit of a health
care reform policy that really works for children and families.




HEALTH CARE REFORM:
HOW DO WOMEN, CHILDREN, AND TEENS FARE?

FACT SHEET

RISING HEALTH CARE COSTS THREATEN AMERICAN FAMILIES

e In 1991, the U.S. spent an average of $6,535 per family for health
care expenses, of which families paid two-thirds (66%), and
businesses paid the remainder. Between 1980 and 1991, average
health payments by families increased by 147%. In 1991, average
health care expenses consumed 11.7% of family income, up from
9% in 1980. By the year 2000, health care costs will consume a
projected 16.4% of average family income. (Families USA

Foundation, 1991)

During the past decade, the proportion of employers who paid
100% of the annual premium for family coverage declined from
51% to 23%. Between 1980 and 1991, the share of employer-
sponsored health insurance premiums paid by employees increased
from 18% to 23%. (Congressional Research Service, 1992,
Families USA Foundation, 1991)

MILLIONS OF CHILDREN, TEENS, AND WOMEN LEFT
UNINSURED

e In 1990, an estimated 12.2 million children and youth under 21
had no health care coverage. Almost one-third of Hispanic
children and nearly half of African-American children are not
covered by private or public health insurance compared with 17%
of white children. In 1988, one out of three poor adolescents
(ages 10-18) was not covered by Medicaid. (Employee Benefit
Research Institute [EBRI], 1992; National Black Child
Development Institute, 1991; Delgado, 1991; Office of Technology
Assessment [OTA], 1991)

e Two-thirds of children under 18 who lacked health insurance lived

in families with incomes above the Federal poverty level. In 1990,
two-thirds of uninsured children and teens under age 18 were in
families whose head of household was employed year-round and
one-fourth were in families where the head of household was
insured. Children were most likely to be uninsured if their family
head was either working in a business with fewer than 25
employees (27%) or self-employed (24%). (EBRI, 1992)



One in four women in their childbearing years has no health
insurance coverage for maternity care. In 1990, an estimated
433,000 women who delivered babies had no health insurance.
(Institute of Medicine [IOM], 1988; National Commission on
Children, 1991) '

CURRENT HEALTH CARE/INSURANCE SYSTEM FAILS TO

PROTECT CHILDREN AND TEENS

In 1991, only 43% of children had been adequately immunized
against childhood diseases by age two, according to a survey of
children in nine cities. In 1989, only 45% of employment-based,
conventional health insurance plans and 62% of preferred provider
organizations provided coverage for basic childhood vaccinations.
(Cutts, et al. 1992; National Vaccine Advisory Committee, 1991)

Only one in five children who need mental health treatment and
less than one in eight adolescents who need alcohol or other drug
abuse treatment receive it. Private insurance plans are more likely
to limit coverage for mental health and substance abuse treatment
than other physical health problems; a recent survey of corporate
benefit decision makers found that more than half predicted
restricting or excluding dependent coverage for mental health and
drug abuse treatment services. (U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, 1990; National Association of State Alcohol and
Drug Abuse Directors, 1990; OTA, 1991)

CHILDREN AND YOUTH WITH DISABILITIES AND THEIR

FAMILIES FACE SPECIAL HARDSHIP

In 1988, nearly 20 million children under age 18 were reported to
have one or more chronic illnesses. GOf this population, an
estimated one million children had severe chronic illnesses, and
accounted for 19% of physician contacts and 33% of hospital days
related to chronic illness. Two-thirds of disabled children have
private health insurance, but only three of every five disabled
children living in poverty are covered by Medicaid. Overali, nearly
one half million disabled children are without any form of health
insurance. (Newacheck and Taylor, 1992; Newacheck, 1990)

Despite the fact that youth with disabilities make almost three
times more physician visits annually, and spend 6 to 9 times as
many days hospitalized as their nondisabled peers, one of every
five disabled young adults (ages 19-24), and one of every seven




disabled adolescents (ages 10-18), are uninsured. (Newacheck,
1989; McManus, Newacheck, and Greaney, 1990)

Children with disabilities are often unable to qualify for private
coverage due to pre-existing condition exclusions and waiting
periods used by a growing number of employers. In a study of
713 children with chronic illness, 10% of parents had health
insurance which excluded coverage for some or all of the child’s
care and 20% had medical debts. Half of the children failed to
receive preventive or habilitative care. (Maternal and Child
Health Policy Research Center, 1992; Birnbaum, Guyot, and
Cohen, 1989)

In a survey of parents of disabled children, 54% reported
dissatisfaction with their medical insurance and 40% reported
significant aspects of home care were not covered. Cost savings
to Federal, state, and local government resulting from a
transition to home care from a hospital or long-term care setting
range from $100,000 to $170,000 per child annually. (Human
Services Research Institute, 1989; McGauley, 1989)

MILLIONS OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES LACK ACCESS TO

BASIC HEALTH CARE

In 1990, 43 million Americans lacked access to primary health
services due to their economic situation, health status, or
geographic proximity to primary care providers. More than
three-fourths (78%) of the medically underserved reside in urban
areas. However, rural counties were 2.8 times more likely than
urban counties to be medically underserved.  (National
Association of Community Health Centers, 1992)

Seven million children do not receive routine medical care.
Children from low-income families are less likely than oth:r
children to receive physical examinations, vision testing,
immunizations, and dental care. (National Association of
Children’s Hospitals and Related Institutions, 1989; Newacheck
and Halfon, 1988)

Adolescents ages 10-18 are less likely to utilize private office-
based primary carec physicians than any other age group,
averaging 1.6 visits per person per year. White adolescents made
89.2% of all visits to private office-based physicians, compared
with 8.7% by African-American youth and 7.3% by adolescents
of Hispanic ethnicity. (OTA, 1991)

il




UNINSURED RECEIVE LESS HEALTH CARE AND ARE LESS

HEALTHY

Babies whose parents have no health insurance are 30% wmore
likely to die or be seriously ill at birth, according to a study of
more than 100,000 births in the San Francisco Bay area. Among
nearly 30,000 sick newborns treated in California hospitals, those
without health insurance were discharged from the hospital 2.5
days soomner than insured infants, and received services that cost
28% less. (Braveman, 1989; Braveman, et al., 1991)

A 1989 survey of 1,066 Massachusetts households found that
uninsured children and teens (under age 18) made 50% fewer
physician visits per year and were more than 50% less likely to be
hospitalized than children who were insured. One in ten residents
who lacked health insurance reported not obtaining medical care
due to financial reasons, compared with 1% of those with
insurance. (Blendon, et al. 1992)

In 1989, one-fourth of babies born had mothers who did not
obtain prenatal care in the critical first trimester. Two-thirds of
women without health insurance do not begin prenatal care in the
first trimester, compared with one-fifth of privately insured women.
(National Center for Health Statistics, 1991; American Academy
of Pediatrics, 1989)

The uninsured are 33% more likely to be in fair or poor health
and nearly twice as likely as those with health insurance to lack
a regular source of health care. Uninsured persons also have 27%
fewer ambulatory visits and a slightly higher rate of medical
emergencies. (Freeman and Biendon, 1987; Robert Wood Johnson
Foundation, 1987)

HEALTH CARE PROVIDER SHORTAGE LIMITS HEAL:H CARE

ACCESS

Over the past decade, the number of communities facing severe
shortages of primary health care practitioners has remained
unchanged. More than 33 million Americans live in areas
designated by the Federal government as health professional
shortage areas. (Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, 1992)

Between 1978 and 1989, the percentage of pediatricians who
accepted Medicaid patients decreased from 85% to 77%. Nearly
40% of pediatricians who accepted any Medicaid patients during




1989 reported limiting their access to care, an increase of 52%
since 1978. (Yudkowsky, et al., 1990)

The majority of adolescents receive their medical care from
providers who have not received subspecialty training in adolescent
healith. There are estimated to be only one adolescent medicine
specialist for every 20,500 adolescents and one adolescent
psychiatrist for every 5,000 adolescents. (OTA, 1991)

In 1988, nearly two-thirds (62%) of rural counties reported having
no obstetrician and a slightly greater number reported having no
pediatrician. (Center on Budget and Policy Priorities, 1991)

NUMEROUS OTHER BARRIERS TO HEALTH CARE IMPEDE
ACCESS FOR CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

When insurance status and financial factors are held constant and
services are accessible, differences between poor and nonpoor
families’ utilization of health care almost disappear. (Klerman,
1991)

Among women who received inadequate prenatal care,
transportation difficulties were cited by 23% as a barrier to care,
while 22% cited fear of doctors, 16% cited lack of child care, 10%
reported cultural biases against male providers, and 7% cited
inability to arrange time off work. (General Accounting Office,
1987)

Nonfinancial and nonlegal barriers to health care for adolescents
include lack of availability and willingness of physicians to treat
adolescents, inconsistencies between adolescents’ perceived needs
and the care provided by physicians, adolescents’ concerns about
confidentiality, and physicians’ and other health care providers’
lack of competence to identify and treat the health problems of
teens. (OTA, 1991)
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Chairwoman ScHrOEDER. I want to welcome the very esteemed
member from Florida, who keeps thinking he is going to retire but
we are not going to let him, who has been here and has worked
very hard in the area of children, youth and families all along.

Congressman Lehman, do you have anything you would like to
add this morning?

Mr. LEamaN. Thank you, Madam Chair. This morning on TV
there was a doctor on the Today Show and he talked about the best
thing to do for health care is to eliminate smoking cigarettes. And
unfortunately, there are many more women, especially low and
middle income women, who are increasing the use of cigarettes.
And I think we ought to do something about the danger.

The doctor on TV today said it is the leading cause of heart prob-
lems. And I think the fact that they are advertised now in media
that deal directly with low and middle income women and they,
they want to expand that market, which is the worst thing you can
do for health care. And I think we reailly have a problem with chil-
dren and women and teens, and I am here on behalf of the old men
too.

Chairwoman ScHRoEDER. Well, we want to include everybody. So
that is great.

We have two families that were to testify this morning. I don’t
think the Weavers are here yet. Is that correct? But if they do, we
will just call them up to the table when they come.

The other parent and child that have come are Kathleen Ren-

shaw and her daughter, Marisa. So we are very, very happy to
have them come.

So if you would like to come up to the table, we welcome you. We
have a place for both of you, Marisa. There you go. We welcome
you both. And we will put your full statement in the record.

You can summarize, do whatever you want. The floor is yours.
And we appreciate very much your coming forward to explain
what the health care system has done to you.

STATEMENT OF KATHLEEN RENSHAW, ACCOMPANIED BY
MARISA HARVEY, ENCINITAS, CA

Mrs. RENsuAw. Thank you, Chairwoman Schroeder and members
of the committee, for holding this hearing to elevate the health in-
surance crisis as it affects children throughout the United States.

My name is Kathleen Renshaw. My husband and I live in Encini-
tas with our daughters, Marisa, eight, and Kirsten, four.

My children were planned and born into an insured, loving envi-
ronment. In 1986, when we discovered that Marisa had a blocked
kidney, we went through a range of emotions that only someone
that has been throdgh it could understand.

The one thing that gave us peace of mind was that we thought
we were insured and that would enable her the best health care
ab;'ailable. Little did we realize the true crisis that was about to

gin.

I had prided myself on being an educated consumer and I did
considerable groundwork to ensure that we were insured under a
group plan rather than an individual plan.
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After thorough investigation, we purchased what was presented
to us to be a group insurance plan through my university, UCSD.
The alumni association endorsed and backed a group plan carried
by Fireman’s Fund.

Over a period of seven years, however, the insurance carriers
changed four times and we learned at the worst possible time that
thils, was an artificial group, established for marketing purposes
only.

Shortly after Mar:sa’s surgery we were informed by Central Life,
then the current insurer, that our group plan was being segregated
into two groups and we would be given an option to apply to the
new group at a significantly lower rate. Being suspicious, yet want-
ing to minimize our financial costs, we applied and were rejected
because of our claims history.

Subsequently, our annual premiums doubled from $3,500 to
$7,000 annually. At that point in time we dropped my husband
from the insurance policy to reduce our costs. Within three
months, though, the insurance company raised our premiums back
up to $7,000.

At the end of the year we took an assessment. Our insurance
premiums had been increased 130 percent that year. The following
year we received another 90 percent increase, and it kept going on.
We applied to other companies and were rejected each time.

In 1990, when our insurance policies reached $16,000 with a $500
deductible on myself and the two girls, we had to drop. I have since
learned that this is a common tactic employed by insurers to divide
and dump undesirable risks.

Insurers segregate the high risk policyholders into a group tar-
geted for massive premium increases, placing this group into a
death spiral.

When families such as ours are priced out of their policies and
forced to let the policies lapse, the insurer conveniently goes to the
state department of insurance for rubber-stamped authorization to
cancel the entire group due to high lapse rate.

At this point in time I was taking graduate courses in college
toward a marriage and family counselor.

As a result of our uninsured status, however, it became neces-
sary for me to reassess my career goals and move toward the teach-
ing profession, which historically has had good benefits which
offset some of the lower pay.

I am presently a part time guidance counselor in a kindergarten
through third grade school, contracted for part time work because
the budget does not allow for full time. As a part timer, I receive
no benefits and I am waiting presently for a full time teaching po-
sition to open. .

We live in fear of an unforeseen illness or accident that could
bring us to poverty. Presently, Marisa qualifies for catastrophic
coverage for kidney-related illness only through California Chil-
dren’s Services.

However, the means testing to qualify limits family income to
$40,000 annually. Because of this, my husband has had to turn
down jobs in order to limit our income and make us eligible for this
program. Marisa is not covered for any other illness or accident
that might happen.
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After an exhaustive search, I was successful in getting an indi-
vidual policy for my four year old daughter, Kirsten. Unfortunate-
1y, théeg' also, because of our history, fine-tooth combed her medical
records.

At the time she was two years old, and had had two colds. So
they permanently excluded her sinuses. She also had been to an
eye doctor once because I thought her eyes were crossing when she
was a baby. Her eyes are fine. But they permanently excluded her
eyes.

Today Marisa’s world is happily filled with kittens, school and
budding friendships. She is bright, full of hope and hopes to be a
writer when she grows up. True, children’s dreams do change as
they get older. But under the present conditions, she will be rel-
egated to working, indentured to a job, any job that will offer her
benefits.

My husband, Bill, and I face the necessity of separating in order
to qualify for a single income for CCS for Marisa.

Both of us forego medical treatment in order to pay for the girls.
I have put off having a baseline mammogram in fear that some-
thing might happen and I will have a pre-existing condition and
will not qualify when I first start to get benefits.

The situation has impacted us financially but has also torn
deeply at the integrity and security of our family.

Next year, when both of our incomes are taken into account,
Marisa will no longer qualify for CCS and we will have to possibly
dissolve our family unit in order to access health care.

When children with pre-existing conditions reach the age of 18 or
21 and they no longer qualify for dependent coverage or state as-
sisted programs, they fall into a black hole and are abandoned
under the present system. They become part of the underclass of
uninsurables. They face an additional volley of discrimination by
employers.

If ail avenues of private insurance remain closed for them, they
can apply to wait-listed, state funded programs such as the major
medical risk program in California or one of its counterparts in at
least 25 other states. The problems with these are long waiting
lists, a year’s exclusion for pre-existing conditions, and higher pre-
miums for less coverage.

The only other alternative, should catastrophic illness fall, is to
depend on their families and friends to hold fund raising events in
their behalf,

The ballooning presence of state funded insurance programs and
fund raising efforts by disability groups and families speaks to the
massive cost shifting created by the insurance industry’s increasing
practice of insuring only the healthy.

We live in a less than perfect world. Yet insurance companies
will only accept perfection. People should not be punished or made
to wear a scarlet R for risk.

Historically, America has espoused the family unit as the funda-
mental thread that shapes our lives and strengthens our values.
Politicians often use the phrase, the children are our future. But
where is their future without the basic right to medical care? To
my family and millions of others, this is merely empty promises.
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As long as we continue to exist in a political climate where state
and federal legislatures and state insurance regulators choose to
ignore insurance practices which discriminate against innocent
children, the integrity of the American family looms at risk.

Two years ago I felt I had nowhere to turn. My alumni associa-
tion would not return my phone calis. My local representatives had
sympathetic ears. Doctors had sympathetic ears. But no one was
there to help.

Today, I feel this may be changing due to the grass roots reform
efforts such as VOICE, Victims of Insurance Company Errors, with
whom I am working in California, and people such as the Repre-
sentatives on this committee.

I sincerely hope that my testimony today and that of others will
serve as a catalyst for legislation creating universal affordable
:}alcce(is: to health care for all children. Qur future rests in your

ands.

[Prepared statement of Kathleen Renshaw follows:]

q ™
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PREPARED STATEMENT oF KATHLEEN RENSHAW, PARENT, ENcCINITAS, CA

Thank you, Congresswoman Schroeder and members of the
Committee for holding this hearing to elevate the health
insurance crisis as it affects children throughout the United
States.

My name is Kathleen Renshaw. My husband and I live in
Encinitas, California with our two young daughters, Marisa,
eight, and Kirsten, who is four. My children were planned.
and born into an insured, loving environment. In 1986, when
my eldest daughter Marisa was three, she was operated on for
a blocked kidney. One can hardly find the words to describe
the range of emotions a parent goes through when something of
that magnitude happens to their child. The conly thing that
allowed us some peace of mind was that we had good health
céQerage which enabled her the best care available. Little
did we realize that the true crisis was yet to begin.

I had prided myself on being an educated and prudent
consumer, and did considerable groundwork to ensure that we
would be covered under a group plan, not an individual
policy. After thorough investigation, we purchased what was
presented to us to be a group insurance plan, through my alma
mater, the University of California at San Diego (UCSD). The
UCSD Alumni Association endorsed and backed a group plan
carried by Fireman's Fund. Over a period of seven years,
however, the insurance carriers changed four times and we
learned at the worst possible time that this was an

artificial "group", established for marketing purposes only.
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Shortly after Marisa’s kidney surgery, we were informed
by Central Life, then the current group insurance carrier,
that our group plan was being split into two groups and we
would be given an option to apply to the new group -- one
that offered significantly lower rates. Being suspicious,
yet wanting to minimize our increasing insurance costs, we
applied for coverage under the new plan, and were summarily
rejected. Subsequently, our annual premiums doubled from
$3,500 to $7,000 annually and we were forced to drop my
husband Bill from the policy. Although this temporarily
decreased our annual premium, within three months, the
insurer brought the annual premium back up to nearly $7,000.
At the end of the year we took an assessmpent. Qur premiumms
had been increased 130% in one year. The following year we
received yet another extraordinary increase of 90X. By mid-~
1990, the premiums for myself and my two daughters had
spiralled to $16,000. With our annual insurance premiums far
outstripping our annual home mortage payments, we were forced
to abandon the policy. Our only other choice would h&ave been
to sell our home.

I have since learned that this is a common tactic
employed by insurers to "divide and dump” undesirable risks.
Insurers segregate the high-~risk policyholders into a group
targeted for massive premium increases, placing this group
into & "death spiral”. When families such as ours dre priced
out of their policies and forced to let the policies lapse,

the insurer conveniently goes to the State Department of
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Insurance for rubber-gtamped authorization to cancel the
entire group due to the high lapse rate.
At this point in time, I was in graduate school working

toward a career as a marriage and family counsellor. As a

result of our uninsured status, however, it became necessary

for me to reassess my career plans and move toward the
teaching profession, primarily for the insurance benefits
offered through the school systems.

We now live in fear that an unforeseen illness or
accident could bring us to impoverishment. Presently, Marisa
gqualifies for catastrophic coverage for kidney-related
illness only, through California Children Services (CCS}.
However, the means testing to qualify limits family income to
under $40,000 annually. Because of this, my husband has had
to turn down jobs, in order to limit our income and retain
Marisa’s eligibility under the CCS program. Marisa is
uninsured and virtually uninsurable for any other health
problems which may occur.

After an exhaustive search, I was successful in
procuring coverage for Kirsten with an annual premium of $500
and a $1,000 deductible. Her application was sceured for
exclusions. Because she had had two colds for which she was
treated and one doctor’s visit to an eye doctor, her policy
has a rider excluding all coverage for sinus problems and

anything related to her eyes.
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Today, Marisa's world is happily filled with kittens,
school activities and budding friendships. She is bright,
full of hope and has set her sights on a career as a writer.
True, children’s dreams change as they grow, but Marisa must
wake up now to the reality that under our present system, her
career choices will be indentured to procuring a Jjob, any
job, which offers insurance benefits.

My husband Bill and I may face the necessity of filing
for a legal separation in order that I might continue to
qualify under a single income for CCS for Marisa. Our
situation has not only impacted us financially, but has torn
deeply ;t our integrity and psychological security as a
family. We foresee the day when Marisa will no longer
qualify for CCS and we will have to legally separate or
dissolve our family unit in order to access health care for
her.

When children with & serious blemish on their medical
history reach the age of eighteen or twenty-one and no longer
qualify for dependent coverage or state-assisted programs,
they fall into a blackhole and are abandoned, under the
present system of private insurance. They become part of an
"underclass” of uninsurables, and are subjected to an
additional volley of discrimination by prospective
employers. If all avenues of private insurance remai? closed
to them, they can apply to wait-listed and state-funded

programs such as the Major Risk Medical Insurance Program in

Q
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California, or one of its counterparts in at least twenty-
five other states. Their only other alternative, should
catastrophic illness or injury befall them, is to depend on
their families and friends to hold fund-raising events in
their behalf. The ballooning presence of state-funded
insurance programs and fund raising efforts by families and
disability organizations speaks to the massive cost-shifting
created by the insurance industry’s increasing practice of
insuring only the healthy. We live in a less than perfect
world, yet insurance companies will accept only perfection.
Something needs to be changed!

Historically, America has espoused the family unit as
the fundamental thread which shapes our lives and strengthens
our values. Politicians often use the phrase "the children
are our future", but where is their future without the basic
right to medical care? To my family and millions of others,
this is merely an empty platitude. As long as we continue to
exist in a political climate where state/federal legislators
and state insurance regulators choose to ignore insurance
practices which discriminate against innocent children,; the
-integrity of the American family looms at risk.

Two years ago, I felt I had nowhere to turn. This is
now changing, due to the grassroots reform efforts of such

organizations as VOICE (Victims of Insurance Company Errors),

with whom I am working in California, and through efforts
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such as those of this Committee. I sincerely hope that my

testimony today and that of others will serve as a catalyst
for federal legislation creating universal access to health

care for all children and families in the United States.
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Chairwoman ScHrOEDER. Thank you very, very much. Marisa,
did you have anything you wanted to add? Well, we are very happy
to have you here accompanying Mom.

Are these the Weavers? Did you make it? Why don’t you come
up and sit down at the table. We welcome you. This is not an easy
place to find. And we will put your statement in the record. And if
you would like to proceed and summmarize or whatever, we would be
happy to hear your testimony.

STATEMENT OF JOAN AND MIKE WEAVER, ACCOMPANIED BY
STEVEN WEAVER, LORTON, VA

Mr. WeAVER. Yes, ma’am. I was told that my statement would be
here typed somewhere. I don’t have it.

Chairwoman SCHRroEDER. Oh, okay. There it is. Thank you.

Mr. WeavEeR. Our son, Steven, was diagnosed as having juvenile
diabetes around November of 1985. And we were lucky enough at
that time to have medical coverage for Steve through my wife’s
employment.

About two years later my wife’s company’s contract expired,
causing us to lose our hospital coverage. This happened yearly, and
we worried about the continuation of our son’s coverage.

I was about to get coverage at my employment, which v.as Sears
Roebuck, Incorporated at that time. Unfortunately, we were told
that because Steven had a pre-existing condition he would have to
wait one year before his coverage would begin. I was assured by
company officials that after one year there would be no problem
covering him.

After one year we were told that first Steve would need to be
proven to be completely under control medically. By this time,
Steven had begun puberty, making controlling his disease nearly
impossible.

Sears refused to insure Steve, although the company HMO,
Kaiser, agreed to cover him completely. We had no choice but to go
without coverage for Steven.

Steve has been without coverage now for about five years, cost-
ing our family at least $20,000 in out-of-pocket expenses. And that
is a very low estimate. This has all but completely ruled out any
hope of our dream of ever buying our own home, among many
other necessities of life for our other three children, least impor-
tant ourselves.

Our monthly dollar output for Steven’s medical condition is
about $300 to $500, and I believe that is also very low. This will
continue for years to come.

I have since changed companies with hopes of getting coverage
for Steve. I have taken a large cut in salary while working many,
many more hours, because Montgomery Ward has told me that
they would cover Steve. We also have a 90 day waiting period. We
are just keeping our fingers crossed that we won’t be disappointed
once again. And we really don’t have any way of knowing. We just
really are keeping our fingers crossed.

[Prepared statement of Joan and Mike Weaver follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF JOAN AND MIKE WEAVER, LORTON, VA

Chairwoman Schroeder and Members of the Select Committee,

Our son. Steven, was diagnosed as having Juvenile Diabetes around November
of 1985. We were Jucky enough at that time to have medical coverage for Steven

through my wife’s employment.

About two years later, my wife's company’s contract expired causing us to lose
y y Xp! 4

our hospital coverage. This happened yearly, and we worried about the continuation of

our son’s coverage.

1 was about to get coverage at my employment, which is Sears & Roebuck, Inc..

Unfortunately, we were told that because Steven had a pre-existing condition, he would

have to wait one year before his coverage would begin. [ was assured by company

officials that after one year, there would be no problem covering him.

After one year, we were told that first Steve would need to be proven to be

completely under control medically. By this time. Steven had begun puberty, making
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controlling his disease nearly impossible.

Sears refused to insure Steve, although the company HMO (Kaiser) agreed to

cover him completely.

We had no choice but to go without coverage for Steven.

Steven has been without coverage now for about five years, costing our family at

least $20,000 in out-of-pocket expenses. This has all but completely ruled out any hope

of our dream of buying our own home, among many other necessities of life for our

four children, least important ourselves.

Our monthly dollar output for Steven’s medical condition is around $300 to

$500. This will continue for years to come.

I've since changed companies with hopes of getting coverage for Steve. I've
taken a large cut in salary while working many more hours because Montgomery Ward
has told me they would cover Steve. We also have a ninety day waiting period. We
are keeping our fingers crossed that we will not be disappointed once again.

Signed,

Mike Weaver
May 2, 1992
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Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Well, we thank you very much. Mrs.
Weaver, did you want to add anything?

Mrs. WEAVER. That basically says it all.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. And Steve, you came, too. Good. Well,
we are glad to have you all here.

Well, let me see if others have questions. Congressman Lehman,
do you have any questions? ,

Mr. LeHMAN. Just a brief one. I have a friend, a highly skilled
medical technician. The company she worked for went out of busi-
ness. And she is now in remission from cancer and she cannot get
another job because the employers do not want to hire anybody
with what they consider a medical risk because of the adverse
affect on their insurance rates.

Now they can’t discriminate in employment because of race or
sex, or handicap, but there is discrimination because of past heaith
problems. Have any of you run into those problems about job dis-
crimination?

Mr. WEAVER. Not as yet, I haven’t, no.

Mrs. RExsHAW. I try not to talk about our background in hopes
that we won’t ke discriminated against.

Mr. LeaMan. I only know cf this one case but it seems to be a
subtle pattern. And I think we _hould look into the job discrimina-
tion because of past medical history, even if you are in remission.

Mr. WrAvVER. Yes. I just wanted to say that I was very happy at
Sears and Roebuck. I was doing very well.

Mr. LEHMAN. But you moved to Montgomery Ward?

Mr. WEAVER. Sir?

Mr. LEHMAN. You moved to Montgomery Ward?

Mr. WEAVER. Yes, sir. Only because of the health.

Mr. LEramaN. Because of health care.

Mr. WEAVER. Because of health, and we don’t even know if that
is true or not. But I was enjoying my job. There was a big future
involved in that job at Sears. But the only reason I changes was to
get coverage for Steve.

Mr. LeaMaN. If you were a single individual with health care
problems, you might have had trouble switching.

Mr. WeAVER. Yes, sir. That is true.

Mr. LeamaN. Thank you very much.

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. Thank you. Congressman Peterson.

Mr. PETERSON. One of the questions that came to mind. The com-
pany changed its policy four times in a very short time. Was it a
small company? And was that at all attached to your circum-
stance? Was it a method of avoidance, if you will, because of the
involvement that you had?

Mrs. REnNsHAW. I am not really sure. We are just now discovering
that this has happened to other people, through the University of
California Berkeley Alumni Association. We are just now uncover-
ing that it may have happened with all the university alumni asso-
ciations. And they are all managed by Association Consultants in
Chicago.

So I am not quite sure, you know, whether that is why they
changed or whether it is completely done for financial reasons.

Mr. PerERsON. It seems to me, Madam Chair, that the right or
the transfer of insurance companies is becoming more wide-

Q'
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spread than the process. In other words, the instability of all com-
panies may be a factor here that maybe we should consider. But I
appreciate the opportunity to be with you.

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. Thank you. Congressman Klug.

Mr. KrLuG. Thanks for coming and for making the trip. We all
know what Washington traffic can be like. So my sympathies. And
to the Renshaws.

If you could give me a sense—and I know this is in some ways
very difficult for you to pin down, but if you would prefer to see
some kind of arrangement set up where private insurance compa-
nies still stayed in business and we created kind of pools to help
folks who are either uninsured or have the problems like you do, or
whether you would like to see the government run the entire
system. Just what is your general feelings on that?

Mr. WEeaveR. I think realistically your first suggestion, in my
opinion, would probably be the best, because I don’t like all the in-
volvement of government in my life anyway, really.

We were willing to pay whatever reasonably we could for the
hospitalization for Steve, you know. And we still are, which I think
is the idea in the pool. And I really don’t want anyone—you know,
we weren’t asking for anything free. We just want the opportunity.
We were told that we couldn’t get him individual hospitalization,
that we would have to get it for the whole family at about three to
four times the cost of what I was getting it through my company.
Eut you know, like I said, we are very willing to pay for it, you

now.

Mr. KLUG. That is fine. I understand perfectly. Mrs. Renshaw.

Mrs. RENsHAw. At this point in time I am probably open to any-
thing that would work for us and anything that would access us. I
know that there are benefits to having private insurance.

The thing that I am afraid of, because of our experience, is that
there is not enough regulation, there is not enough accountability,
toward the insurance companies, making them open up their books
and tell why they are increasing costs. There is not enough regula-
tion to stop rejection and discrimination: at this point.

I don’t think complete change comes overnight. People like to go
with what they know. But at this point there is so much profit for
insurance companies that they are looking only at that rather than
helping people out.

We are willing to pay. That is not, you know, the problem at all.
But it has to be contained to something that is affordable, without
pre-existing discrimination.

Mr. KrLug. Thank you both.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Congressman Smith.

Mr. SmrtH. Thank you, Madam Chair. I too thank you all for ap-
pearing here today. And I know it is not easy to come before the
public and tell a story that is sometimes embarrassing.

But I think it is interesting, to tell you the truth, that both of
you all are in a situation that is not necessarily being addressed by
this select committee today.

In the case of Mrs. Renshaw, you actually had insurance and
your justified criticism was that the insurance rates kept going up.
It wasn’t that you couldn’t get insurance. It was about the fact that
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the insurance rates skyrocketed and forced you to have to drop it.
Isn’t that the case? :

Mrs. RENsHAW. Yes. But now we can't get insurance.

Mr. Smrre. Now you can’t get it at all.

Mrs. RENsHAW. Right.

Mr. SMmrta. But you had it at least at one point.

Mrs. RENsHAW. Right.

Mr. SmrtH. And the rates, in effect, put you out of the market.

Mrs. RENsHAW. Right.

Mr. SmrtH. And I think that the complaint there may well be
with the insurance companies and with their way of doing busi-
ness, more than with the fact that you couldn’t get it to begin with.

And in the case of Mr. Weaver, here you have an example of a
company policy, Sears Roebuck, that prevented you from getting
the adequate insurance you needed, whereas now you have a differ-
ent company, Montgomery Ward, and it looks like they do have a
different policy that might enable you tc get the insurance that
you want to obtain.

So it is not a situation in either of your cases where you couldn’t
get it. It is a case of where you had it and lost it because of a com-
pany policy or insurance rates, it was some outside factor I think
that put you in sort of an adverse kind of situation. And I think
that ought to be clarified for the sake of the committee, because I
think in many of these instances it is an individual company’s
policy, with the difference between a Sears Roebuck and a Mont-
gomery Ward, perhaps.

Or in the case of Mrs. Renshaw it is an insurance decision to in-
crease rates and have a very small pool of perhaps high risk people
that has put you in the position you are in. And if that risk was
spread among a larger number of people, your insurance rates
wouldn’t have gone up so much and you might well have been able
to continue to have that insurance.

And so in both of your cases, you are not the typical kind of situ-
ation that we are talking about, about so many people—you know,
35 million people who don’t have insurance. There are a lot of rea-
sons why people don’t have insurance and it is not always the fault
of the government or the fault of the system. It may well be the
fault—Mr. Weaver, you are agreeing—of the company itself and
their policies, for example. It doesn’t excuse the situation but I
think it does put it in perspective.

As far as what the remedy is, which is what we are trying to get
to, there are all kinds of alternatives. It is not just a universal
health system. That is certainly one option. Whether or not that
would result in even higher costs and perhaps less health care is
an open debate among many Members of Congress.

We might need to provide certain economic incentives. We might
need to provide certain deductions to individuals who are in your
position, that you might be able to deduct much of those premiums
from your income tax, for example. We might provide economic in-
centives for companies to give you all the kind of coverage that you
need. So there are a number of options that I think Congress can
consider.

One thing I wanted to check with you all about. Mr. Weaver, I
think you have already answered the question. You sort of faver

Qv
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getting government out of the picture and perhaps going to the pri-
vate sector and providing them with certain incentives to provide
the kind of coverage that you want.

Mrs. Renshaw, you mentioned you didn’t care where the solution
came from as long as there was a solution.

Mrs. Rensaaw. Well, I do care. It is just that at this point walk-
ing outside of the system, being locked out of medical care and
medical access, we are at the point where any help would be a step
in the right direction.

Mr. SmitH. Right. In other words, you are willing to pay insur-
ance but it just has to be reasonable and accessible is your point.

Mrs. RensHAW. Yes. And she must not face employer discrimina-
tion in the future, because right now small businesses are rated on
the health of their employees.

Mr. SmitH. Right. I missed the first part of your testimony. Have
you ever worked? Or were you employed at one time?

Mrs. ReEnssaw. I was self employed as a photographer years ago
and then I went back to graduate school towards a degree in mar-
riage and family counseling. That was what I wanted to do. I would
have been self employed, which my husband is, and 1 saw the
many pitfalls of being self employed. So I reassessed and changed
my educational direction to go towards the teaching profession,
which would lower my income. It is very rewarding, though, and
the benefits historically have been there.

Mr. SmrtH. Right.

Mrs. RENsHAW. So, job changing was all to do with our health
situation.

Mr. SmrtH. As I understand, Mrs. Renshaw, a lot of the problem
is with self employed individuals who can't get the insurance cover-
age that they need. And maybe that is an area where, you know, if
you provide certain deductions or certain economic incentives, then
they will have a reason to go out and get insurance and be able to
be covered.

Mrs. RensHaw. Yes. The other thing I wanted to say is, every
day I deal with children who come from broken families and other
unfortunate situations, and I see many of them locked out because
they have lost the primary provider. They are locked out of the in-
surance system. Also, if they hadn’t had insurance before, and
have the smallest pre-existing condition, the insurance companies
redline them for anything to do with that condition—you know,
just like my daughter Kirsten, sinuses for a cold, eyes for going to
an eye doctor.

Mr. SmitH. Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.

Chairwoman ScHroeper. Thank you. Congressman Barrett.

Mr. BarRrerT. Thank you, Madam Chair. I am pleased that you
called this hearing this morning so that we can focus on some of
the vital issues of maternal and child and adolescent health care.
And I too am grateful for you folks appearing before the committee
and sharing not only your thoughts but your resources as well.

I guess I have no specific questions at this time, Madam Chair,
other than to ask that my statement become a matter of the
record. Thank you.

Chairwoman ScHRoEpER. Without objection, of course.

[Prepared statement of Hon. Bill Barrett follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF HON. BiLL BARRETT, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FrOM
THE STATE OF NEBRASKA

Thank you, Madam Chair. I'm pleased you called this hearing to focus on the
vital issue of maternal, child, and adolescent health care. Everyone present here
today realizes that the future of this country rests squarely or the health and gen-
eral well-being of our children. The goal shared here is to empower America’s fami-
lies, to provide access to the best and most effective forms of health care for each
family, each mother and each child.

The United States boasts the best health care facilities, doctors, nurses, and medi-
cal technology, in the world. And yet I am appalled by the barriers which American
families face in accessing quality care. Medical costs have skyrocketed, with the
Health Care Financing Administration estimating health care expenditures to reach
15% of GNP by the year 2000. Families in rural areas suffer from a shortage of
doctors, nurses, and hospitals, as do those in inner cities, thus preventing mothers
and children from getting the preventative, comprehensive care which studies show
save both lives and medical expenses in the long run. On top of all this, I've been
told that some health insurance premiums have increased by 30 percent in just one
year. Small businesses can no longer afford to insure employees and their families,
particularly those with seriously ill children.

In short, something has to be done to make America's medical resources available
to its children and its families. Positive steps have been taken by some federal pro-
grams and organizations, as our distinguished panel will demonstrate. But much re-
mains to be done.

Competition is the driving force behind our nation’s second-to-none technology
and medical know-how, and obstructing it would be fatal in a very literal sense. At
the same time, in order to take full advantage of our strengths we've got to bring
some sense to the relation between health care provider and patient, by streamlin-
ing and coordinating administration, and by bringing about real market reform. Ten
of my colleagues and I introduced 2 bill, HR 4054, which begins to fix the provider-
patient relationship by giving small businesses, which employ the vast majority of
America’s uninsured, the same tax deduction for buying health insurance for their
employees which larger businesses now enjoy. HR 4054 would also reform srnall em-
ployer insurance market practices to guarantee eligibility and renewability, restrict
premium increases, and restrict pre-existing conditions and exclusions. It wouid con-
tain costs through federal malpractice and product liability reforms—thus address-
ing a system in which doctors fearful of lawsuits pass the cost of wildly expensive
malpractice insurance onto their patients, through fee hikes and the ordering of un-
necessary, redundant tests.

In addition to these reforms, which work to decrease medical cost and provide
health insurance for millions of the uninsured, efforts must also be made to make
health care administration more efficient and uniform. Communities must be pro-
vided with the information necessary to take charge of their health care system; to
demand the care which most effectively fulfills their needs.

And finally, continued support must be given to those federal programs which
promote preventative health measures; especially those geared to the special needs
of mothers and children. Programs sp soring childhood immunization and infant
mortality reduction, for example, are an excellent investment, since they save both
suffering and funds in the long term.

I find it shameful that in the midst of so much technological progress, those who
are most deserving of care, our nations’ mothers and children, are not being served.
Surely a medical system which can determine a child’s sex before it is born can also
find a way to provide comprehensive, quality health care for America’s families. I
thank our panel for coming forward today, to remind us of the special and urgent
needs of America’s women and children. It is vital that in our discussion of health
care reform we do not lose sight of what should always remain our goal: access to
comprehensive, quality care for America’s families, and a health future for our chil-
dren.

Thank you Madam Chair, and I yield back the balance of my time.

Chairwoman SceHrROEDER. Congressman Martinez.

Mr. MarTiNez. Thank you, Madam Chair.

It is interesting, we seem to recognize that there is a problem out
there but we don’t seem to find the solution to it. You know, one of
the things that is obvious, and it should be obvious to everyone—
and you mentioned it, it is obvious to you—that insurance compa-




27

nies are in business to make a profit. And the only way they can
make the profit is to keep the rates higher and coming in faster
than the claims they pay out.

No insurance company that I know of is about to try to take a
loss by insuring the high risk. Whether it is automobile insurance
or health coverage, they just don’t want to insure the high risk.
They will cancel people if they have too many claims, whether it is
health insurance or auto.

There is no way that we can do anything about that. But I think
there is a way we can provide health care for all the chiidren. You
know, the Federal Government has a fantastic health care plan for
every one of its employees, tantamount to the pilot program for a
national health care plan. You know, we have a state, Hawaii,
which provides health care to every man, woman and child wheth-
er they work or not.

I don’t know, if one state can do it, a state like Hawaii, why can’t
we move nationally on this. But we are not moving it.

I can empathize with you because I remember that I once worked
for a company that had health care and that company closed up. I
went to work one morning and it was just closed. The Federal Gov-
ernment had closed it, in fact. And we found ourselves without
health care with five children. And my youngest daughter got
double pneumonia. And you know, the hospitals were more inter-
ested in whether I had a policy coverage so they could make sure
they would get paid than accepting that child who was in an emer-
gency situation.

If it hadn’t been for a real good doctor, Dr. Kraus, who called
that hospital, you admit that child now, we don’t know what would
have happened. But we worried about it.

So I know what it is like to be without health insurance. And I
made up my mind, I didn’t care what it was going to cost me, I was
going to get it.

I didn’t have the situation that either one of you have, where
you have an illness that is a matter of record that is keeping you
from getting that health care. And I think that is wrong and we
ought to do something about that.

You know, what we ought to do is, if an insurance company is
going to make a profit anyway, whoever they insure—because I re-
member when I started my business, my employees needed and
wanted health care, and I remembered my own situation. I shopped
around until I found a group that I could join that would offer me
group insurance as a small business and we got it for them.

You know, what those people valued more than anything else,
more than the wages they earned, more than the days off they got,
was that health care. That was the most vital thing to them then.
It is the most vital thing to them today.

And yet, as my colleague from Texas has said, there are millions
of people out there without health insurance, whether it is for your
reason or just the fact that they work for a small employer who
says he can’t afford it. I don’t believe it. I think everybody can
afford it. One way or the other, you can afford it.

But then if everybody is able to get insurance, then what are you
going to do about the companies that stop insuring people because
they are high risk? You know, they have not been kept from rais-
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ing the rates for those individuals. They do it all the time. But
having some insurance at whatever rate—you just said that you
would be willing to pay any rate to get the insurance.

You say you don’t want the government to step in and do it, you
know. But when people won’t be responsible, who else is there to
step in? It has got to be the government. We don’t like it. I am like
you. I was a small businessman and I didn’t want government on
my back, because I was responsible. But how about the people that
are not responsible? Somebody has got to get them to do the right
thing. And generally it is through some kind of law.

You know, if we don’t like laws, then we should police our own
situations and make sure that the people don’t take advantage of
people. Then we won’t need the laws. The laws are there only to
proti?ct the people against the few that would take advantage. That
1s all.

Insurance companies take advantage. They have a captive audi-
ence. You know, people need that insurance. And if you have got
anything, you have got to get insurance. I have got so much insur-
ance it is coming out my ears. And those annual premiums are
pretty heavy. But I can’t afford to be without it. But at least I am
fortunate, I can afford it. There are a lot of people out there that
can’t.

The Federal Government has a national plan for all of its em-
p}lloyees. I don’t see why we can't extend that to everybody out
there.

But we hold these hearings and we talk about these things, and
then we get into—excuse the expression—partisan fights some-
times, posturing who is going to come out the biggest hero to look
best to the people, and never mind we don’t get it done because it
has got to be this way. We have got to cross every T and dot every
I before we can get a bill passed cut. And then when we finally get
one passed out, we go to the floor and we say, this is the best we
can do. And you know what? It is not good enough.

And you people come and you testify, hoping that something will
happen. I hope so, too. I think the Chairwoman is very sincere
about wanting to do something about it or she wouldn’t be holding
these hearings.

1 think there are some people in Congress—maybe the public will
finally force the Congress to move and act in providing national
health care for our people, because it is long overdue.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Thank you very much. Congressman
Holloway.

Mr. HoLLoway. Thank you, Madam Chair, for holding the hear-
ing and for our witnesses for being here.

Mr. Weaver, I noticed when (%ong'ressman Smith finished you
looked like you had a statement you wanted to make or somethin
you wanted to say along with the testimony that he had made an
the other witnesses. Did you have anything you wanted to say?

Mr. Weaver. Yes. I just wanted to make clear that I wasn’t
saying that I wanted the government to stay out or stay off my
back. What I am trying to say is I want to do it myself as much as
I can, and when I need the help, maybe from the government, I
sure will ask for it. You know, I am not saying anything against
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the government, the government’s involvement. It is just like
asking a parent for help. You don’t want to do that untii it is abso-
lutely necessary.

You know, I am able to do it. I have the income. I can get the
insurance. I just need the help maybe, I guess, of the government,
which I am getting now here. But I don’t want the government just
to jump in and do it for us or for me, but maybe give us some ideas
of what we can do. That is all.

Mr. HoLLowAy. Thank you. I don’t have as much a question but
to say I do serve on the Energy and Commerce, Health and Enwvi-
ronment Subcommittee, which will very likely be one of the com-
mittees that will be marking up some type of legislation.

I hope we never go to socialized medicine because I don’t think it
is the answer in our country. I think we do have to do something. I
believe there does have to be help for people who have children
with pre-existing conditions. I do believe there has to be some type
of catastrophic care for people in this country to ensure that you
can get a policy and that you can get it for an affordable rate.

I do personally feel that every person in this country should be a
part of whatever system we come up with. The government doing it
for us is not the answer. I think that is our problem in this country
today, is the fact that we try to do too much for everyone and we
made basically a welfare generation out of a lot of our country.
And I have to say that and I firmly believe that. I am sure people
in this Congress would disagree with me, and that is our right and
a difference in philosophy here. But I believe we have to make our
people—and help them where they need help. And I believe there
are many people out there today who do need help with insurance,
where they cannot afford it, they cannot get it.

But I think we have to be careful that we don’t go—everybody
says Canadian system, let’s go toward it. I hear tremendous prob-
lems in our committee testimony coming out of the Canadian
system.

So I hope whatever we do here, we will proceed but we will pro-
ceed in a way that we do take care of the needs that are there but
not to make it a point—inflation started when we came up with
Medicare and Medicaid in health care. It was running at pretty
well the same level as normal inflation until we came up with our
government programs. And then at that point it skyrocketed.

So I would just simply say we have to be careful. I know there
are people out there hurting. I know there are people that need
help. I hope we do it in a manner to help them but not to make
them dependent on government for their needs.

1 don’t know if anyone has anything you want to say in return.

Mrs. REnNsHAW. Yes, if I may. There is just one thing I hope that
the government does do. I hope that it looks at and will hold in
check any form of discrimination that might come up.

We are a country that does not condone discrimination and we
have blatant examples of discrimination when it comes to insur-
ance practices. Charging people with a pre-existing condition much
mor;;a money is a form of punishment, for someone whoselife is already
hard.

Mr. HoLroway. If I can interrupt, I don’t think that is discrimi-
nation. I think that we have to do something, as government, to see
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that we help that person. But I don’t think that is wrong on an
insurance company. I think you have to make money, as we said.
Business is out there to do it.

I think that is the role we have to play. I think that is where we
have to come in, to see that the person who cannot either get it or
the rates skyrocket because of the pre-existing condition, I think
that may be the role that government has to play. ..

To say that they are wrong in doing it, they w@% Stay in busi-
ness, I think, if somehow they don’t cover their costs of a pre-exist-
ing. But I do believe maybe you have hit the nail on the head on
where we have to go with government. That is to help the people
who cannot get it or cannot afford to get it or where the rates—I
think we have to have some type catastrophic, some type level that
says that every family of two is entitled to get an insurance policy
for $250 a month or something, where we guarantee that you can
get one you can afford.

But to just totally take over the system in this country, I think
we may lead to greater problems in doing so and I think our actual
research and all in health care will totally end once we do.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

Chairwoman ScHrOEDER. Thank you. Congressman Sarpalius.

Mr. SarpaLius. Thank you, Madam Chair. I commend you for
holding these hearings and hope that we develop a health care bill
in which this committee will become very aggressively involved.
We need to provide adequate health care for the children in this
country.

It is a sad day when in this country of America, the land of op-
portunity, nearly a fourth of our children are living in poverty and
a high percentage of them are uninsured.

I hope that this body will really start looking at the priorities of
where we spend our money.

I met with some doctors this weekend, Saturday, in my district,
and I asked them, what can we do to cut health care costs? And
they told me about a new OSHA regulation affecting doctors.
When doctors examine someone with exposed fluids, they have to
wear a mask, a gown, and rubber gloves. This is an additional $20
cost to each patient.

We need to look at regulations and additional requirements that
we put on health care. There are many, many things that we can
do to help cut costs in health care. But we have got to start chang-
ing our priorities and focusing on some of the real problems in this
country.

I had always believed that the philosophy of the American
people was that—for an example, if you had a boat sinking, who
gets off first? It is supposed to be women and children. But that is
not the way a lot of people think today. And I hope we start focus-
ing on the problems of our young people and try to give them an
tl){xi)é)ortunity, the many opportunities that I was able to enjoy as a

I just want to say thanks again for this hearing and I hope this
committee will continue to be actively involved in health care.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. I think we will. I don’t think our wit-
nesses know what a great attendance this is. But you don’t find
this on many committees.

BEST COPY AVAILABLE
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Congressman CRAMER.

Mr. CRAMER. Madam Chair, I don’t have any questions at this
point. I too want to thank you for conducting this hearing on this
very appropriate subject matter. Thank you.

Chairwoman SchHroEpER. Thank you. Congressman Durbin, do
you have any questions?

Mr. Dursy. No. Thank you.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Congressman Wolf?

Mr. Worr. I have no comments.
d((ihairwoman ScHRrROEDER. I had just a few things that I wanted to
add.

Mrs. Renshaw, you come from California. And we heard it was a
wonderful state and you had this risk pool and that this couldn’t
happen in California. So what you are saying is it can happen in
California, too?

Mrs. ReENsHAW. Yes. The risk pool is very new. It is a couple of
years old. Because of the small amount of money that was appro-
priated, it really wasn’t advertised that well. I just myself found
out about it about four months ago. And there is I think at present
a two year waiting list. There is a year’s exclusion.

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. A two-year waiting list?

Mrs. RENsHAW. Yes. There is a year’s exclusion for any pre-exist-
ing condition.

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. After you get in?

Mrs. RENsHAW. Yes.

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. So that is three years?

Mrs. RensHaw. Yes. And then the policy is, I think, 125 percent
over the cost of a regular policy and it has a smaller dollar
amount.

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. Now the other thing that you men-
tioned is that if things didn’t get better soon, you and your hus-
band might have to separate in order to get coverage.

Mrs. RENsHAw. On paper, yes. We love each other very deeply.
We care very much for our family. We put our family first. But
under the present system, to ensure in case—at this point Marisa
is healthy and she is thriving. But you know, potentially something
could happen. And to ensure that she will have coverage for that,
yes.

Chairwoman ScHroeDER. Have you applied for the risk pool in
the interim?

Mrs. RENsHAW. Yes.

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. So you are now in your three-year wait-
ing period, I guess.

Mrs. RENsHAW. Give or take, you know, depending on how many
people turn it down or whatever. But this is the estimated time. I
don’t know if that will be the actual time.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Mr. Weaver, you are a wonderful
person, trying very hard, and you are now waiting with your new
employer, hoping when the time passes that this time the coverage
will apply. I assume that you are as concerned as Mrs. Renshaw is
about Steve’s employment possibilities when he gets out there.

Mr. WEAVER. Yes, ma’am.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. I think that you both make an excel-
lent point, that you educate the children in all of this and very few
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employers are going to hire them if they check off their pre-exist-
ing condition. And that is a form of discrimination that we have
not really dealt with legislatively in this country. While we deal
with all these other things, I think those are very, very good

points.

Well, we thank you very much. We wanted you to be here be-
cause we thought it was so important to point out that while there
is a tremendous number of people who don’t have insurance be-
cause of their economic status, there are a lot of people who are
willing to get it if they could just find it.

And to hear your story about what you have done employment-
wise and changed and changed careers and scrambled around, and
your spouse not being able to make as much money as you would
like because of the caps and the limits to get any coverage at all,
those are amazing. And I think you make some very good points.

I have always been very angry because I felt if this government
was at all serious, there were two things they could do immediately
to cut the cost of insurance. Number one, mandate that all insur-
ance have one form. I mean, you could cut down the overall over-
head tremendously. And the second, allow people to pick between
two pools, those who would agree to arbitrate malpractice and
those who insisted on litigating.

Those are the kinds of things that I think—I have got a whole
list, the Schroeder reforms, but no one ever listens to me. But
those, you could do those kind of things and then it is up to the
person, and you are not discriminating against pre-existing condi-
tions. You are letting people pick what they want to do.

But the fact that we allow everybody to have a gazillion forms
and add all this administrative cost and everything, it just drives
me crazy. It says to me we are not very serious at all.

Mr. HorLroway. Madam Chair, may I say a word before you
finish?

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. Sure.

Mr. HoLLoway. And I agree maybe with some of your reforms
there, that we could do a few things to cut costs.

But I do believe that what we just said may hit the nail on the
head again on California’s problems. We are trying to come up
with solutions. If we don’t appropriate the amount of money—and I
don’t know that there is anyone in this House that is going to vote
to appropriate the amount of money that it is going to take if we
are going to go to a total socialized medicine program in this coun-
try. We are going to end up with the waiting lists.

We are going to end up with problems that we never thought we
would have. And we are going to have people that are going to be
going and paying for the costs that can afford it, and we are going
to have people that can’t afford to do it that are going to be wait-

ing.

%o I just think that it is very important that we realize that our
answers are not always sometimes I think as simple as we want to
make them or we are not willing to spend the money it is going to
take. And the amount of money on this is absolutely astronomical,
if we really look at it and see.

So I hope that we will look at different problems, if we can.

Yes, Mrs. Renshaw.
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Mrs. RensHAaw. The one thing is by lumping all the risks togeth-
er, I think you do have a problem. You know, you will have a mon-
etary problem. But by spreading the risks around, if you take the
whole pool of the state, I don’t think there would be a problem.

And I think that the cost containment will pass down to the
medical establishment, because I know when we had insurance
that the price of what we were billed was completely different to
when we have to pay it by ourselves.

They reduce the price for us when they find out we don’t have
insurance at this point. We paid $30 for a pair of paper slippers for
her when she was in the hospital, and it goes on and on. We were
double and triple billed. And the insurance companies, when I
called up to tell them that we were double and triple billed, said,
don’t worry about it, your insurance covers this. They were not
willing to go in and correct those mistakes.

Mr. Horroway. There are reforms, without any doubt, that need
to be made. But I just hope we will realize that our problems won't
be totally solved when we get there, if we get our people on waiting
lists for surgeries and all that we are going to need. So it is, I hope
people realize—really, to me, the most complex problem we face
here in Washington I think is this problem.

Chairwoman ScHroeDER. Well, thank you for being such a good
consumer. I go around, when I do my health care speech, and offer
anybody in the room five dollars that can tell me what they pay
per month for medical insurance. And I find I don’t have to hand
out a lot of five dollar bills. It is amazing. We are not very good
consumers. People who get it, it is just deducted, they pay it and
they don’t even think about it again. And that is the problem. You
have got a lot of people not thinking about it and other people
think about it all the time because they can’t get into the pool.

Congressman Evans, did you have anything you wanted to add?

Mr. Evans. No.

Chairwoman ScHRrROEDER. Well, let me thank this panel. I thank
you very much for putting human faces on these problems. And I
think this committee is very dedicated to making sure we don’t
make those kind of mistakes, whatever we do. So thank you, hang
in there, persevere, and we really appreciate it.

And Marisa and Steve, we appreciate your being here, too.
Thank you.

We will call up the next panel this morning.

We have four people who have been studying this problem and
hopefully can give us some light and direction.

First we have Sarah Brown, who is the Senior Director for the
National Forum on the Future of Children and Families at the In-
stitute of Medicine and National Research Council; we have Rich-
ard Nelson, and Dr. Nelson is the President, Association of Mater-
nal and Child Health Programs, Professor of Pediatrics at the Uni-
versity of Iowa in Iowa City, Iowa; we have Edmund Haislmaier—I
hope I didn’t mess that up too badly—health care policy analyst for
the Heritage Foundation in Washington, D.C.; and Dr. Robert
Johnson, who is the Director of the Division of Adolescent Medi-
cine in New Jersey Medical School, Newark, New Jersey, and he is
also the Chair of the Board of the Center for Population Options in
Washington, D.C.
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We welcome this esteemed panel. We will put all of your state-
ments in the record. And Ms. Brown, let’s start with you and we
will let you summarize or do whatever you would like. Welcome
and thank you for being here.

STATEMENT OF SARAH S. BROWN, M.P.H., SENIOR STUDY DIREC-
TOR, NATIONAL FORUM ON THE FUTURE OF CHILDREN AND

FAMILIES, INSTITUTE OF MEDICINE, NATIONAL RESEARCH
COUNCIL, WASHINGTON, DC.

Ms. BrRowN. Good morning, Madam Chair and members of the
committee. We are so gratified, all of us, to see an extraordinary
turnout like this for a hearing on today’s issue. As a long time war-
rior in maternal and child health, I want to tell you how gratified I
andl my colleagues are that so many of you take this issue so seri-
ously.

I am a senior study director at the Institute of Medicine. And in
concert with Dr. Richard Nelson (who, as you see, is also testifying
this morning) and several other experts in maternal and child
health, we recently released a report called Including Children and
Pregnant Women in Health Care Reform.

In the written statement I have submitted, I have quite a bit of
material about it, and I have also asked for the actual report to be
introduced into the record. It is actually not very long.

Chairwoman Scuroebper. Without objection.

Ms. BrRowN. Thank you very much.

In the few minutes I have this morning, I want to make a very
simple poirt. Those of us who understand the day-to-day problems
that children and teenagers and pregnant women face in getting
health care have a very important responsibility and a very tough
job at present. It is to educate our colleagues in the Congress and
in other policy-making bodies nationally and in the states, too,
about what a health care reform bill should include on behalf of
this population.

We must speak clearly about maternal and child health issues,
about the policy pitfalls and the day-to-day difficulties that this
population faces in getting health care. We need to describe over
and over again what we have learned about kids and health care
through the work of this committee, through the Institute of Medi-
cine, the work of the National Commission to Prevent Infant Mor-
tality, and many other groups around town that have been active
in maternal and child health over the years.

If we don’t do that, I think it is possible—it may even be likely—
that a health care reform bill will be passed that misses major op-
portunities tc address a whole range of important maternal and
child health matters. Madam Chairman, you made that point in
your opening statement. I think you are absolutely right.

It is in this context that I think your hearing this morning is
enormously important. It allows us all to celebrate the fact that se-
rious change in health care may be in the wings, to point out si-
multaneously that the reform movement must pause long enough
to listen to the special issues and problems posed by children, teen-
agers and pregnant women, and to address these topics as part of a
broader solution.
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Now what are these special topics? I am going to mention just a
very few.

One. The benefit package included in the health care reform bill
must be rich in preventive services: immunizations, family plan-
ning, well child care, full pregnancy care. These services can no
longer be left out of benefit packages in the hope that individuals
and families will somehow finance them on their own. Those days
are past.

For example I recently paid $130 for an immunization for just
one of my three children.

Two. The reform bill must include ways to place people and serv-
ices in underserved areas. We know that simply putting an insur-
ance card into the hands of more people will not solve the problem
of absent providers and services. We are going to need a more ag-
gressive approach.

The Community Health Centers Program, the National Health
Service Corps, and numerous of related initiatives have taught us
how to beef up care in certain communities. This experience needs
to be studied and drawn on systematically in crafting a comprehen-
sive reform of the health care system. Part of the strategy to in-
crease provider availability should be the training of nonphysician
providers: certified nurse midwives, nurse practitioners and others,
whose services are less expensive than physician services, and who
are very well suited to a wide range of practice settings.

The point is that expanding access to insurance is a first step,
but not a sufficient step if access to health care (not just access to
health insurance) is to be achieved.

Third. The reform bill must address some of the most odious
practices of the insurance industry, such as the pre-existing condi-
tion exclusions we just heard about, experience rather than com-
munity rating albeit in a revised form, and waiting periods for cov-
erage to begin.

This last issue, incidentally, bears directly on maternal and child
health. Twenty million American women belong to insurance plans
that require waiting periods of three months or more for coverage
to begin. At the same time, we tell pregnant women to begin pre-
natal care early in pregnancy. So, what is it going to be? Is it going
to be waiting periods for coverage to begin? Or is it going to be
early prenatal care? The two are inconsistent.

Fourth. Particularly in the case of the more far-reaching reform
bills, the whole place of the public health care system and all the
many maternal and child health categorical grant programs must
be addressed. It is complicated and it is messy. But it is unavoid-
able. These important programs include, for example, the maternal
and child health services block grant, immunization grants, Title X
monies, injury prevention, and many others. Are these programs
going to be left as they are when the health care reforms are put
into place? Are they going to be folded into a new health care
system, a new financing system? Are they going to be eliminated
because we now have insurance, at least in theory, available to ev-
erybody? And if we are going to eliminate them as part of a major
overhaul, what is to become of the other functions that the public
health programs perform: planning, data collection and analysis,
and needs assessment?
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Fifth. What is the bill going to say about undocumented resi-
dents in the United States, the majority of whom are women and
many of whom are of childbearing age?

In states such as Florida, New York, California, Texas and Colo-
rado, this uninsured population contributes heavily to the burden
of uncompensated care, and, more generally, to many of the poor
health status indicators in U.S. maternal and child health.

Sixth and finally. What protections will the bill offer against the
current infatuation with managed care as the cost containment
tool of choice?

Here in the District of Columbia and elsewhere around the coun-
try, for example, some managed care plans are limiting hospitaliza-
tion following childbirth to 24 hours, even if the mother is 16, even
if she has no real home to go to with her infant, even if she doesn’t
know the first thing about bathing or caring for her baby.

What is this bill going to offer in the way of quality assurance
and common sense to protect against such cost control measures?

The list could be expanded, of course, of important topics that a
reform bill should address: regionalized systems of perinatal care,
graduate medical education, all the issues of privacy and informed
consent that teenagers face when they seek health care, and so on.
But the simple point remains, we have to make certain that what-
ever the reform bill passed, the needs of children, teen~ and preg-
nant women are carefully attended and at the same level of detail
and the same level of force that we address ourselves to the hospi-
tal and the insurance industries.

1 would be pleased later to answer any questions about this testi-
mony. And Ms. Schroeder, 1 want to thank you again for allowing
us to present the report before the Women’s Caucus, which you co-
chair. That was very gracious of you.

[Prepared statement of Sarah S. Brown follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF SARAH S. BrowN, M.P.H., SENioR StUupY DIRECTOR, NA-
TIONAL FORUM ON THE FUTURE OF CHILDREN AND Famivies. INstrruTE OF MEDI-
CINE/NATIONAL RESEARCH COUNCIL, WASHINGTON, DC

Good morming, Madam Chairman and members of the Committee. My name is Sarah
Brown. axd | am a senior study director at the National Forum on the Future of Children and
Families, a joint project of the Institute of Medicine and the National Research Council. The
Research Council is the operating arm of the National Academy of Sciences, the National
Academy of Engineering, and the Institute of Medicine, and was chartered by Congress in 1863
to advise the government on matters of science and technology. [ am here today to talk with
this committee about several important ideas that emerged from a series of workshops recently
hosted by the Forum to discuss health care reform from the perspective of children, pregnant

women and teenagers.

As you well know. over the last several years, many important national organizations and
public policy leaders have introduced blueprints for reforming the health care system. It has
even become an issue of some prominence in the presidential primaries. But the complexity and
constantly changing dimensions of national discussions about health care reform hold the risk

that numerous important issues n matemnal and child health will be overlooked.

Accordingly, the Natonal Forum on the Future of Children and Families hosted a series
of workshops to detail the needs of children, teenagers and pregnant women that any major
reform of the nation's health care system should address. The workshops also explored seven

reform proposals that are representative of the major ideas for reform currently being consiaered
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by the U.S. Congress and by others interested in health system reform. Five of the seven were
“multipaver” plans. that 1s. they retain a mix of private health insurance and one or more
publicly financed programs:

® The American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) proposal, "Children First" (a version
of the AAP proposal was recently introduced into the Congress by Congressman Matsui (D--
Calif.) as "The Children and Pregnant Women's Heaith Insurance Act of 1991,* H.R.3393);

® the American Medical Association (AMA) proposal, entitled "Health Access
Amenca;”

® the Health Insurance Association of Amenca (HIAA) proposal. entitled "Health Care
Financing for All Americans;”

® H.R. 2535. the Waxman bull, entitled “The Pepper Commission Health Care Access
and Reform Act of 1991.” introduced by Congressman Waxman (D-- Calif.); and

® S. 1227, the Senate Leadership bill. entitled "Health Amenca: Affordable Health Care

for All Americans, " introduced by Senators Mitchelf (D--Me.), Kennedy (D--Mass.), Riegel (D--

Mich.), and Rockefeller (D--W. Va.).

Two of the seven plans reviewed were "single-payer” plans, that is. they replace
the current mix of public and private health care financing with a single public financing plan.
with private insurers either replaced or retained as intermediaries only:

® H.R. 1300, the Russo bill. entitled "The Universal Health Care Act of 1991,

introduced by Congressman Russo (D--ii1.); and
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® H.R. 2375, the Stark bill, entitled *The Health Insurance for Children and Mothers

Act of 1991," introduced by Congressman Stark (D--Calif.).

The participants believed that their assigned focus on children and pregnant women was
well justified by data documenting their substantial representation among the uninsured. In
1989, 29 percent of the U.S. population was under age 21, but they represented 36 percent of
the uninsured--12.4 million children under the age of 2i were uninsured in that year. In
addition. the National Commission on Children has estimated that in 1990, 433,000 pregnant
women had no health insurance. representing 9 percent of all pregnant women. Part of the
explanation for such numbers is that many children and pregnant women are themselves not
mnsured directly but are instead the indirect beneficiaries of a parent’s or spouse’s employment-
based private insurance. Being one step removed from the source of insurance--that is, receiving
coverage as a dependent--1s an increasingly expensive and insecure basis upon which to receive

health care coverage. Because of the increasing cost of dependent insurance, employers are ever

more reluctant to meet the full cost of that coverage, asking instead that their employees pay a

larger proportion of additional coverage. In 1980, for example, 40 percent of employers paid
the full cost of dependent coverage; 1n 1990, only 33 percent did so. Such trends underlie the

finding that 23 percent of uninsured children live in families with insured parents.

These data also supported a consensus among the participanis that. over time, the health
care needs of children and pregnant women will best be served by a policy that avoids pitting

the relatively modest needs of this population against other populations and health care demands.
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The participants discussed, for example, the current practice in the Medicaid program of placing
flat dollar and duration limits on coverage of ambulatory services but not on coverage of long-
erm care services--a practice that has led many state Medicaid programs to spend an ever larger
share of their funds on the elderly, further reducing resources for children and pregnant women,

who rely primarily on ambulatory services.

A summary of the workshops, "Including Children and Pregnant Women in Health Care
Reform,” presents some eleven health policy issues that the workshop participants defined as
being important to pregnant women, children and teenagers, and comments on the ways in which
the seven proposals address the 11 goals. With your permission, I°d like to enter the full
summary of those workshops in to the record. I'd also like to take this opportunity to again
thank you, Mrs. Schroeder. for allowing the Forum to brief the Congressional Women's Caucus

about this paper the day it was released to the public.

Rather than simply recite the goals to you, I'd like to underscore six of the eleven, and
give you some concrete examples of troubling issues that are at the heart of each, lest they sound

too abstract and general.

Goal 1. All children 2nd pregnant women have continuous access to heaith insurance.

However straightforward this geal, it remains elusive under present arrangemsants.

Coverage by private health nsurance often requires individuals and families to meet such
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requirements as a2 minimum length of time employed (for example, 20 million women belonging
to health insurance plans that require waiting periods of three months or more for coverage to
begin, which can preclude coverage within the first critical trimester of pregnancy), good health
status, a particular degree of relationship to a covered person, lawful U.S. residence, and so
forth. The Medicaid program also imposes a wide variety of preconditions centering on income,
residence, age, family composition, and other factors. Failure to satisfy one or more
requirements can cause pregnant women and children to be ineligible for coverage altogether or

ineligible for coverage for a period of time or for certain conditions.

Principally for reasons of cost containment, health insurance plans may exclude certain
groups with special relevance to maternal and child health; in some instances, legal concerns

form the basis for exclusions (as when health insurance is not available to children in certain

types of custodial arrangements). These groups include adolescents and young adults not yet

nsured on their own who have attained the age of majority as defined by their parent's insurer
(and who do not receive coverage through one of the exceptions provided in the insurer’s plan,
such as enrollment in college); undocumented U.S. residents; adopted children; children who
are not related closely enough to their caretakers to be covered by the caretaker's insurance plan
(for example, children living with a grandparent or older sibling); and dependent adult children

(such as a chronically ill adult living with s or her parents).

The exclusion of undocumented residents 1s of special relevance to maternal and child

health because many of these persons are mothers, children, and pregnant women. Of the 2 to
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4 million undocumented people in the United States at present, the majority are women. Women
of reproductive age (15 to 44) are believed to comprise 30 to 40 percent of the total; 20 percent
are believed to be children under 15.” More generally, the need to provide undocumented
residents with a source of payment for health care is suggested by their significant contribution
to the uncompensated care debt reported by hospitals in such states as Texas, California, Florida,

New York, and lllinois, where there are large populations of such individuals.

This important concept of continuity also requires that individuals be able to move easily
among and between insurance plan. if a multi-payer system is retained. It will be important that
a reform plan describe 1n some detail how continuity and portability is to be ensured when

multiple systems co-exist.

Goal 2. Coverage is provided for a continuum of services that emphasizes primary and
preventive care and includes the diagnosis and management of a variety of diseases and
conditions, as well as specialized care to handle complex health problems.

/

Few issues have proved as contentious in health policy as benefits packages. What seems
an essential benefit to some is marginal to others, especially when cost is at issue. There are
at least two overlapping issues related to covered benefits: (1) defining the services that should
be covered by health insurance and then ensuring access to important, medically necessary
services that fall outside a benefits package: and (2) addressing the problem of noncomparable

benefits across insurance plans. especially public versus private ones.
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The first subtheme--what is t0 be in the benefits package--is enormously imporant 0
maternal and child health. For example, few, if any, private plans cover masny of the benefits
that children with chronic illnesses and handicapping conditions receive through state Medicaid
plans, and immunizations offered as 3 part of well-child care are commonly not covered. Not
surprisingly, there have been major measies outbreaks in recent y2ars. more than 26,000 cases
of measles were reported in 1990 (100 of which resulied in death). mainly among poor. inner-
aity ctildren, 2 major ncrease over the average of 1,000 cases a year between 1681 and 1988.
Similarly, family planng services are commonly excluded despite the high rates of unintended

AN
pregnancy in the United States. and the clear cost-efficiency of pregnancy prevention.

The point here 1§ that preventive services--and primary care services. loo--must be
included n the penefits package. The notion that COSts for such care is munimal and that
families should be expected t0 budget for such expenses is n0 longer reasonable, given the high

costs at present of, for example, ;mmunizations and prenatal care.

The second subtheme 1S also very wmporiant, though a bit dull. Reform proposals that
retain a publicly financed program alongside 2 private system--the multipayer plans--present the
additional problem of noncomparability of covered services between the public and private pians.
There are, of cOuUTse, differences n benefits among the hundreds of private plans now in
existence, but the differences between pubhic and prvate packages are generally more extreme.
The imporntance of this 1ssue is thrown to sharp relfief when companng the broad range of
services that many Medicaid programs now support with the benefits packages typically offered

through commercial insurers. For example. recognizing the special needs of low-income people.




Q

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

44

Medicaid often helps to pay for transportation to 2 health care facility, many home heaith care
services, comprehensive dental care and eyeglasses for children, and extensive mental health
services--services commonly excluded or highly limited in private plans. Similarly, Medicaid's
Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosts and Treatment program (EPSDT) has been used to
finance such services as orthodontia for children with significant dentofacial problems and

therapeutic day nurseries for developmentally disabled infants and toddlers.

Accordingly, in the case of multipayer plaas, it may be desirable to require that benefits
provided by public and private plans be essentially identical if the package is comprehensive.
If not, it may be preferable to provide a more generous package under the public plan in order
10 accommodate the greater needs of the fow-income individuals more likely o enroll in it. In
particular, it 1s important o ensure that poor children and pregnant women are not worse off
with regard to covered benefits under a new plan than under Medicaid. In the case of single-
payer plans, which typically eliminate Medicaid and present a limited basic benefits package,

the question of how existing Medicaid benefits are to be handled is pressing.

Goal 3. Heaith services are provided by qualilied providers in a wide variety of settings

that are effective in caring for children and pregnaat women, especially the medically
underserved. Similarly, the number and diversity of qualified providers offering services
to this population are increased, particularly for those who are poor, high-risk, os living

in inner-city or isolated rural areas.
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One- of the clearest points of consensus among our group was that simply expanding
access to insurance was not enough to meet the needs of the groups we're discussing this
moming. Although having a payment source available is a critical first step, it is only that, If

there are not enough people and services available to these newly insured individuals, we have

accomplished little. Accordingly the summary gives special attention to the challenge of

“resource development.” Several settings that are well suited to providing care to children and
pregnant women are not routinely supported by private third-party payers, and grants to establish
and maintain them are often inadequate and unreliable. For example, school-based health clinics
serving adolescents, birthing centers. comprehensive community-based heaith centers, and home-
based care for certain diseases and conditions have proven both economical and effective, yet

have limited support.

The importance of supporting multiservice centers for medically underserved populations
deserves special comment. Extensive experience over the last two decades has demonstrated that
meeting the health needs of high-risk pregnant women and children. particularly the very poor,
15 often accomplished through a mix of intensive medical and social services provided at a single
site. Comprehensive community health centers (CHCs), migrant heaith centers (MHCs),
matemal and child health services in local heatth departments, school-based clinics. and similar
organizations can blend the various services needed by high-risk individuals into units
understandable to both consumers and providers. Typically, these centers offer comprehensive
medical, heaith, and social services: rely on the skills of a variety of health professionals; have
adequate staff for assessment of community needs and for recruitment, tracking, and follow-up

of patients: provide health education. transportation, and translation services; serve a clearly

ST LOPY AYANLARIE
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defined geographical area: offer care that spans the developmental sequence from pregnancy
(including family planning and preconception care) through childhood. using the family as the
basic unit of service; and provide the option of home visiting for high-risk individuals,
particularly pregnant women and families with young children. Despite the proven value of such
comprehensive centers for high-risk families. they have never had a secure base of funding, and
their numbers have always been limited. For example, about 550 CHCs and MHCs are
currently in operation: only 6 million of the 32 million Americans who are medicaily

underserved receive care through these systems.

Simularly, there are not enough well-trained, licensed providers to care for children and

pregnant women who are low-income. medically high-risk, or living in inner cities or rural

areas. For example. over the last several vears, the number of obstetricians serving these groups

and these areas has declined. as has the number of family physicians practicing obstetrics; the
latter provide over two-thirds of the obstetrical care in rural areas. A slight decline in the
number of pediatricians who take Medicaid patients has also been noted recently. Workshop
parucipants did not discuss in detaii whether these trends reflect provider distribution pattermns
that do not match need or. rather. an absolute deficit in numbers of providers. However, the
consensus was strong that, with the exception of certain mid-level providers, overall supply of
health care providers is adequate. but that they are not always found in sufficient numbers in

areas of greatest need.

This problem of "provider maidistribution” is exceedingly complicated. reflecting long-

standing patterns of practice and payment. Although a single reform plan may not be able to
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solve this problem quickly and efficiently, it should nonetheless offer some constructive steps.
One time-tested method of addressing the provider distribution problem is to fund special clinics
in underserved areas, as just noted. Five other solutions are: (1) the direct placement of health
care providers in medically underserved areas through the National Health Service Corps and
similar programs; (2) the use of midievel practiticners in appropriate settings; (3) solutions to
the medical liability situation; (4) encouraging private providers to accept more patients whose
care is paid for by public funds: and (5) increased emphasis in graduate medical education for

health professionals on primary and community-based care rather than on tertiary care.

Goal 4. The future role of existing government grant programs in maternal and child
health is explicitly considered in reforming the health care system, with regard to both the
persona! health services supported by these grant programs and to their planning,

evaluation, and training functions.

Expanding the availability and affordability of heaith insurance intensifies the ongoing
debate about the future role and structure of the public heaith system in providing personal
heaith services, and it raises specific questions about the fate of many grant programs funded
through the Public Health Service (PHS), the Social Security Administration, and other
authorities. Examples of such programs that are especially importaat to children and pregnant

women include:

e Title V, the Matemal and Child Heaith Services Block Grant,

® the Preventive Health Services Block Grant,
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Childhood immunization grants to states,

Health services that are part of special education programs,
Pediatric emergency medical services.

Title X family planning services.

Pediatric AIDS health care demonstration program,

Injury control grants.

Grants for lead poisoning prevention and abatement, and

Poison control activities.

Many of these programs provide health services to those with no source of payment for

health care, serving in some instances as providers of last resort. Some of these programs serve
special populations or provide important health services that third-party reimbursement does not
cover. Many of them address such community-level problems as prevention of lead posoning
and traumatic injury, not easily handled through one-on-one health services financed by
traditional insurance. These grant programs can be innovators in systems that provide few
wncentives for coordinated, interdisciplinary care {(for example, special services for children with
multiple handicaps), and have the capacity to move easily across traditional boundaries between
health and other human service and educational areas. In addition, they often carry out
community-level planning, needs assessment, data collection and analysis, and tramning--tasks

that cannot easily be assumed by individual providers of care.

Given the importance of these public health grant programs, their future role

should be considered in reform proposals. Are they to be eliminated? Folded into the new
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public system? Retained as is? If the intent is to fund ali, or most, personal health services
through insuranice, what is to be the fate of the functions that public health grant programs often
encompass? Are some services best financed and regulated through public health systems but
provided by private institutions and individuals? Answers to these questions pertain directly to
the future course of the public health system, of which maternal and child health services are
only a part. In practical terms, bringing some order to all these programs and defining their
relationship to a new financing system will be exceedingly difficult, not only because each has
its own bureaucracy and constituency, but also because not all are under the jurisdiction of the

same congressional comnutiees.

Goal 5. Cost management measures accommodate the special needs of children and

pregnant women.

One of the most popular approaches to cost containment in current proposals for health
care reformt is managed care. It deserves special comment because of its growing popularity as

a ool for containing costs for privately insured as well as Medicaid-insured children and

pregnant women.

From the maternal and child heaith perspective, the critical issue is whether managed care
arrangements meet the heaith care needs of this population. Limited data and anecdotal
expenence with managed care for chiidren and pregnant women 1dentify several concems. First,

there remain some questions about the proper role of the "gatekeeper” function for a pediatric

population. In some instances it may be helpful, as for children with chronic illnesses whose
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access 1o primary care services may be facilitated by health maintenance organizations (HMOs),
for example; in others instances, the result may be less favorable. as when managed care
networks conflict with existing systems for triaging and transporting senously ill newboms.
Second. managed care networks may place strict limits on access to providers who are not
enrolled in the plan, even when their skills are not available from plan providers; although such
limits may be appropriate for essentally well children, they can pose major obstacles to needed
care for children with more serious and rare diseases and conditions. And third, managed care
can generate conflicts between the fundamentals of good medical care and the pressures of cost

containment (as exemplified by the growing practice among managed care plans of denying more

than 24 hours of hospuahization after a normal vaginal delivery and limiting coverage of

postpartum home-based nursing care for early discharge patients).

Goal 6. The administrative complexity of the health care system is substantially reduced

from the perspective of both providers and consumers.

Frustration with the complexity of the current U.S. health care system 1s one of the
strongest forces pushing the reform debate. The administrative tangle of muitiple programs and
sources of funding creates its own bartier to care and contributes to costly inefficiency. This
is a problzem for all populations. but parucularly for children and pregnant women. Children
must depend on adults to arrange for their health care: but if these adults cannot or will not
arrange for needed services, children have few tools available to them to secure the care they

need or to advocate on their own behalf. And because pregnancy is a ticking clock, requiring
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concentrated care in a relatively brief time. care delayed by administrative complexity 1s care

denied.

Plans offered to consumers in the private sector are often difficult 10 comprehend:
Medicaid can be even worse. The long-standing association of the Medicaid program with the
stigma and complexity of welfare and AFDC offices has alienated consumers for years, as noted
earlier. Similarly, providers report that the intricacy and cumbersome procedures of some
private insurance plans. and of Medicaid in particular, discourage their participation in them.
Even the most socially organized and well-educated consumers and providers have difficulty
understanding available programs and assembling needed care. A reform plan should therefore
define specific steps to simplify enroliment. participation, and payment procedures, particularly
in multipayer models that, by definition. are complicated and often retain the cumbersome

Medicaid program.

A more complete discussion of all these 1ssues appears 1n the summary [ mentioned

earlier. and some five other goals are taken up in it as well.

Let me close by tell:ng you a bit about the reaction to this modest document 1n the weeks

since its release. As I and other workshop members have gone around paying calls on various

leaders in the health care field and in the public policy domain to present this report, we have

encountered two very inieresting responses. The first is, "you know, we've never really thought
about most of those issues.” The second--more troubling, I think-- 1s, “all that 1s very

interesting. but those are really minor details of implementation, to be worked out after the fact.
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probably through the promulgation of regulations.” If the types of issues I've been outlining are
really perceived outside of the maternal and child health commumty as being so marginal, then
our work is cut out for us all -- to bring these topics up again and again. until they attain the

same prominence as those currently on the table.

Thank you for the invitation to be here this morning. ['d be pleased to answer any

questions.
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Chairweman SCHROEDER. Thank you. We are really pleased that
you have been working so hard. And thanks for bringing the
report. I am sure everybody will find it very interesting reading in
the record.

Dr. Nelson, we welcome you. We are glad you joined us this
morning. Your statement is in the record and the floor is yours.

STATEMENT OF RICHARD P. NELSON, M.D., PRESIDENT, ASSOCIA-
TION OF MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH PROGRAMS, DIREC-
TOR, CHILD HEALTH SPECIALTY CLINICS, AND ASSOCIATE

PROFESSOR OF PEDIATRICS, UNIVERSITY OF IOWA, IOWA
CITY, 1A

Dr. NeLsoN. I realize, Madam Chairwoman, that you did not
offer five dollars this morning, but I do pay $126 a month for de-
pendent coverage in my insurance policy at the university, which is
a very generous policy. The university pays more than that for my
own coverage. So that you need not provide five dollars.

Chairwoman ScHrOEDER. I am glad that you know. But it is
amazing how many Americans don’t know and don’t know what
their employer contributes.

Dr. NELsoN. T agree. I am Richard Nelson, from the University of
TIowa. And I am currently President of the Association of Maternal
and Child Health Programs. These are the public health programs
supported in part by Title V of the Social g)ecurity Act for women
and children, programs such as the California Children’s Services
that Mrs. Renshaw mentioned during her testimony.

I am pleased that we do have a chance to share some of our
thoughts over a few minutes about the implications of health care
reform for women, children and adolescents.

In many ways I feel my job would be done this morning in echo-
ing some of what Ms. Brown has said about the need to consider
this population in health care reform, fearing that if it is not con-
sidered we will in fact see a health care plan that discriminates
against this population.

Most of the legislative proposals that have been introduced to
this point in Congress focus on financing services, clearly very im-
portant, but they do not address the broader public health agenda
necessary to improve health care outcomes for women and chil-
dren. In my testimony I want to emphasize some aspects of that
public health agenda.

Title V is the only federal program exclusively devoted to mater-
nal and child health at this point. It is part of what we call the
infrastructure or the glue which, with other public health pro-
grams, private physicians and hospitals, assures that specific
health care problems are addressed.

We also coordinate with Medicaid to make certain that the tech-
nical expertise and the services of our programs facilitate the ex-
pansion of Medicaid that you have enacted in recent years for the
population of women and children who are newly eligible.

tate Title V programs also coordinate with and frequently ad-
minister categorical public health programs targeted to specific
causes of morbidity and mortality. These programs include immu-
nization, programs to treat children with lead poisoning, adoles-
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cents with sexually transmitted diseases, children that have been
exposed to HIV, substance abuse, and the emerging problem of tu-
berculosis in many of our communities.

Together, all of these public health resources make up the fabric
of maternal and child health services. We realize that health care
reform has the potential to make major repairs and to perhaps
even weave a new fabric. But we are very concerned that without
attention to the specific needs of women and children, we will in
fact lose the fabric that we have.

We have prepared a framework for analyzing health care reform
proposals. Unlike groups that in fact have advanced a specific pro-
posal, our framework instead is hopefully going to be helpful in
analyzing specific proposals that are brought before you in the Con-
gress to reform health care financing.

Wke think there are four major principles essential to this frame-
work:

First, that there should be universal access to appropriate, com-
prehensive, coordinated and continuous care as a fundamental part
of promoting and assuring the improved health care status for
women and children.

The second principle is that public health prevention and promo-
tion and organized health care delivery systems must complement
financing mechanisms. We are basically saying we do not believe
that simply providing a source of financing will assure that certain
populations of women and children will receive services. We have
no precedent in our country to suggest that that happens when fi-
nancing is broadened.

Third, that there should be consumer and family involvement in
the health care system design, i iplementation and monitoring. We
believe that one of the problems with our system is the consumers
have had too little say in how services are organized.

And finally, that the federal, state and local public health agen-
cies should have the expertise, the mandates and critical roles to
play in a variety of functions in the health care system, and that
these functions need to be preserved.

This is a framework for evaluating proposals. The framework is
specific to the needs of women and children. We feel this is impor-
tant because historically this group is often ignored.

Now what are some of the criteria that we look for in the deliv-
ery of care to the maternal and child health population?

First, disease prevention and health promotion services must be
universally available to all women, children and families. There
are many examples, but to use an often cited example, we in the
United States in the past year have had over 50,000 cases of mea-
sles, a completely preventable condition. Children are not being im-
munized because families do not have access to affordable immuni-
zation services.

Fifty thousand cases of measles results in the need for a great
deal of health care, a great deal of cost, and even, unfortunately,
death for some of those children.

A second component of the infrastructure is the need for publicly
accountable planning and coordination of services, capacities that
are often forgotten. We need to have an overview of our population
so that emerging problems are addressed and that there is a capac-
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ity in our communities and in our states to mobilize resources for
children and women.

A third component of the infrastructure is assuring that appro-
priate types of services and providers are available. This includes
guidelines for distribution and mix of preventive, primary and spe-
cialty care providers.

Again, assuring that there is a source of financing does not mean
that there will be resources in our most rural areas, in our innerci-
ties and in other areas of high need for health care.

Now there are a number of criteria that we think are important
for personal health services for women and children. We believe
that women and children should have access to health care financ-
ixgag regardless of age, family composition, income or employment
status.

If we don’t have this kind of access, there are going to be many,
many children and families who don’t receive the services. And we
can't design a system that basically provides services for 85 or 90
percent of the population because the needs of the remaining 10 to
15 percent will undo whatever careful cost controls and other pro-
visions are developed for the majority.

The second criterion for personal health services is that there
should be payment for comprehensive and continuous personal
health services that emphasize prevention and that can be provid-
ed in alternative settings, such as community-based clinics, schools,
homes and other places. We know that we must be innovative in
trying to bring health care to people that are at great need.

And then finally, the criterion that we think is important is that
the plans must be consumer oriented with simple administrative
policies and procedures, to assure greater cost efficiency. The
system is simply hopelessly complex currently.

Now in my written testimony we have used this framework to
analyze several of the proposals that have been introduced recent-
ly, proposals by Senator Rockefeller, Representative Stark, Repre-
sentative Russo and Representative Matsui. And I am not going to
spend time now verbally trying to summarize.

Each of these proposals to some extent addresses what we feel
are important criteria. But in most cases the proposals simply don’t
consider the public health infrastructure that I have been talking
about. And we feel and we hope that your committee will, among
other things, consider that infrastructure as you advocate for
health care reform.

We do have several specific recommendations that in closing I
would like to mention quite briefly. Because the proposals current-
ly introduced before Congress have often not fully addressed the
issues, we want to make certain that you consider these issues:

Number one, that any proposal for reforming the financing of
health care services should incorporate a benefit package for chil-
dren, adolescents and pregnant women that at least is comparable
to that included in Mr. Matsui’s bill, particularly in its provisions
for additional services for low income and special needs families.

Second, that legislation and financing for long term care services
for children be considered, if not part of the reform at least
through a separate vehicle that does not ignore long-term care
issues.
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Third, that there be provisions for financing and delivery of care
for resident illegal alien children and pregnant women, so that
they are not excluded.

Fourth, that existing public health programs be maintained at
least until such time as any financing reforms are fully implement-
ed and their impact on services and outcomes understood.

And finally, we hope that you will work with public and private
health sector leaders to develop proposals for better supporting the
infrastructure that I have referred to.

Our population does need protection. There is a need for legisla-
tive authority to see that resources can be mobilized when needed.

We thank you for the opportunity to talk with you this morning.
We are gratified. 1, again, am personally gratified to see the inter-
est that so many of you have in this issue. And we stand ready to
work with you to better address the health needs of women and
children.

[Prepared statement of Richard P. Nelson follows:]
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PrePARED STATEMENT oF RicHARD P. NELSON, M.D., PRESIDENT, ASSOCIATION OF
MATERNAL AND CHILD HeaLTH PROGRAMS, WaASHINGTON, DC

HEALTH CARE REFORM: HOW DO WOMEN, CHILDREN AND TEENS FARE?
SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL POINTS

The Association of Maternal and Child Health Programs (AMCHP)
has developed a framework to describe the essential components
of a health care system that meets the needs of all women,
children and adolescents, particularly those with more intensive
needs due to factors such as poverty, chronic illness or
disability. The framework is based on the following principles:

- Universal access to appropriate, comprehensive, coordinated,
continuous care must be provided.

Public health prevention and promotion and organized health
care delivery systems must complement financing mechanisms.

Consumer and family involvement in health care systenm design,
implementation and monitoring is key.

raderal, state and local public health agencies have
expertise, current mandates and critical roles which must be
incorporated in reform proposals.

AMCHP’s analysis of four major health care reform proposals
found a focus on financing services. The proposals did not
address the broader public health agenda, including the
mechanisms to improve the infrastructure for health promotion,
disease prevention, and planning, and to assure that services
are available.

while these major proposals include coverage for a number of
preventive services, with the exception of H.R. 3393, introduced
by Congressman Matsui, they limit or do not cover support
services needed by low income families or children with special
health care needs.

AMCHP recommends that health care reform address the principles
of this framework and include provisions for health promotion,
disease prevention and sexrvice delivery systems designed to
improve the health of women, children and families.

Until reforms in the MCH infrastructure are developed and
implemented, AMCHP recommends continued support for current
public health programs. These programs include the Title V
Maternal and Child Health program, programs targeted to specific
problems such as immunization and lead poisoning, and programs
for underserved areas such as community health centers.
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Good morning. My name is Dr. Richard Nelson. I am the
Director of the Child Health Specialty Clinics and Associate
Professor of Pediatrics at the University of Iowa, and President of
the Association of Maternal and Child Health Programs (AMCHP).
AMCHP is a national non-profit organization representing state
public health programs funded in part by Title V of the Social
Security Act, or the Maternal and Child Health Services Block
Grant. The mission of these programs and of AMCHP is to assure the
health of all mothers, children, adolescents, and their families.

I am pleased to have the opportunity to present to the Select
Committee AMCHP’s views regarding health care reform and its
implications for the health of women, children, and adolescents.
Our members’ experience in planning, delivering and monitoring
health care services for this population tells us that financial
barriers are hot the sole factor 1limiting access to care or
contributing to poor health status. Most of the legislative
proposals before Congress focus on financing services and do not
address the broader public health agenda necessary to improve
health outcomes. My testimony will include a discussion of the
current public system of maternal and child health services,
AMCHP’s framework to evaluate reform proposals, our analysis of
several proposals, and recommendations.

TITLE V OF THE SOCIAL S8ECURITY ACT ~- THE MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTK
(MCH) SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Title V of the Social Security Act (SSA) has authorized the
Maternal and Child Health (MCH) Services program since 1935. The
goal of this public health program is to improve the health of all
mothers and children consistent with national health objectives
established by the Secretary of DHHS.

The majority of Title V funds are provided to states to assure
effective MCH policies and pregrams, especially for: low-income
families; families with limited access to care; and families with
children with special health care needs due to chronic or disabling
conditions. A portion of the funding is set aside at the federal
level to support research, training and demonstration projects. A
new set-aside program established by ©OBRA ‘89 and funded for the
first time this year will support six types of projects, including
those to improve provider participation in public programs, better
integrate services, and increase home visiting.

Through funding to local providers or by directly operating
programs, state Title V programs support the availability and
accessibility of community health services especially for Medicaid
insured, uninsured and underinsured families. Title V-supported
programs provide prenatal care to over half a million pregnant
women, or well over one-third of births to low~income women. Over
two and a half million children receive Title V-supported
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preventive or primary health care, including immunizations, well-
child exams and referral or treatment for minor illnesses. Nearly
one-half million children with chronic illnesses or disabilities
receive specialized health and family support services, including
diagnostic, treatment and follow-up services, as well as case
management or care coordination services.

State Title V programs are mandated to develop family-
centered, community-based, coordinated care systems for children
with special health care needs. State programs are also developing
community-based networks of preventive and primary care that
coordinate and integrate public and private sector resources and
programs for pregnant women, mothers, infants, children and
adolescents. Three-fourths of the state programs have supported
local "one-stop shopping” models integrating access to Title V, the
WIC food program, Medicaid and other health or social services at
one site. All state Title V programs support some home visiting
services, although these services are extremely limited in many
states due to funding constraints.

State Title V programs conduct needs assessments to identify
health proklems, assess service gaps and barriers, and target
resources. States develop standards to assure quality care,
monitor services, and provide training and technical assistance to
providers on emerging health problems and on new clinical and
service approaches. State programs develop and implement health
promotion and disease prevention strategies, including health
education and community and environmental strategies, such as seat
belts and bicycle helmets to prevent injuries.

THE PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE FOR MCH SERVICES

While Title V is the only federal program exclusively devoted
to maternal and child health, it can be seen as the infrastructure
or "glue" for a variety of other public programs that finance care,
or target specific health problems or population groups.
Coordination with related federal health, education and social
services programs is mandated in the Title V legislation.
Coordination with Medicaid has greatly intensified in recent years,
with MCH programs providing the technical expertise and the service
delivery systems to ensure that expanded Medicaid eligibility and
benefits translate into improved access to services, and to
improved health status. OBRA ‘89 required state MCH programs to
identify and assist eligible infants and pregnant women in
obtaining Medicaid. As part of these efforts, MCH programs use
multi-program application forms, conduct on-site presumptive
eligibility determinations, use outstationed Medicaid workers, and
conduct outreach. OBRA ‘89 also required programs to establish
toll-free informaticn lines to help parents locate Title V and
Medicaid providers. Title V programs also work with Medicaid to
develop standards for EPSDT and enhanced prenatal services, provide
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case management for Medicaid clients, recruit providers, and
evaluate services.

State Title V programs also coordinate with and frequently
administer categorical public health programs targeted to specific
causes of morbidity and mortality. These include immunizations,
and programs to prevent and treat such problems as lead poisoning,
STDs, HIV/AIDS, substance abuse, and tuberculosis.

Title V programs similarly coordinate with and often are
directly responsible for family planning, W®IC, and early
intervention programs for children under age three. Title V
programs support clinics in medically underserved areas, and are
often the sole resource for care for low-income women and children.
In areas where community and migrant health centers are also in
place, Title V programs are working to assure that sexrvices are
coordinated and rot duplicated.

The flexibility in Title V allows for allocating resources and
developing programs to complement, extend and leverage other
programs, as well as private resources for health care delivery and
financing.

Together, these resources make up the public infrastructure,
or fabric, for MCH services. Today that fabric is wearing thin;
it’s been patched too many times. This quilt has holes in it
through which too many women, children and families fall. Health
care reform has the potential to make major repairs or perhaps to
weave a new fabric. But supplying the thread of financing alone
won’t assure that the fabric is woven to cover women and children
and protect their health.

Unless we incorporate services and activities known to improve
birth outcomes, protect children and adolescents from preventable
disease, injury, disability, and death, promote healthy development
and improve family functioning, health care reform will not live up
to its promises for women, children and adolescents.

THE MCH FRAMEWORK FOR ANALYZING HEALTH CARE REFORM PLANS

AMCHP has developed a framework to describe what it sees as
the essential components of a health care system to meet the needs
of all families, and particularly those with more intensive needs
due to such factors as poverty or chronic illness or disability.
Four major principles are central to the framework:

+ Univeyrsal access to a siv ordinated
coptinious care regardless of age; family composition,
income or employment status; residence; citizenship status:
or diagnosis or functional status should be regarded as
fundamental to promoting, assuring and improving health
status.
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« Public health prevention and promotjon and organized health
care delivery systems must complement financing mechanjisms
to assure that community-based, family-centered health and
support services are in place to promote the optimal health
and well-being of women, children and families.

Consumer and family jinvolvement in_ health care svstem
sign, jmplementation oni i is key to ensuring the
quality and efficacy of care.

Federal, state and local public health agencies have

tise, current mandates and itical roles i
assessment, policy development and assurance of health
services that must be incorporated in any comprehensive
health care reform agenda.

This framework is intended to be used as a quide in evaluating
or developing health care reform plans and proposals at both state
and natioral levels. The framework includes criteria for both MCH
systems infrastructure and for personal health services coverage
and administration. Having participated in development of the
report which Sara Brown Jjust briefed you on as well as the
development of AMCHP'’s framework, I am pleased to note that there
is much agreement within the MCH community on the major principles
which must guide health care reform if it is to meet the needs of
women and children. AMCHP's framework is more detailed, but
consistent with that of the National Research Council.

The principles and many of the criteria of AMCHP'’s framework
are applicable to the population and the health care system as a
whole. However, much of the framework is focused on the needs of
wosch and children who have specific health problems and needs for
services. Historically, those needs have tended to be neglected
uniess there is specific attention to them. The scope and content
of services, types of providers, and necessity for linkages with
social and education services are different for children than
adults. And the payoff for prevention, early intervention, and
developmental and support services is higher for children. For all
of these reasons, AMCHP believes that health care systems -~ both
infrastructure and personal health services coverage components —--
must incorporate explicit provisions for women and children,
including accountability through public health programs at federal,
state and local levels.

MCH BYBTEMS8 INFRASTRUCTURE CRITERIA

AMCHP’s framework includes three major components necessary
for MCH systems infrastructure.
health promotion services must be universally gvangpmj_u
women., children and thejr familijes, Accountability for these
services and programs should rest with public health agencies,
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working jointly with community agencies and providers. These
services include: ongoing surveillance of health status and
services to identify problems and address them early:
implementation of primary prevention strategies, such as those to
eliminate lead poisoning, targeted to populations at risk;
implementation of systems of comprehensive secondary prevention,
such as genetics disease counseling or tracking of high-risk
infants; development and implementation of public information and
outreach programs designed to improve health access and utilization
that are targeted to reach culturally diverse and high-risk
populations; and development and implementation of comprehensive
health education programs and risk reduction activities, such as
school health education and service prograns. These activities go
well beyond the services provided by individual practitioners to
their patients, and are the cornerstone to cost containment and
disease prevention.

The second major component of infrastructure is publjcly
accountable planning., coordination and quality assurance for MCH
services. Necessary activities here include data systems, needs
assessment, public planning processes and reporting related to the
health of women, infants and children. Coordination of public and
private services and financing entails development, implementation
and monitoring of agreements and arrangements that promote
integration of services and maximize resources not only within the
health care sector, but across education and social services.
Assuring quality health care encompasses evaluation of family and
provider satisfaction and the cost and outcome of services, as well
as providing technical assistance, training and service
demonstration funds.

The third maior component of infrastructure is assuring that
the appropriate tvpes of services and providers are avajlable.
This includes guidelines for adequate distribution and mix of
preventive, primary and specialty care providers, and encouraging
appropriate use of non-physician providers, such as nurse midwives
and practitioners, and supervised lay health workers. Support also
needs to be provided for regional systems of care which assure that
women and children are referred to specialty medical providers and
facilities when needed. And, to fulfill a very important public
health service role, the infrastructure must provide for organizing
and supporting enhanced health and support services for women,
children and families with special needs =-- such as adolescent
pregnancy and parenting support services or respite care for
families of children with chronic illnesses or disabilities.




Q

E

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

RIC

63

PERSONAL HEALTH CARE SERVICES COVERAGE AND ADMINISTRATION CRITERIA

AMCHP’s criteria for personal health care services coverage
and administration also fall into three major categories. First,
all women, children and families should have access to health care
financing regardless of age, family composition, income or
employment status, citizenship or diagnosis or functional status.
To insure such access, the plan should provide health care coverage
for all family members without waiting periods: have simple forms,
procedures and assistance that assure access regardless of
language: and be affordable for families. It should provide,
without cost-sharing, coverage for all MCH preventive services
regardless of family income. Cost-sharing should not be imposed
for any services for low-income families. Any premiums,
deductibles, copayments or out-of-pocket expenditures should be
limited, and include annual and lifetime caps to limit family
liability. The plan should also provide continuation and
conversion mechanisms and include coverage for catastrophic care.

The second criterion is that the plan should provide payment

for a comprehensjve, continuous and coordinated array of MCH
personal health services that include preventive, primary,
specialty and long-term care and support sexvices, provided, as
appropriate, in offices, clinics, schools, homes, and other
alternative settings. AMCHP’s framework specifies 25 types of
services which need to be covered to promote the health of women,
children and adolescents.

The final criterion for health services coveraqe_is that plans

incorporate consumer-oriented administrative policies and
procedures that assure approbriate quality, utilization, efficacy,
and cost efficiency. This area includes such criteria as assuring
that precertification or prior authorization for specialized
services is provided by appropriately credentialed and experienced
MCH professionals. The criteria also address adequacy of provider
reimbursement rates, simplified claims processing, and cost-control
mechanisms such as incentives for preventive health services and
use of managed care that is governed by MCH-specific standards.

ANALYS8ES OF MAJOR HEALTH CARE REFORM PROPOSALS

Using this framework, and with the assistance of health care
consultants Peggy McManus, Harriette Fox, and Paul Newacheck, AMCHP
analyzed three legislative proposals that typified the major
approaches to health care reform as introduced by Sen. Rockefeller
(S. 1177), Rep. Stark (H.R. 650) and Rep. Russo (H.R. 1300).
Additionally, we analyzed the plan introduced by Rep. Matsui (H.R.
3393) because it was the only proposal developed specifically to
address the needs of women and children.
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The purpose of these analyses was not to endorse or critique
specific proposals, but to assess the extent to which the debate
and work on Capitol Hill was addressing the components of health
care systems which we know to be important to improving maternal
and child health. We wanted to inform and educate those involved
in developing health care proposals on these necessary components.
Our analysis should be finalized and available by this summer. I
am pleased to be able to provide you with a preliminary summary of
our findings today.

our analysis largely confirmed what we suspected -- these
prototypical legislative proposals did not devote comprehensive and
systematic attention to the MCH infrastructure of disease
prevention and health promotion, planning and quality assurance,
and availability of providers and services needed by women,
children and adolescents. Each proposal did have provisions which
partially met some of our criteria, but these provisions were often
incidental to and likely not intended to meet the objectives of
assuring the health of women and children.

In terms of health promotion and disease prevention services,
Senator Rockefeller’s bill specifically provided for continuing a
number of categorical public health prograns, including
immunizations and lead poisoning prevention, as well as health
center programs in medically underserved area. Mr. Matsui’s bill
provided for financing outreach services that would include health
promotion. While these two bills gave some attention to these
public health services, none of the four proposals suggested a
comprehensive approach of ongoing surveillance and needs assessment
leading to prevention strategies targeted to specific at-risk
populations. None suggested an agency or program such as Title V
that would be accountable for health promotion and disease
prevention for women and children.

Our findings regarding provisions for planning, coordinating
and assuring the quality of MCH services were similar. There were
some provisions in all four proposals, but none took a systematic
approach. Provisions for collecting data were present but limited
and largely intended for claims processing and budgeting rather
than planning purposes. The bills were largely silent on
development and monitoring of standards that would assure that the
care needed by women, children and adolescents would be provided.
Mr. Matsui’s bill provides for demonstration funds to improve the
delivery and quality of MCH services and Mr. Rockefeller provides
for conducting outcomes research. Again, none of the bills
provides a point of public accountability and MCH-specific
expertise to assess needs, plan, coordinate and monitor services
for women and children.

AMCHP’s criteria for availability of services and providers
to meet the needs of women and children are only partially
addressed in the proposals. Mr. Rockefeller’s proposal devotes
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attention to assuring an adequate distribution and mix of
preventive, primary and specialty care providers, and provides for
development of health centers and clinics for medically underserved
populations. None of the proposals makes any provision for
supporting regionalized systems of specialty care. Regionalized
perinatal care systems, where women and babies at high risk of
serious problems are referred to tertiary medical centers and
providers equipped to meet their needs , have been credited with
much of our progress in reducing infant mortality. These and
similar systems must be maintained if we are to avoid backsliding.

Mr. Matsui’s proposal devotes significant attention to
providing family support services; home visiting, counseling and
respite care are just a few examples. Mr. Russo’s and Mr.
Rockefeller’s bills also contain some limited provisions. while
all families <can benefit from support services, they are
particularly critical for families with more intense service needs
due to such factors as poverty, adolescent pregnancy, and chronic
illness or disability. Mr. Matsui’s bill would provide some of
these support services for poor children and pregnant women, and
for children whose special health care needs would qualify them for
extended benefits. The Matsui plan includes child care at service
sites, translation services, care coordination, and screening
follow-up. Optional services also include: therapeutic foster

care, pediatric drug treatment, parent training, and in~home crisis
management.

Turning to the other major component of AMCHP'’s Framework --
Personal Health Services Coverage and Administration ~- we find a

much better match with what women and children need, particularly
in Mr. Matsui’s bill.

All four bills aim to provide universal coverage (although the
Matsui bill would do so only for children, adolescents and pregnant
women) , with one major exception. Except for Mr. Stark’s bill, the
proposals would exclude coverage of illegal alien residents. AMCHP
strongly believes that access to services and coverage must be
provided for illegal resident children and pregnant women if for no
other reason than to minimize the costs of treatment needed when
preventive and primary care is denied. All of the proposals make
some provision for low-income and special needs children by
eliminating any cost-sharing for low-income families, providing for
continuation and conversion mechanisms, and providing catastrophic
care coverage.

All of the plans are striving for uniformity in benefits, with
low-income and high-risk individuals having access to some, often
unspecified, level of additional benefits. Physicians services,
hospital care, outpatient surgery and emergency room care would be
covered in a manner similar to most health insurance plans today.




66

Preventive care benefits in all four plans extend far beyond
what has been offered in the past by most private carriers
(excluding HMOs) . Specifically, well-child exams and
immunizations: family planning services; prenatal and other
reproductive care; genetic screening and consultation; and
preventive dental care are covered in every plan. However, other
preventive services, such as preconceptional care, breast and
cervical cancer screening: and early intervention services for at-
risk and young children are less apt to be covered or defined as
specific covered benefits.

Major differences can be seen among the plans in their
coverage of specific major medical and extended care services.
Except for Mr. Matsui’s bill, which requires a plan of care to
avoid arbitrary limitations on extended care services, the bills
generally do not define the amount, duration or scope of services
that will or will not be reimbursed. By far, Matsui’s bill offers
the most generous package of benefits with the only exclusion being
long-term home health services and long-term skilled nursing
facility services. Allied health services would be covered as long
as they are authorized under state law and consistent with a plan
of care developed in consultation with the attending primary care
physician.

Mr. Russo’s bill also calls for a generous package of extended
care benefits with prior certification requirements for certain
home and community-based services. Licensed allied health services
are covered, as authorized under state law. Mental health and
substance abuse benefits are covered, but limited. A wide range of
additional services, such as care coordination and home visiting
services, could be covered at the Secretary’s discretion, but are
not specifically defined in this plan.

Mr. Rockefeller’s bill attempts to offer a basic health
services package with limited extended care benefits. Mental
health and substance abuse inpatient and outpatient benefits are
covered, but restricted. Care coordination, prescription drugs,
allied health services, assistive devices, therapeutic day care,
hospice care, and long-term home and community care are not
covered. Under Mr. Rockefeller’s proposal, preventive benefits
include EPSDT services, but it is unclear if the definition used in
the bill is consistent with current EPSDT law, which allows for
comprehensive coverage of extended care services.

Mr. Stark’s bill covers Parts A & B of Medicare plus
additional preventive benefits, pregnancy-related services,
prescription drugs, and eyeglasses and hearing aids. However,
among allied health service providers, only occupational and
physical therapists’ services are covered. Care coordinaticn, home
visiting, therapeutic day care, and long-term home and community
care are not covered in this primarily Medicare plan.
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Simple comparisons of benefits, without considering cost-
sharing requirements, may yield inappropriate conclusions regarding
the "generosity" of benefits. Service coverage in combination with
cost-sharing requirements will have differing effects on children
with and without special health care needs. For example, a healthy
child covered by Mr. Russo’s or Mr. Stark’s plan may fare very well
because they mainly require preventive and primary health services,
which are covered with little or no deductible or co-payments. Mr.
Matsui’s and Mr. RocKefeller’s bills have greater cost-sharing
reguirements. A child with special needs, on the other hand, may
have greater financial protection under Matsui’s and Rockefeller’s
plans because of the scope of coveved benefits and the cap on
annual out-of-pocket expenditures.

Finally, the four proposals are uneven in their provisions for
consumer-oriented policies that assure appropriate utilization,
quality, and cost-efficiency. The bills do not specifically
address policies that would assure appropriate duration, scope,
frequency and setting for covered services, such as prior
authorization and precertification for intensive services, or
consumer-preferences for provider types and settings.

In terms of payment procedures, all of the bills would provide
for simplified claims processing. Mr. Matsui and Mr. Rockefeller
provide for formal appeals processes for providers and families.
All bills but Mr. Matsui‘’s would require providers to accept
payments without balance billing.

All bills devote some attention to assuring that payment rates
are adequate to assure provider participation, and all contain some
measures designed to control costs. Mr. Matsui includes incentives

for use of preventive health services and a range of providers and
settings.

In summary, AMCHP’s analysis of four major legislative
proposals for health care reform confirmed that Congressional
policy makers have largely confined their focus to the financing of
health care. Uneven and marginal attention has been paid to
reforming systems to assure that health services are available and
designed to meet women’s and children’s needs and to improve health
outcomes. Provisions for health systems infrastructure are
particularly critical to women and children with more extensive
needs for health and related support services due to such factors
as poverty and chronic illness or disability.

Even when we focus on the financing of personal health
services for women and, children, and adolescents, all but Mr.
Matsui‘s bill omit, limit, or fail to specify the inclusion of some
services needed by women and children. These omissions are of
particular importance for women and children whose specific needs
have historically been neglected by the general medical care
system.
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RECOMMENDATIONS

AMCHP and many of our colleagues in the public health and
wonen and children’s services arenas firmly believe that specific
attention must be devoted to policies and resources that will
assure that families have access to and utilize services that will
promote their children’s health. Improved financing of care is a
necessary but not sufficient step toward that goal. To
comprehensively reform health care, explicit attention must be
devoted to the infrastructure of health services, and to financing
of services for those with special needs. AMCHP today offers the
following preliminary recommendations for the Committee’s
consideration:

1. Any proposal for reforming the financing of health care
services should incorporate a benefit package for
children, adolescents and pregnant women that is at least
comparable to that included in Mr. Matsui’s bill,
particularly in its provisions for additional services
for low-income and special needs families.

Legislation and financing for long-term care services for
children with severe and/or multiple disabilities needs
to be developed either as part of reform to assure
universal access or through a separate vehicle addressing
long-term care. Such legislation must give explicit
attention to meeting children’s and adolescents’ and
their families’ needs, which differ in some respects from
those of adult disabled and elderly populations.

Provisions for financing and delivery of care for
resident illegal alien children and pregnant women should
be included in health care reform.

All existing public health programs should be maintained
with adequate funding at least until such time as any
financing reforms are fully implemented and their impact
on services and outcomes assessed, or until comprehensive
reform proposals that include provisions for health
system infrastructure are enacted.

Last, but most ideally, Congressional policy makers
should work with public and private sector health care
leaders to develop specific proposals for reforming and
better supporting the health services infrastructure.
Legislative authority and resources need to be dedicated
to those services and activities that will not be
financed through insurance coverage mechanisms. Policies
and financial support are needed for personal health
services and health systems infrastructure to mend our
fragmented system.
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Through development of its framework and analyses, AMCHP has
taken steps to articulate what we as public health experts believe
are the necessary components of health services infrastructure and
financing needed to assure the health of women and children. Wwe
are also beginning a process to outline our vision of the future
role of the Title V program in a health care environment which
provides universal financing. We have been gratified to share our
efforts to date with you today, and stand ready to work with you to
better address the health of women and children in the future.
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MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH FRAMEWORK FOR
ANALYZING HEALTH CARE REFORM PLANS

PREAMBLE

Nauonal attention currently 15 focused on ways to beuer support children and familics, and toassure access 1o healih case forall, The
Association of Matemal and Child Health Programs {AMCHP), 2 national nonprofit organization which brings together state puhlic health
programsaddressing the needs of women in their seproductive years, children, youth, and families, shares both these guals. As public health
experts with amandate o assure the health of all mothers and children. AMCHP members ase pasticularly concerned about the intessection
of the goals of financing and comprehensive services.

There has been growing 5 that the pi 1, tnad 1y fi and vficn conflung or overlapping prograns and
pokcies currently 1 place are not sufficient o achicve significant progress in reaching cither of these goals A farge numiber of proposals
10 assure access 10 health care have been advanced: some focus only on childien and pregnant women, some encompass the cntire
population,and some of the lalier give priority 10 women and children in phased-in approaches. Whileall of these propasals aim toymprove
the financing of health care, they vary greatly in provisions for assuring that care is available, aceessible, comprehensise, of high quality,
and cost-effective, particularly :n prometing the health of women and children.

As the nanonul debate ¢ oives about altemative approaches 10 resolving the health care financing dilemma  there appears 10 be a
growing awasencss that finanving reform alone will not be suflicient to casure that the Year 2000 health objectives tor the nation are
achicved. The organization, admuntstration and delivery of health services must be partof the deliberaions if we are truly to achies ¢ health
care reform. These eonsid are parti ly Imp to and child health status. Health caze will be ncomplerc if we fail
10 address services and act itics known 0 wmprove birth outcomes, protect chitdren and south from preventable disease, dicahiluy and
death. promote healthy developnient, and impros ¢ family {unctioning. These servicesare imprortant 10 the health of all fanilies, and thunt
e responsive Lo the special needs uf children and youth with chromie iliness and disabulities and their famihics.

MCH Principles For Health Care Reform

The Avsoxiation of Matemal and Child Health Programs has developed the following framewaork 1o deseribe what it helicves are the
esseanal components of wrvigy detivery and financing systenis needed 10 meet the nceds of all funiies Four maet prin iples are central
1o the (ramework

Unnersal soeess o approprate. comprebensive, cocrdinated, continuous care repardioss of age. Lanply comsenion, inceme of
employ ment statirs, feseleni ¢ thizenship wattes: or dagnaus or functonal seatus shaukl be [N
assunng and improving bealth statns

rdod as tundase el to promenag,

Public health pre v nteon and promonon and organized heaith care delivery sysiems must complement financing raes hanisms wassure
that community-based. tamily -centered health and support services ase in place 10 promeie the ophmal bealth and well-bemg of
women, children 2nd fanilics

Consumer and fanuly insolvcment in healiks care system design, mplemenlation and memionng is ey o eosunng e qualiy and
efficacy of carc

Tedoral, stue anid bocal publa heaith agencies have experse, current mandates and catieal feles o plas ue g osanat, poh. s
devetopment and a<enranee of ealih senvices that nurst be incorporated 1n any comprehicn e Bealth care relomn agomda
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The Role Of Public Agencies
This f rk does not identify & specific agency Of program tocasmy out functi 1ated 10 public healthand personal health service
iystemsinft ganization, or administrati The AMCHP concurs. howe vez, with the Institte of Medicine that the critical roles
“of policy devel and mustbeca.rriedoulbypublicheahha,gcncicsalfcdual.smundIocallcvclsim\ehmh.h
care systam is 1o function well. Further, recognizing that women and children have special needs which require specific expertise and an
accountable Jocus of public responsibilisy, there will continue to be a noed for 3 financing and an infr u going

auention to their needs.

The AMCHP believes that the histarical mission and current mandates of the Title V¥ Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant
program are consistent with the public health ageacy roles that are necessary in health care system reform. Roles cumrently implemented
by state Matermat and Child Health programs which arc consistent with those in the framework include: monitoring health satus and
services, and developing plans, policies and imp hem: providing financial support ical assi training andoth
supports 10 tacilitaze development and maintenance of sysiems of inated ity-based P ive care; and collecting,
analyzing and reporting data to assure services quality and accountability,

Title V has long served as a residual financer of health care, a role that is likely todimi ish idcrably, gh not entircly, when
significant reform in health carc finaneing occurs, It is likely that MCH professional expenti and fi 1 will inuetobe
needed 10 support services availability, and an infs of hensive care i ing social, education and Support services with

medical care. Such resources also will be needed to develop, pilorlrand evaluate new intervention and sysiems strategics.

State Title V p played an imp role in imp ing Medicaid expansions by ing in d T of and
d ing benefit » recruiing and cestifying providerstoserve i d of women and ¢hildren: and by ¢ inati
care for familics with multipte and special needs. 1989 d 10 Title V reinforced the role of the MCH program in assuring
preventive, primary and specialty health and suppor services for ail mothers and children, and explioitly stated the program sole I
providing. prumoung and facilitating the develop of ity-based. family d inated systems of care. The AMCHP
believes tha: MCH prog) * expertise will 10 be needed under universal financing 10 assurc that increased access results 1n
improved health outcomes.

\_  This framework has been developed by the Association for use by statz and national policymakers, progran adiminssicators and
advocates in cvaluaung or developing health care reform plans and proposals. The Association has not made recommendlanons for
financing mechanisms: the AMCHP framewaork focuses instead on needed MCH sctvices and system Capacities.

_—_—_——_——_————_——_———'—_—_’_

FRAMEWORK FOR MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH (MCH) SYSTEMS INFRASTRUCTURE

1. Disease preveniion znd health promotivn services are newborn screening: geactics disgase screeming and
universally available to women, children and their fami- & ing: regionalized systcms of [ 1 and nco-
lics through public health activities. Accountability for natal high-tisk services: high-risk wacking and follow-
dereloping, coordinating, monitoring and ¢valuating up services; early mtervention scrvices: and infectious
these services and programs rests with pablic health aisease control).

gencies. Joint planning and imp} ion is carried
out with community-level public and private agencies, D. Develop and impl of public inf
organizations, and providers, and with consuiners and tion and outreach programs designed to improve health
families. These services and activities should include: care access and uulization, with targeung to rexch

culturally diverse as well as high-risk populations; and
A Ongomg surveiltance of health stius and services.

€. Dewelop and 1my of comprehensive

B impl of pruvary ¢ strategies {c.g.. health education programs and risk reducuon X uvitics

relauve 1o myury. lead poisoming. AIDS. chronic dis- (addressing fanuly life. parenuing skills: substance abuec;

case. iImmumzation, ci¢ ) with targeung 10 populations AIDS: family planming; Fecconceplionalcare. eie Yavail-

atfisk;, able throughout she hfe span 10 age-appropriate sct-
tings.

C. Impl of systems of p secon-
dary prevennon seevices (including. for cxample.




Publicaccountability for MCH systems planning.qual-
ity assurance, and coordination is defined in public
healthstatutestoinclude:

MCH Data Sysiems Design and Management

«  Eqablishing information systcms that allow se-
porting of umform data across mulupi¢ service
providers, payers and programs; and

»  Producing data usclul for national, state and comn-
munity assessmentand monitoring of health status.
service quality (process, content, outcome). uli-
2auon, and costs.

Assignment of responsibility 10 an identified unit of the
health agency. dirccted and staffed by individuals with
public MCH expenise, for data-based needs assessmen

and public planning processes which include racially
and ly scpres: -family and
provider participation, and for reporting related 10 the
health of women, children and families.

ive ©

Coordinauion of public and private MCH scrvices and
financing through thed dMCH umtadd;

«  Development of (or adoplion of national) uniform
definitions of benefits and senvices across service
seclors:

«  Develop and of policies.p
and senvice delivesy mechanisms implemenied at
state and commnnity levels that faciliate access (o
programs and services (including, for cxample,
common forms, co-locaton of intake and/or serv-
ice delivery, clc.);

«  Development of state and local interageney agree-
ments delincating service provision. coordination,
- .

T g. and

P
reles: and

o Effccuve use of available pablic (federal, state and
Tocal) and privaic financial resources 10 maximze
clicnt access to care and expand the scope of
avinlable health and suppost seewvices

Responsibiity for MCH services quality assurance
through the MCH unit assuning that

«  Both publicly and privately provided or financed
health services are delivered consistent with na-
uonally recogniscd professional standards of case:

«  Asnceded. standards of care for cnhanced health
and support services {c g children with special
health care nceds, ligh-nsk perinatal, cic.) are
developed and promulgated:

[
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«  Providers mect credentialing requirements;

«  Service provision ismonitored on an Ongeinghasis

through structurcd revicw processes:

«  Mcchanisms exist for regular review and revision
of standards 1o reflect changes in technology and/
or statc-of-the-art practices:

«  Moniloning includesevaluationof family/consumer
satisfaction, provider sansfacuon, delivery proc-
¢ss, ¢osl. and health s1alus outcomes:

«  Practices andfor programs determinad ineffecuve
incontributing 10 desired health outcomes are dis-
conlinucd:

- M cxst for diss of inf
tion on best prxuces; and

- Adequate funds and other resources are directed
toward service demonstranons and cducation and
training for statc and local MCH ser ice providers.

3. Provider/Serviceavailability isassured by the MCHunit
in collaboration with all state and community -level pri-
vate and public sector providers.agencies and payerstal

A,

Devclopguidchines for dmixol
preventive, primary and specually scivke praviders
nceded within defined geographic arcas (at cominunity.
regional and state fevelsh,

drctrrh
distr

Encourage appropriale usc of and-level pracunoners
and aliernative providers such as appropriaiely skitled
and supervised lay bealth workers,

Develop requirements or incentives o assure full par-
i dequitabl hic di fscrv
L ) L il | SCrv.
1ce providers offenng primasy, specialty and subspe-
ciafly carel

Support. through rolicies, truming and financial sup-
POt as necessary, regionalized specinliy SCRvices;

Develop mechamsmstoassistfamificsin - services
(¢ g..transportation, support for medicauy -+ Cln dstaysy
and to

Orgamize and support, as nceded, tasic and enhanced
health and family support services partcatarly for
populations of women. ¢luldren and youth w ih specul
needs (¢ g . parent U2ining, FESpe cre. hotne viviting,

[ & g@appropriate assessment of nisk, adolescent preg:

nancy and PATCALING SeM ICCS, Cic.)




Al women, children and families have access to health
care financing regardless of age: family composition,
income, or employment status; citizenship; or diagnosis
or functional status. To ensure access, the plan/pro-
gram:

A

Provides health carc coverage for ait members of the
family unit without waiting periods. Fanmilics are de-
fined 10 inciude an individual, the individual®s spouse,
and children of the individual and spouse, including
foster children and children in the process of adoption:

Has stmple apphicauon forms, cnrollment procedures
and assistance that assurc aceess regardless of language
used and include interpretcr and translation services;

Is affordable for familics. Provides. without cost-
sharing, coverage for all MCH preventive services
regardiess of family income. Cost-shanng is not im.
posed for any services for fow-income families.

Establishesany cost-sharing atgraduated levelsrelatve
10 Income and resources, and consistent regardlese of
nsk. Limits are applied to any premiums, deductibles.,
copayments and out-of-pocket expenditures. and 1n-
clude annual and lifcume caps to limit family liability:

Provides continuation and conversion mechanisms re-
laicd t0age: diagnosis or functional status; and changes
n employ ment or employer plans: and

Includes corerage for catastrophic care.

The plan provides payment for a comprcehensive, con-
tinuous and coordinated array of MCH personal health
services thatincludes preventive, primary, specialty and
long-term care andsupportservices, provided.asappro-
priate, in offices, clinics. schools. homes, and other alter-
native scttings. Covered MCH services inciude:

A

Reproductive health carc. including routine cxams,
breastand cors ical cancer screcning, sexually transinit-
1o discase screening/Ucatment, eic.:

Famuly planning, including cducation, contracepuve

cae. pregl y testing and ¢ ling:

Preconceptional care. micluding risk assessment (with
geneuc screening andconsultation asappropnate), health
promoton and intervention go reduce risks:

Risk appropriate prenatal care in accordance with stan-
dards of the Amcerican College of Ohetnicans and
Gyneologits:

CRITERIA FOR PERSONAL HEALTH SERVICES COVERAGE AND ADMINISTRATION

Well-child cxaminations which mdud: all appropmxc
ing services and i
standa:ds of the American Academy of Pcdumcs.

Develop Iy appropri icipatory guid
{chent and/or pasent education).

P ive dental care, i
and sealants as appropriate;

g cxam, prophylaxis:

and of sus-

' pcclcd health or developmental problems:

Home visiling services o provide cnhanced risk-appro-
pnate maternal and child health assessment, education
and support:

Care coorGination (case management). including desig-
nation of 2 “medical home” or primary care provider;

Risk-appropriate peri and 1 carc.including
wransfer to special perinatal centers for mother andior
infans;

Quipatient provider seeviees for dragnous and treat-
ment of acutc or cpisadic health conditions.

. Qutpaucnt surgery:

N. Emergency room care;

Prescription drugs:

Optical, hearing devices;

. Curatsve denial care,

Inpatient cvaluation of suspected health or develop-
mental problems:

Inpauent care and trcauncnt (ncfuding surgery and
post-operative care);

Allied health and relaied services sich as sacial work:
nutnbon: occupational, physical, specch, language and
respiratory therapics, avdiology.

Mental health care {outpaticnt and inpatient}.

Alcoholism and drug addicuon treatment services
{outpauicnt and inpatient).

. Early Intervention scrvices provided inage appropriate

community sciags;

PTST COPY AVAILASLE




X. Parent(

giver)training priate and necessary
10 support child health and developmental services for

tugh-nisk children; and

Specialty and support services for chronic health and
d p 1 impai and conditi including
habititative medical equipment, assistive deviees (for
mobdility, communication and activaties of daily living)
and supplies (including special f etc.); thera-
peunc day care: hospice care: and long-ierm chronic
care (h based ings)

EICE:

R,

Qq that providers accept assigs of
benefits other than family deducuble and copay-
ment amounts: and

Formal appeals processes applicable to beneficiar-

1¢s and providers.

Provider payment rates and mechanisms assure ade-
quate participation by the full range of nceded MCH
health professions through:

»  Adequate reimbursement levels 10 assure that all

3. The plan incorporales consumer-oriented administra-

tive policies and procedures that assure appropriate
quality, utilization, efMiciency and cost-¢Miciency.

health clinicians (including mid-level practitio-
ners, specialists and subspectalists) and facilities
pasucipale as providers under the plan:

A.  Appropnaic duralion, scope, frequeney of and settings Appropriate reimbursement schedules 10 assure

for provision of covered secondary and tertiary level
SCRVIC d incd throughp i ion or prior
authorizatien performed by appropriately credentialed
and MCH-cxperienced health professionals:

F decision-making isguided by stan-
dards of care or protocols for acule, recurring and
chronic 1liness and health impairments:

C and sccond op are paid for
under the plan upon coasunicr, PRMACY care Pro-
vider or authorzation review personie] request.
and

Mechanisms cxist 1o obuin information on and
include consideration of individual client (family)
perspectives regarding service necds and service
delivery (provider and/or seuting) preferences.

Procedures are implemented to reduce family and pro-
vides burden 1n forms complet:on and 10 cxpedite pay -
inent 1o chients and/or providers, which inctude.

»  Simple claims processing forms and procedures:

+  Coordination of claims conducied by insurcrs or
providers, and not familics:

that no providers are required 10 bear a dispropor-
uonate share of costs; and

Timely and efficient provider payments. with pro-
vider access 10 consulation and assistance n
implementing the billing process.

Costcontrols are established through mechanisms such
ast

Implementaion of incenuises for provision and
utihzativn of MCH preseatine health servives:

Use of a range of MCH health care providers and
seevice delivery site aliernatives;

Use of managed care arrangements in conjunction
with MCH provider ané service quality controls
and monitonng:

Prohibiuons regarding balance billing: and

Established limits on the percentage of costs for
adminssisation.

The MCH Framework for Analyzing Health Care Reform Plans was developed by a special subcommutice of the AMCHP's Finance and
Children with Specral Health Care Needs Committees and was approved by the Association’s Executive Council in November. 1991.
Assistance i development and ediing of the Jocument was provided by Holly Grason, M.A., Deputy Director. Consultauon was provided
by New England SERVE. Develof of this was supported in part through a codperative agreement with the Matemal and
Child Health Bureau, Depanment of Heaith and Human Services, No. MCU 116046-01. For information or additional coprcs. contact:

Association of Maternal and Child Health Programs « 2001 L Street, N.W. - Washington, DC 20036 + (202) 775-043%¢

Richard P. Nelson, MDD,
President

Catherine A. Hess, M.S.W.
Fvecutive Director
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Chairwoman ScurOEDER. Thank you again, Dr. Nelson. And I am
sure your written testimony analyzing the different bills out in
fron}tlt of us is going to be very helpful to my colleagues as we look
at that.

We now move along to Mr. Haislmaier. We welcome yocu. Your
statement is in the record and the floor is yours.

STATEMENT OF EDMUND F. HAISLMAIER, POLICY ANALYST,
FOR HEALTH CARE ISSUES, THE HERITAGE FOUNDATION,
WASHINGTON, DC

Mr. HarsLMAIgR. Yes. [ am afraid that I will need to leave fairly
soon today, as I mentioned to the staff. Unfortunately, I have to
catch a flight.

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. Sure.

Mr. HaisLmaier. Since you already have my statement, I will
depart somewhat from what I have submitted, and will address
some of the problems that were brought up in the first panel here.
In my statement I did not deal much with the issue of insurance
reform, and I would like to elaborate here on that a little bit.

I would start with the observation that when you see everyone
doing the wrong thing in a given situation, it is not that all the
people involved are bad, it is probably that the rules are bad.

In other words, when we see hospitals overcharging, or insurers
dumping sick people or things like that, it is not that all insurers
are bad or all hospitals are bad, or all doctors are bad. It is that the
incentive structure is often what is wrong.

The analogy I use is, imagine if in football the rules said that
instead of getting a penalty for personal fouls, the team that in-
jured opposing players would get extra points. You would have
mayhem on the playing field and it wouldn’t do any good to lecture
or berate the players, or the coaches or the fans. You would need
to change the rules.

The proposal that we at the Heritage Foundation have come up
with for a consumer choice health system is designed to change the
rules, to create a more efficient system of financing health care
and a more compassionate system that covers everyone.

Very briefly, the key points of our proposal are: First, employers
would be required to convert into cash wages the money now spent
on health benefits. Second, the Federal Government would then
provide individuals and families directly with new tax credits for
money spent on all health expenses. And I stress all health ex-
penses, not just the purchase of health insurance but the purchase
of medical care dut-of-pocket as well as the purchase of insurance.

Third, the size of the tax credits would vary depending on the
income and health expenses of the family. So for example, the fam-
ilies we had here this morning that have larger health expenses
relative to their income than, say, somebody else with the same
income, would get more generous assistance in the form of larger
tax credits. These tax credits would even be refundable.

Fourth, the tax credits would be funded by gradually eliminating
the present tax exclusion for employer-provided insurance, which is
what supports the existing system. This means that the reforms
would be budget neutral. It is not absolutely necessary for them to

]
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be budget neutral. We have suggested this because we think budget
neutrality is attractive, given the current climate in Congress.

If someone was to say, “You are not providing enough help to
this particular group, they need more money,” you could make our
proposal more generous by adding more money. Of course you can
come up with more money either through higher taxes or budget
cuts. We would argue for budget cuts elsewhere. But if you can
come up with more money, it can certainly be blended into our pro-
posed system.

Fifth, all heads of households would be required to purchase a
basic catastrophic health insurance policy covering themselves and
their family members.

And sixth, health insurance regulations would be changed to give
policyholder the right to renew their policies and to eliminate the
practice of experience rating renewal premiums.

I am personally familiar with some of the problems that were
discussed here this morning. I was uninsured for five years after I
got out of school. Like the majority of uninsured people, I was for-
tunate that I did not have a serious illness. But I took a very big
risk because the jobs that I worked in, including political cam-
paigns, simply didn’t provide health insurance.

I also have a brother whose family has been faced with many of
the same problems as the families on the panel this morning, due
to the illness of a child and his attempt to go from being employed
by a company to being self employed. At one point he was forced to
go back to being employed by a company which offered health ben-
efits. So I am very familiar with these problems.

I would briefly make a couple of points here about insurance
that were not in my written testimony. Indeed I am in the process
of writing a longer piece on the subject.

The first point I would make is that there really are limits to
what any kind of an employment-based health insurance system
can achieve. Therefore, we should not be surprised that there are
problems with an employment-based system.

To start with, there are always people on the margins of the
work force. They are workers who are low income, or seif em-
ployed, or part time, or seasonal laborers. There are always these
people on the margins of the work force. Of course, there also are
unemployed people.

Therefore, if we tie health care to employment in any way, shape
or form, we are buying into a whole set of additional problems
right off the bat. That is why I see the ¢aly real reforms as being
. aes that move away from an employment-based system, either in
the direction I have suggested of an individual consumer choice
system or, quite honestly, in the direction of a government-run na-
tional system. I just do not see that we can make much progress
continuing with the existing employment-based system.

The next point I would make is that we do not have a health in-
surance system in this country. What we really have is a prepay-
ment of medical care system.

Now in some cases that makes sense. But in the case of major
illness, it does not make sense to have prepayment of medical care.

Insurance in any form is the acceptance and management of
risks. So when we see health insurers, unlike insurers in every
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other area, avoiding risks instead of accepting risks, I think that
should be a flag signaling that there are serious prehlems with the
way the system works.

Finally, insurance is certainty. That is the commodity that insur-
ers are selling. The problem is that today we are not getting cer-
tainty out of our health insurance. That is another flag, I think,
that should tell us we really don’t have true health insurance, but
rather prepayment of medical care.

What would a true health insurance system look like? It would
look like your life insurance. You would be given a premium based
on the expected risk, not just for the short term of a year—and this
is% where many of the problems come today—but over a long period
of time.

If you think about it, all policyholders of a life insurer will even-
tually die. So it is not a question of whether a loss will occur. It is a
question of when. Therefore, life insurers spread risk over time.

I think the same holds true in health care as well. We will all
eventually become sick. Therefore, health insurance should look to
;pre;ad risks over time, not just among a group on a short-term

asis.

Under a true health insurance system, people would initially be
charged a premium to match their risks. But then they would have
a right to renew their policy. They could not be dropped by the in-
surer. Furthermore, the renewal premium they would be charged
in subsequent years would be based on the total claims experience
of all the people covered by the insurer and not just the experience
of each particular individual.

1 believe that this is the kind of certainty that Americans are
looking for, together with a more portable system of insurance. I
also think, as I mentioned in my testimony, that a consumer-driven
system will offer powerful incentives for the purchase and use of
preventive care services and will turn managed care into a system
for helping people stay healthy, as opposed to what it has now
become, as Ms. Brown pointed out, a demand control tool.

Thank you very much.

[Prepared statement of Edmund F. Haislmaier follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF EDMUND F. HAISLMAIER, POLICY ANALYST FOR HEALTH
CaRge IssuEs, THE HerrraGE FoUNDATION, WASHINGTON, DC

Madam Chairwoman, Members of the Committee. My name is Edmund Haislmaier and
1 am the Policy Analyst for Health Care Issues at The Heritage Foundation. 1 appreciate the
opportunity to testify before you today on the issue of health care reform, particularly in relation
to its likely effects on women, children and families. The following statement represents my own

views and should not be construed as representing any official position of The Heritage
Foundation.

Practically everyone agress that America’s present health system costs too much and
denies needed care to too many people, and that both problems are getting worse.  But, beyond
this general agreement, opinions diverge sharply over the precise factors responsible for the
system’s problems and the best reforms to institute.

Congress is now considering a variety of health care reform proposals. Although these
proposals may seem to differ widely, they can in fact be segregated into three basic categories.

REFORM OPTIONS

First, are proposals which aim to build on the employment based insurance system which
currently covers the majority of working Americans and their families by plugging existing
coverage gaps. They are often characterized as “"play or pay" or "employer mandate® proposals.
These terms refer to their common, basic feature of requiring employers to either purchase a
required minimum package of private health insurance coverage for their workers and dependents,
or pay a payroll tax to fund similar coverage through a public plan.

Second, are proposals to replace the current system with some form of “single payer" or
“national health insurance” model. In these proposals, a government agency of some form is the
sole payer for health services provided to all Americans, and imposes budgets, price controls,
expenditure limits and other direct constraints on health care providers.

Third, are "consumer choice” or "tax reform" proposals. They would construct a universal
system bascd on the principles of consumer choice and market competition. To accomplish this,
they would change current health care tax policy so as to empower consumers by giving them
control over the their own health care spending, while also providing more generous, direct
assistance to the needy and disadvantaged. Health care providers and insurers would, in turn, be

forced by market competition to respond to consumer needs and demands. The Heritage
Foundation has advanced such a proposal.

In the balance of this testimony, T will first offer my analysis of the underlying causes of
the heaith care problems we now face. I will then describe the basic features of The Heritage
Foundation's consumer choice health care reform proposal and how it would address those
problems. Finally, 1 will offer an analysis of the likely effects of our proposal, particularly as
it would effect women and children, together with some observations concerning the other two
basic approaches to health care reform.

[
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SOURCE OF THE PROBLEMS IN THE HEALTH SYSTEM

Much of the present health care debated centers on the high, and constantly escalating,
cost of health care. But I do not believe that health care costs, per se, are the real problem. The
real problem is that health care in this counuy today is a bad valve. In other words, as
individuals and as a nation we are spending a great deal on health care, but we do not belicve
we are getting our money’s worth. There is 8 very important distinction between cost and value.
It is possible for something to cost a lot and still be a good value for the money spent. It is also
possible for a lower cost item to be a good value.

In the case of our health system, it is not that the goods and services we receive are
necessarily inferior or poor quality, it is that they are not worth the price we are paying.
Consegquently, we complain about health care costs when our real concem should be value.

The first thing 1 believe Americans want in health care is a more efficient system. In
other words, a system that gives them better value for money. The problem with government-
financed or regulated health systemns, as proposed in “single-payer" or “play or pay” schemes, is
that, ultimately, they can only offer to reduce costs through a strategy of “less for less" -- less
spending in exchange for less benefits. But better value implies a "more for less" strategy --
getting more benefits while spending less.  Another term for a "more for less” strategy is
increased productivity. But governments cannot legislate productivity increases. They can only
be produced by sound, competitive markets in which consumers are rewarded with cash in their

pockets for choosing better value for money, and providers are rewarded with more business for
offering better value for money.

The second thing I believe Americans want in health care is a compassionate system. In

other words, a system that provides the same care and benefits to the poor and the sick as it does
to the healthy and wealthy. :

I would arguc that government’s role in health care should be first to create a sound,
competitive market that offers better value for money. Next, government should take steps to
increase the purchasing power of the disadvantaged so they can buy the medical care and health
insurance they need, thus creating a universal and compassionate system.

The present health system is clearly neither efficient nor compassionate. The principal
reason is the current tax treatment of health benefits.

Money spent by an employer on a worker's health insurance is really part of the worker’s
wages. But under federal tax law, it is not counted as taxable income to the worker, who thus
avoids paying any federal income or payroll taxes, or state income taxes, on it. This policy
effectively offers Americans very generous tax relief on their medical expenses, but only on two
conditions. First, they must purchase their medical care through health insurance, and second,
they must purchase their heatth insurance through their employer.
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In many cases, however, it would be more desirable or cost effective to purchase low-cost
or routine medical care directly out-of-pocket, or to buy a health insurance plan other than the
one offered by the employer. But workers who choose either of these options are heavily
penalized by losing tax relief for their medical expenses. Because they lose more in tax relief
than they gain in savings, workers often forgo these cost effective options.

Furthermore, these tax rules encourage workers to think they are buying health care with
someone else’'s money -- like an expense account lunch. As noted, the money spent on a
worker’s employer-sponsored health benefits reduces the worker’s cash wages. But, few workers
actually know how much is being spent, and even fewer have any direct say in how it is spent.
Indeed, the present employer-sponsored health insurance system is all but designed to ensure that
workers remain ignorant of the true costs of their health benefits. It also virtually guarantees that
consumers will not have the information they need, in a form they can use, to accurately
determine value for money in medical care.

The results are predictable. Because workers see little or no direct cost attached to their
increased consumption of health services, they are encouraged to demand more, even when the
costs far outweigh the likely benefits. Similarly, workers see little direct cost to them when
providers increase the prices they charge, so workers are encouraged to ignore price hikes.
Conversely, a worker with employer-sponsored health insurance who is cost conscious -- seeking
out providers who offer good quality at good prices -- is not rewarded since it is the employer
who pockets the savings. In sum, Americans have litle incentive to cunsider relative price
differences, or costs versus benefits, when making health care purchasing decisions.

At the same time, providers who offer good quality at lower prices are not rewarded with
a larger volume of business, and thus more income, sirce their patients, who are directly paying

little or nothing of the bill, or even their insurance, rarely notice. Instead, providers who

dispense more services, regardless of their benefit, or charge higher prices, get the higher
incomes.

Not only does the present system penalize efficiency and reward inefficiency, it also is
highly inequitable. The greatest tax relief for health care goes to those who need it least -- well-
paid workers with generous health benefit plans. But those without employer-sponsored
coverage, who most need help -- namely, self-employed, low wage, or part-time workers, or
employees of small business -- receive little or no tax relief for their medical care and insurance.

For example, the present tax exclusion for employer-sponsored health insurance provides
Americans with approximately $67 billion a year in tax relief. Yet of that amount, $38 billion,
or 57 percent, goes to families with annual incomes of $50,000 or more. Only $4 billion, or 6
percent, goes to families with annual incomes of $20,000 or less.

CONSUMER CHOICE HEALTH CARE REFORM

The Heritage Foundation's consumer choice health reform proposal would change these
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tax rules to give consumers direct control < ver health spending and create positive new incentives
for both consumers and providers. It also would target government assistance to thase in greatest
need. The proposal essentially consists of six basic changes.

1) Employers would be required to convert money now spent on employee health benefits
into cash wages in the first year. But beyond that, future wage rates would be subject to normal
labor-management negotiations. Employers would further be required to deduct insurance
premiums from employee paychecks and send the premiums to the insurers chosen by their
workers. Employers could also, voluniarily, serve as brokers helping workers choose insurance
plans, or arranging wholesale purchase discounts from insurers and providers.

2) The federal government would provide individuals and familics with new 1ax credits
for money spent both on health insurance and on out-of-pocket medical care, regardless of where
it is purchased. Taxpayers would get the same tax relief for purchasing health insurance through
their employer, or through a union, farm bureau, church, fraternal organization, professional
society or other group, or on their own. Furthermore, individuals and families would get the
same tax relief for a dollar spent buying medical care directly as they would for a dollar spent
on purchasing health insurance. The credits would also be bilended into the existing tax

withholding system, so taxpayers would not need to wait until the end of the year {0 get the
money back from the government.

3) The size of the new tax credits would vary depending on the size of a given
houschold’s health expenses relative 1o its income, thus providins, more tax relief to those with
lower-incomes and/or higher health-care costs. The credits v >uld also be refundable, The
Heritage Foundation proposal suggests several tax credit structures.

One version would give taxpayers a 20 percent credit for all health expenses below 10

percent of gross income. The credit would then rise to 45 percent for health expenses between
10 and 20 percent of income and to 65 percent for health expenses above 20 percent of income.

Another version would provide an initial, voucher-like tax credit of $220 per family
member toward purchasing basic, catastrophic heakh insurance. An additional 20 percent tax
credit would apply to health insurance premiums above the initial amount of $220 per family
member and all money for out-of-pocket medical bills.

4) The new tax credits would be funded by gradually climinating the present tax
exclusion for employer-sponsored health benefits and other existing health-care tax breaks.
Americans would receive the same total health-care tax relicf, but in the form of tax credits
instead of a tax exclusion. This also means the reforms will be budget neutral.

5) All heads of households would be required to purchase a basic, catastrophic health
insurance policy covering themselves and their family members. This requirement is nceded
because a small minority of irresponsible individuals might decline to purchase insurance, and
then expect the rest of society to pay for their treatment if they suffer a medical catastrophe.
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Employers would be required to report to a state agency those workers who refused to choose
an insurance plan or show proof of coverage under a policy paid by another family member. The
state would then enroll those workers and their dependents in Medicaid, or another plan chosen
by the state, and assess them premiums based on their ability to pay.

6) Health insurance regulations would be changed to give policyholders the right to
rencw their policies and to eliminate the practice of "experience rating” renewal premiums.
Policyholders would thus have the same protection in their health insurance that they now have
in their life insurance. Their insurer could not cancel or refuse to renew their coverage, or hit
them with exorbitant premium increases, if they became sick. All policyholders covered by a
given insurer would see the same percentage increase or decrease in their annual renewal
premiums, based on the percentage increase or decrease in total claims paid by the insurer.

In addition to these major steps, there would be some temporary regulations during the
transition to the new system. The regulations would guarantee that all Americans now covered
by employer-sponsored group health insurance would have their benefits converted into portable
individual or family policies with premiums no more than 25 percent higher than what their
employer now pays. This would prevent insurers from dropping coverage on those who are now
insured but who are sick or high risk, or hitting them with exorbitant premium increases.

Current government health programs, such as those for the non-working poor and the
elderly, would be retained, though some modifications of those programs should be considered
as well. But as the majority of Americans became better health care consumers, costs would be
brought under control throughout the system, allowing government programs to expand help for
those in greatest need.

BENEFITS OF A CONSUMER CHOICE HEALTH SYSTEM

A consumer choice health system of this kind would provide all Americans, including
women and children, with better value medical care and health insurance, and better access to
care. Individuals and families would make their own decisions about health care based on their
own needs and preferences. Their purchasing decisions would not be biased by the tax code,

since the new tax credits would apply equally to insurance premiums and out-of-pocket health
spending.

Some likely will prefer to pay for more of their routine medical care out-of-pocket and
buy no-frills health insurance at a savings of hundreds, or even thousands, of dollars & year on
premiums. Others will likely prefer more comprehensive coverage. For them, a managed care

plan, such as an HMO, would be able to offer significant savings by steering them to more
efficient providers.

Also, many consumers will likely find that they could get additional wholesale purchasing
discounts on insurance by buying through a group whose advice they trusted. But, no longer
would tax benefits go to only one kind of group purchasing arrangement -- namely, employer-
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sponsored groups.

Regardless of their specific choices, all Americans would have a swong incentive to buy
better value medical care and health insurance, since they would pocket the savings. In turn,
providers and insurers who offered better value services would be rewarded with more business.

Those with low incomes or high health expenses would receive the assistance they need
in buying necessary medical care and insurance through greater tax relief. At the same time,
those who are healthier or more affluent would pay more in taxes, which would cover the cost
of generous credits for the poor and the sick. But they would not object to this. They would
quickly see the advantage of spending less of their income on unnecessarily generous health
insurance coverage and instead taking the savings as (taxable) cash income to use for other
purposes. The effect would be the same as paying more in taxes because you got a raise --
something few would find objectionable.

One of the important effects of this consumer choice system would be the creation of new
incentives for preventive care, which would be of particular benefit to children. These incentives
would take three forms.

First, consumers seeking the best value for their health care doliars will find that
catastrophic insusance and preventive medical care give them the best return on their money.
While a financially catastrophic medical condition could devastate an individual or family,
premiums for catastrophic insurance are relatively cheap because such conditions are rare.
Therefore, true catasrophic insurance offers the greatest ratio of protection to cost. Similarly,
with relatively small investments in preventive care, individuals can avoid more serious
conditions and larger medical bills, making preventive care a good value as well. Because under
a consumer choice system, individuals and families pocket the savings, they will have an
incentive to first pick catastrophic insurance and preventive care.

Second, basing tax relief on health expenses, both out-of-pocket and insurance premiums,
means that individuals will receive the same help in buying preventive services as they do in
buying insurance. Because the curmrent system gives tax relief only for insurance, many people
are discouraged from buying preventive services not covered by their insurance plan, which they
must pay for out-of-pocket with after tax dollars.

Third, prohibiting health insurers from canceling policyholders means that insurers will
be forced to manage long-term risks, like they do in life insurance, not short term risks, like they
do in auto insurance. Investing in preventive care now pays dividends later in the form of
seduced illness and costs. But in the current system, most health insurance policies are one year
contracts. Thus, an insurer who offers preventive care benefits will face short term costs, but will
probably not benefit from the future savings. However, when policyholders can renew coverage
indefinitely, insurers will be forced to account for not only present but future costs as well. Thus
insurers will quickly sec that it is 10 their advantage to limit long-term potential liabilities by
investing in preventive care.

“* BESTCOPY AVRILEZLE
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Neither a single-payer system nor & play-or-pay system would provide these incentives
for preventive care. Both single-payer and play-or-pay systems are funded on an annual basis.
The administrators of such systems, corporate or government officials, would not be as concerned
with long-1erm costs as would insurers faced with the potential long-term liabilities associated
with non-canceliable policies. Governments are notoriously short sighted, and in any
employment based system employers can assume, given the increased mobility of the workforce,

that at least a significant percentage of their employees will be working for someene else in
future years.

Even more important, for preventive care to be effective it requires the willing and active
cooperation and participation of the patient. But neither a single-payer system nor a play-or-pay
system would provide patients with as strong a set of financial incentives to participate in
preventive care regimes.

Another major advantage of a consumer choice system is that it would make health
insurance portable, so that families wouldn’t lose coverage when the breadwinner changed jobs.
This would open up a new range of employment possibilities for all types of families. In
particular, portable health insurance coverage would remove a significant barrier to more
widespread self-employment. While a single payer system would offer the same portability of

coverage, there would likely continue to be some problems in this regard under a play or pay
system.

Families with more than one wage earner would also gain under a consumer choice health
system. Currently, many of these families have double health insurance coverage. By converting
to a single family policy they would be able to take home more in disposable cash income. Even
in cases wherc one of the wage eamers currently receives ncreased cash income in lieu of health
benefits, the increased cash income does not usually equal the full amount that the employer
would otherwise spend on health insurance.

Under a single payer system, a family with more than one wage eamer would not be
double covered, and so might also sec some increase in cash wages. However, much of the
potential increase would likely be taken in taxes 1o fund the system. The extent to which this
would be the casc would depend on the extent to which the system is financed out of payroll
taxes. The burden of any payroll tax falis disproportionately on families whose income is
primarily or exclusively from cash wages, as opposed to families who have significant non-wage
income, or only one, well-paid wage earner with wage income above the maximum level of the
payroll tax contribution.

How effectively double coverage would be adjusted for under a play or pay system is not
clear. Again, there would probably still be some residual problems. If there is some exemption
in a play or pay system for part-time workers, as is the case in most such proposals, it is quite
likely that many secondary wage earners would sce their employers reduce their hours to meet
the excmption. The result, of course would be reduced incomes for those families.
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Finally, in terms of the financial impact on low-income Americans a consumer choice
system offers the most progressive financing mechanism of the three basic approaches. Under
a consumer choice system, low-income individuals and families would pay less in taxes. Under

cither a single payer or a play or pay system, they would pay more in taxes since both systems
would be financed out of regressive taxes.

To raise the enormous revenues required, any single payer system would need to be
financed to a significant degree out of proportional or regressive taxes such as payroll taxes and

sales or value added taxes. Indeed, this is how all national health insurance systems abroad are
in large measure financed.

A play or pay system would be the most regressive of all. Whether employers complied
with a coverage mandate by buying insurance privately for their low-income workers or paying
a payroil contribution to a public program, the effect would be the same. Low-income workers
would see their cash wages reduced. However, employers could not reduce cash wages below
the minimum wage, so many of the currently uninsured would lose their jobs entirely.

In summation, 1 believe that a consumer choice health system, based on the kinds of
reforms outlined above, holds the greatest promise for providing Americans with what they really

want in health care -- a less costly, better value and more compassionate system that covers
everyone.
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Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Thank you very much.

And Dr. Johnson, thank you for being so patient. I know you too
have to leave at 11:00. So let me get out of your way and turn it
over to you. And the floor is yours.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT L. JOHNSON, M.D., F.A.A.P., DIRECTOR,
DIVISION OF ADOLESCENT MEDICINE, UMDNJ-NEW JERSEY
MEDICAL SCHOOL, NEWARK, NJ, AND CHAIR OF THE BOARD—
THE CENTER FOR POPULATION OPTIONS, WASHINGTON, DC

Dr. JounsoN. Well, Madam Chairwoman, either I will speak at
lightning speed or I will catch a later plane.

I want to thank the committee for this opportunity to share my
experiences with you on some of the issues which affect young peo-
ple’s access to health care in our country.

The adolescent is a poorly understood and perceived participant
in the American health care system. Most of this misinterpretation
is attributable to our failure collectively to understand the dynamic
and psychosocial and growth processes which occur during the
teenage years, and particularly to the relative absence, absence of
the adolescent from the health care system.

There are very few specific adolescent diagnoses which we con-
sider as serious. And this committee is an example today. Adoles-
cents don’t have most of these catastrophic illnesses. Therefore, we
don’t think of them as individuals who need a great deal of health
care,

Let me quickly move on to some of the areas that I have experi-
enced with my patients as barriers to health care. And the first is
financial.

Of course, adolescents face the same financial access issues that
plague all Americans. However, even if we have universal financial
access to health care, adolescents will still face additional barriers.

For example, many plans require the beneficiary to identify
themselves with a card or some other device which they present at
the time they receive health care. This card is usually issued in the
name of the primary beneficiary. And for most adolescents, that is
a parent. Others may require signature of approval from that pri-
mary beneficiary.

Therefore, even in situations in which the adolescent is legally
able to receive health care without parental knowledge, he is im-
peded from doing so. In my experience, this barrier has often led
many teenagers to avoid care for many pressing issues.

In a similar fashion, we have problems with the prescription
plan. One of my patients a couple of weeks ago came to our clinic
because he had chlamydial infection. When I saw him a week later,
he told me they hadn’t gotten the prescription yet for doxycyclin
because his mother had the prescription card and he didn’t know
how to steal it from her pocketbook.

Obviously, the adverse effects of this barrier would be mitigated
if a card or identifier were issued in the name of all the members
on the plan.

There are geographic bariiers, as well. Limited health care man-
power or the distribution of manpower affects the access of adoles-
cents who live in parts of rural America where there are no or few

[3
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providers of health care, or those who live in urban communities
where the only providers of health care are in busy hospital emer-
gency rooms.

These issues are very well known to the committee and I won't
dwell on them, except to say that if we don’t have immediacy of
health care, especially for adolescents, then that health care is
denied to them. And programs such as schoollinked or school-
based clinics and community centers have been effective in that
area.

The third barrier is one of attitude. As I alluded to in the begin-
ning of the statement, the adolescent has a vague identity as a
health care consumer. He or she is infrequently seen consistently
in most health care facilities and his or her identity to the system
and the appreciation of his or her problems and the best way to
approach them is usually based on biased stereotypes.

These stereotypes are usually limited in their recognition—limit
the recognition of adolescence as a unique time period, and there is
limited recognition of their unique psychosocial issues. And this
often creates situations where the 12-year-old early adolescent is
approached in the same manner as the 16-year-old middle adolescent.

uch approaches not only prevent effective communication be-
tween the adolescent and his or her health care provider, but they
also impede effective health care as they may cause the health care
provider to overlook many important health care issues.

For example, they may not question whether or not a 12-year-old
is sexually active and not then test him for a sexually transmitted
disease because there is a sense that 12-year-clds don’t have sexual-
ly transmitted diseases. I must tell you that tcday, when I go back
to Newark, I have a 12-year-old from suburban New Jersey who is
coming to my clinic to receive his second injection for syphilis. And
his pediatrician never thought that a 12-year-old might have sex.
There are communication gaps.

The most consistent aspect of adolescence is the constant state of
transformation that it is in. Not only does the individual adoles-
cent experience rapid biological and psychosocial changes, the gen-
eiatipn of adolescents also experiences an evolutionary metamor-
phosis.

Therefore, any service for adolescents must have the capacity to
transform and modify itself in response to the transformations of
the individual adolescent and the generation of adolescents over
time.

For example, the programs that we started in the 70s—and I
will tell you about one shortly—for disaffected adolescents who
chose to leave home and run to the streets of our cities in protest
of society must have evolved over the last 20 years to allow them to
effectively respond to adolescents today who are on the streets be-
cause of poverty and homelessness.

To the extent that we fail to do this, we deny adolescents access
to care with inflexible systems.

Fifth are the legal impediments. Currently, adolescents are al-
lowed to consent to the diagnosis and treatment of sexually trans-
mitted diseases, pregnancy related services, and substance abuse
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treatment in all states. In some states, health care enfranchise-
ment extends to some psychiatric and emergency services.

The extensions of these rights was based upon the legislative con-
cern that adolescents might delay or avoid tr.atment for some of
glese important morbidities because of the fear of parental retribu-

on.

Beyond these specific statements in the law, there is a great deal
of confusion about the ability of adolescents to consent to other
forms of health care.

Some facilities require the parent to be present and actually in
the examining room at all visits, creating obvious barriers to confi-
dentiality, while others require parental signature on the first
visit, and still others require that parents not be present at all.

Sixth are health care provider inadequacies. That is poor doctors.
Many of the barriers which are created by health care providers
could be mitigated if there was training in adolescent health care.

Currently, this expertise is largely limited to pediatrics, where
training is mandated by the American Board of Pediatrics to in-
clude experiences in the care of adolescents and young adults.

Internists, family practitioners, general practitioners, obstetri-
cian/gynecologists, emergency room physicians, all persons who
care for a large number of adolescents, currently receive no special-
ized training in adolescent health care.

Seventh is the failure of comprehensiveness. The adolescent is a
whole person who does not experience his or her problems in isola-
tion from one another.

The young woman who needs help to pass an English class may
also be depressed, sexually active in a nonprotective manner, expe-
riencing major conflicts with her mother, and snorting P-dope be-
tween classes.

Therefore, any effective prevention or intervention must have
the capacity to assess and analyze the entire universe of an individ-
ual adolescent’s experiences, develop appropriate responses to these
problems once they are identified, and fashion responses which are
specific to the adolescent developmental stage but flexible enough
to change as the adolescent grows and develops.

The failure of the health care system to respond with this level
of comprehensiveness creates a barrier to the adolescent.

This issue is particularly significant as the adolescent may not be
conversant enough to negotiate the complexities of the existing
health care system and will tend to rely on one health care contact
for the exploration of all his issues.

Therefore, the health care provider who addresses acne should
have the capacity to determine the presence of and respond to
issues relative to substance abuse, sexuality, sexually transmitted
d(i:iqase, and the consumption of excessive quantities of fat and
sodium.

Now this form of health care can be provided comprehensively in
a variety of settings that extend from private practice, school-based
or school-linked systems, institutional settings, medical centers,
and comprehensive community care centers. And all of these can
provide excellent care.

I have been asked to describe one model of this system, and that
is The Door.
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This is a comprehensive community program with which I have
been affiliated as a volunteer physician for 18 years, and where I
am currently chairman of the medical board.

The Door began almost 20 years ago as our response to the needs
of young people who were living on the streets of New York City.

The philosophy then and now is that a young person is best
served if he or she can have all of his or her needs assessed and
addressed in one setting, and if that setting coordinates its ap-
proach to these needs.

Today, The Door, which is now located in its own building in
New York City’s Lower East Side, has a collection of youth orient-
ed services which include primary health care, family planning,
nutrition, social service, mental health, substance abuse treatment
and prevention, physical arts, basketball, weight-lifting, et cetera,
creative arts, alternative education—there is a high school at the
facility—vocational and educational rehabilitation, and legal serv-
ices.

Young persons entering this facility today to join the gymnastics
teams will also be assessed for their level of educational achieve-
ment, their need for educational assistance.

They will be evaluated to determine the presence or absence nf
patterns of substance abuse. They will be questioned to determine
their need for counseling to assist them with inter and interperson-
al relationship problems.

They will be assessed for their readiness for sports participation
and given a comprehensive physical examination, which will also
include an evaluation of their nutritional status, an evaluation of
their risk for exposure tc all sexually transmitted diseases, includ-
ing HIV infection, a determination of their need for family plan-
ning services and exposure to a comprehensive collection of physi-
cal and emotional health preventive activities.

Every day the staff of approximately 70 individuals provide serv-
ices for 250 to 300 adolescents from New York City, primarily from
the five boroughs but also coming from New Jersey and Connecti-
cut.

Finally, let me offer a few general recommendations for your
consideration.

We must develop a health care consumer profile of the adoles-
cent which will facilitate the institution of services which respond
to their needs.

We must enhance the awareness and sensitivity of the health
care provider system to the unique developmental and psychosocial
issues of the adolescent.

This enlightenment should promote a greater receptivity to the
adolescent as a patient and produce more effective responses to
their problems.

We must develop a system which allows the adolescent full confi-
dential financial access to care. This would include allowing adoles-
cents to make independent financial consent for all health care
services.

We must expand and clarify the adolescent’s right to consent to
health care services.

We must develop user friendly and flexible health delivery sys-
tems which are geographically accessible to adolesconts.
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And finally, we must design a health care system which is com-
prehensive enough to respond to all of the adolescent’s needs or
has the capacity for comprehensiveness.

Now with specific reference to comprehensive services, I have
had the opportunity to review the draft of a bill which will soon be
introduced by Senator Kennedy, the Comprehensive Services for
Youth Act of 1992.

This piece of legislation contains most, if not all, of the points
that I have made and I recommend this to the committee for your
consideration and possibly support.

Thank you very much, Madam Chairman.

{Prepared statement of Robert L. Johnson, M.D., follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF ROBERT L. JouNsoN, M.D., F.A A P., DirecTor, DIVISION OF
ADOLESCENT MEeDICINE, UMDNJ-NEW JERSEY MEDICAL SCHOOL, NEWARK, NJ, AND
CHAIR OF THE BOARD—THE CENTER FOR POPULATION OPTiONS, WASHINGTON, DC

Madam Chairwoman, members of the committee, | am Dr. Robert L. Johnson,
Director of the Division for Adolescent Medicine at the New Jersey Medical in Newark,
N.J. and Chair of the Board of the Center for Population Options. As many of you know,
the Center for Population Options is a Washington based national education and advocacy
organization which strives to improve adolescent’s transition to adulthood, with a compre-

hensive emphasis on all aspects health maintenance. Thank you for the opportunity to

share my experience with you on the issues which affact the health care access of young

people in our country.

The adolescent is a poorly understood and perceived participant in the American
Health Care System. Much of this misperception is attributable to our failure to appreciate
the nature of the dynamic pubertal and psychosocial maturation processes which occur
during the teenage years and the relative absence of adolescent specific diagnoses from
the list of the health problems which we as a nation have labeled as serious. As back-
ground to my comments, allow me to first discuss Adolescent Development and the
aspects of this process which make our young people unique individuals with:n the health
care environment.

PUBERTY

Puberty begins with an endocrinolog.cal cascade that starts in the brain in the area
of the hypothalamus with the production of Releasing Hormones. These substances travel
to the pituitary gland where they cause it to release another set of hormones known as

Gonadotropins.
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These substances stmulate the final stages of development of the testicies in the
male and the ovaries in the female leading to the production of testosterone - the male
sexual maturation hormone and estrogen and progesterone - the femaie sexual maturation
hormones. These hormonal substances are largely responsible for the sexual development

of the maie and female adolescent.

FEMALE PUBERTAL DEVELOPMENT

The first visibie signs of female puberty (average age ranée 9 - 13 years) are the
appearance of breast buds under the nipples and the growth of pubic hair in the genitat
area. Her development over the next three years will include increased height and In-
creased weight in addition to change in the size and contour of the breasts and increased
amount and distribution of pubic hair. Puberty for the adolescent female ends two and one
half years after the appearance of the breast bud with menarche {the first menstrual per:-
od).

Thus first menstrual period is a good historical marker for development in the adoies
cent female. Today most girls experience menarche somewhere between 11 and 11 1 2
years of age. Records from family bibles which recorded the age of attainment of womar
hood (menarche} for girls living in the United States at the time of the American Revolut.rr
indicate an age of menarche of approximately 17 years. These same records indicate that
at the time of the American Civil War the age of first menstrual period had dropped to 15
1/2 years. At the beginning of this century the average age of menarche had decreased 1o
13 years. As | indicated above, currently the average age of first menstrual penod s 11
1/2 years. Indeed the age of menarche has been decreasing by approximately 2103
months for every decade since the beginning of this century.

This biological observation has profound social implications. Pregnancy at ages ds

early as 11 are partly more common today than they were in the 1950's because ot tre
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acceleration of the age of biological matunty. in the 50's, there were very few 11 year old
young adolescent females who could become pregnant! Furthermore, this commentary is
irrefutable evidence that our children are growing up faster. The 13 or 16 year old of the
1990's is indeed different from the 13 or 16 year old of the 1950's.
One of the more difficult problems that we adults have in our relationships with
adolescents is our tendency to conceptualize "teenage normality” in the context of our
own adolescence rather than the context of contemporary adolescents. Our context
however may be 10, 20, 30 or 40 years out of synch with the adolescent of the 1990's
and therefore superfluous. We must be certain that our concepts of the current adoles-
cent, whether they be biological or psychosocial concepts, are contemporary and relate to

the adolescent as he/she is today, not as he/she was yesterday.

MALE PUBERTAL DEVELQPMENT

Puberty in the adolescent male (average age range 11 - 18 years) begins with the
enlargement of the testicles. This event which is attributable to the opening of the tubules
inside the testicle as they increase production of spermatozoa, is followed by growth of
pubic hair and increase in the size of the penis. Throughout the developmental process the
young man's total body size increases as the result of rapid growth in both height and
weight.

Male adolescent maturation occurs over a six year period of time as compared to
three years in the adolescent female. In addition, the typical male will initiate pubertal
events one and one-half years after the typical female.

There is no event in the male adolescent which is exactly comparable to menarche -
the first menstrual period. It has been suggested however that the first "wet dream” indi-
cates a time at which the male is producing sperm at a rate and amount great enough to

significantly increase the probability that ejaculation dunng sexual intercourse will cause
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pregnancy. This event has been called semenarche and it normally occurs at age 13 +/-1

year.

ADOQLESCENCE

Adolescence is a period of time that we have set aside in our culture for our child-

ren to learn how to be adults. In an earlier tims in history our children were directly taught

the Lesson of Adulthood. For example, consider the adolescence of the young Kunta Kinte

which was eloguently described by the late Alex Hailey in his book Roots:

~at about 12 years of age the boys of the village were separated
trom their families and taken to @ camp in the junglé by the men
ot the community. Over a penod of 6 weeks, the boys were
taught all of the lessons of adutthood. Atthe end of the encamp-
ment they were tested to determine if they had lsarned these
lessons of aduithood. Those boys wno successfully passed the
test were grantec ad-ult status and they were circumcised as 3
visible sign of their manhood. They lett ther village as boys and

they réturned to the viliage and to ther soctety as men.”

THE TASK QF ADQLESCENCE

Young men and women growing up in our culture must accomplish the same Task

of Adolescence as Kunte Kinte - they must:

1. Emancipata themselves within the structure that gave them nurture and
support during their childhood (usually the family or some simdar sur-
rogate structure);
estabitsh their Sexual ldentity - make decisions about maleness and fe-

maleness and fove-object gender:.pa
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3. establish their Intellectual Identity;

4. establish their Functional Identity and decide "what they are going to
do with the rest of their lives™ - how they will support themselves and
contribute to their families and to society;

5. complete Cognitive Davelopmant.

In our modern culture their are no short concentrated periods of instruction in
manhood or womanhood. Their are no test which prove that boys and giris in our
culture have become men and women. There are no societally recognized ceremo-
nies which mark the transition from childhood into adulthood and there are no vis-
ible signs of that new status.

The adolescence of the American teenager is drawn out over a protracted
period of as many as 10 to 15 years. They learn how to be men and women not
from lessons which are carefully taught by the adults of our society but from ob-
servations that they make of important adults in their lives. Often these important
aduit role models are found in the family: but if the quality and quantity of this
observational contact is impaired, limited or absent, this component of the lessons
of manhood or womanhood may be abdicated to the streets or to the media.
School has become another important source of instruction in adulthood in our
culture. Schoo! is the first environment outside of the home within which the less-
ons learned at home can be tested. Furthermore, the quality of educational exposure
will be a major detarminant of the scope of possible Functional {dentities.

Finally, in America our children learn important lessons about adulthood from
the media. The media has effectively established standards and norms of behavior
which have crossed color, economic and educational lines. Eight ball jackets, for
example, are currently a symbol of adolescent status that applies equally to adoles-

cents in every ethnic, racial and economic group. Indeed they have become so
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important that our children are "killing each other to get them." Much of the appeal

of this and other contrived symbols is attributable to their association with desirable

media images.

However, before we fay an excessive blame on the media let me reiterate

that the sffect of the media on an individual adolescent will be a function of the

quality and the quantity of the lessons presented within the family context.

THE STAGES QF ADQLESCENCE

Adolescence is divided into three stages. early adolescent, middle adolescence and

late adotescence.

EARLY ADQLESCENCE

The early adolescent {typical age range 12 - 14 years: see Table 1} is caught
in the midst of rapid body changes - secondary sexual characteristics begin to
appear, growth accelerates and biology becomes a major focus of daily concerns.
Cognitively, these young people possess thought patterns which are still relatively

concrete; they have difficuity projecting themselves into the future. This becomes a

particular problem in many health care settings when they are asked to modify their
behaviors and delay gratification for some distant future goal.

Although the early adolescent may test aduit authority within the family “to
see what they can get away with,” they will generally acquiesce to parental
guidance. In this stage they also begin to identity therr peer group in an effort to
find other young people who they sense are similar “c themseives.

In the arsa of sexuality, there is commonily testing of some sexual behaviors
but sexual activity is usually limited. Many adolescent males who will become

sexually active during adolescence will typically imtiate sexual intercourse dunng

this stage {age 13 - 14). However, they don't usuaily become regularly sexually
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active until they approach biological maturity (16- 17 years). Nevertheless, health

contacts during this stage should consider all of the possible diagnosés ralated to

sexual activity.
MIDDLE ADQLESCENCE

Middle adolescence (typical age range 15 - 17 years: see table 2) is the
developmental home of the majority of the problem behaviors found in alt adoles-
cent population groups. The transitions in this stage are so dramatic that they seem
to occur overnight. The secondary sexual characteristics become fully established
and the growth rate decelerates. Physically they now took more like the adults they
will become and less like the children they were.

The psychosocial halimarks of this stage are the development of abstract
thought patterns and the attainment of a set of psychological supports that | have
called the Armor of Middle Adolescence. This important protective gear consist of
the Helmet of Omniscience which makes them all knowing, the Breast Plate of
Ominipotence which makes them aill powerful and the Shield of Invincibility which
gives them the ability to defend against and defeat every foe.

This Armor of Middle Adolescence is a due! functioning double edged sword.
The Armor provides the supportive structure which allows these young people to
emancipate themselves and move outside of the structure which had nurtured and
sustained them for most of their lives. But, it also allows them to participate in
dangerous and destructive Risk Taking Behaviors, believing that they can not be
harmed. For example "I can pass a test without studying.” "1 can drive a car even
though | have never taken a driving lesson,” " | can steal a car and not get caught.”
" { can stop a butlet and not die,” "I can have unprotected sexual intercourse and

not get pregnant.”
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In this stage most adolescents began the process of Emancipation from the
limitations of the structures which supported their childhood. in many families the
struggle for Emancipation is played out through major conflicts over parental control
and authority. Often the battles move outside of the home environment to encom
pass a challenging of authorities in other arenas - e.g. school, police, health care
providers.

As adolescents separate from their families they cleave more tightly to the
peer group that they defined for themselves in early adolescence. Within this con-
text the peer group begins to define the rules of behavior. Additionally, the peer
group acts to affirms and reaffirms the adolescent's self-image.

The peer group is often cited as the source of many problem behaviors
because of tha pressure It brings to the adolescent to conform to its norms and
codes of behavior. However, since these young persons define their own peer
group according to their self identity, and since they participate in the definition of
the peer norms and behavioral codes they thus share responsibility for their own
actions within the group as well as outside cf the group.

Sex and sexual expression is a major focus of the lives of middle adoles-
cents. Adolescent females who will become sexually active during adolescence will
typically have their first sexual experience during this stage. Both the young men
and the young women suddenly seem to become sexual in all aspects of their being.
The health and social risk associated with unprotected sexual intercourse become
issues of paramount importanca during this stage. These destructive effects
however are somewhat ameliorated if the adolescent has been adequately exposed

to protective practices prior to middle adolescence.
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LATE ADOLESCENCE

The lata adolescence (typical age range 18 + years: see table 3) has at-
tained full physical maturity. Cognitively they achieve formai operations and they
becoma fully aware of their limitations and how their past will affect their future.
Within the family they move to a more adult to adult relationship their parents. The
peer group recedes in importance as a determinant of behavior; and sexuality
becomes closely tied to commitment and planning for the future.

The foregoing has been & description of the dynamic context within which all
adolescents experience their lives. Within that context most American adolescents
pass from childhood into adulthood with few problems. Some of these young
people however become involved with one of a variety of encumbrances - drugs.
alcohol, premature parenthood, violence, suicide, schoo! failure/dropout, delinquen-
cy, et cetera ad infinitum - which impedes their orderly transition. All of these
problem behaviors of adolescence are related to and are affected by the develop-
mental and maturational scheme that | have outlined above. Additionally, as these

behaviors have common origins they also tend to occur in some combination within

the same individual.

HEALTH CARE BARRIERS
Now that | have described the biological and psychosocial context of the

American Adolescent let us look at the barriers they face within the heaith care

system:

1. Financial Access
Of course the adolescent faces the same financial access issues which
plague all Americans. However even if there is universal

financial .paheaith care enfranchisement there are additional issues
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which complicate confidential health care access for adolescents:

® many plans require that the beneficiaries identify themselves with a
card or some other device which may be issued only in the name of the
primary beneficiary (a parent}. Others may require the signature or
approval of the primary beneficiary. Therefore, even in situations in
which the adolescent is legally able to receive care without parental

knowledge he/she is impeded from doing so. In my experience, this

barrier has often led many adolescents to avoid bringing pressing issues
to medical attention.

e a similar problem occurs with prescriptions plans as the recipient of the

prescription is usually required to present a card prior to he filling of the
prescription. | have had several patients in my practice who did not
receive treatment for sexually transmitted diseases because they
couldn't get the prescription card from their mother.

Obviously the adverse effects of this barrier would be mitigated if a

card or other identifier were issued to each family member.

2.  Geographic Barriers
Limited health care manpower or the distribution of that manpower af-
fects the access of adolescents who lives in parts of rural America
where there are no or few providers of health care or, those who live in
urban communities where the only providers of cara in a hospital
emergency room. The issues relative to the inefficiencies of this aspect
of our health care system are well known to the members of this

committee. Health care which requires the expenditure of extended
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amounts of time either traveling great distances or waiting for hours in
busy emergency rooms is often health care denied.
As we embrace the wisdom of systems which are designed to provide
preventive as well as comprehensive care for the adolescent we are
also faced with the need for these services to have immediacy. The
adolescent will most beneficially utilize health services which are most
convenient - that is located within his immediate environment, i.e,
based in or linked to a school or community center.
Attitudinal Barriers

As | alluded to in the beginning of this statement the adolescent has a

vague identity as a health care consumer. Since she/he is infrequently
seen in most health care facilities, his/her identity to the system and
the appreciation for her/his problems and the best way to approach
him/her are usually based on biased stereotypes. These stereotypes are
usually limited in their recognition of any of the adolescent's unique
developmental and psychcusocial issues - often creating a systerns
which responds to the 12 year old early adolescent with the same
approach used for the 16 year old middie adolescent. Such approaches
not only prevent effective communication between the adolescent and
their health care provider they also impede effective health care in that
it causes the health care provider to overlook important health issues.
Questioning about sexual activity may ue overlooked because "these
kids are just too young to have sex” or every inner City teenage gl
with abdominal pain may be assumed to have had salpinigtis "because

those kids have sex all the time.”

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC



Q

E

RIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

4.

Communication Gaps

The most consistent aspect of Adolescence is its constant state of

transformation. Not only does the individua! adolescent experience
rapid biological and psychosocial change, the generation of adolescence
also experiences its own evolutionary metamorphosis. Therefore any
service for adolescents must have the capacity to transform and
modify itself in response to the transformations of the individual ado!-
escent and the generation of adolescents. For example, the programs

we started in the 1870's for disaffected adolescents who chose to

“ leave home and run to the streets of our cities in protest to society

must have evolved over the last 20 years to allow them to effectively

respond to adolescents who are on the streets today because they

have been forced there by poverty and homelessness. To the extent

that we fail to respond to the changes that occur in adolescent pqpula-
tions and develop and rely upon inflexible systems we create a barrier
which prevents us from becoming effective health care providers and
prevents the adolescent from becoming an effective heaith care
consumer.

Legal Impediments

Currently, adolescents are allowed to consent to the diagnosis and
treatment of sexually transmitted diseases, pregnancy retated care, and
substance abuse treatment in all states. in some states this heatth
emancipation extends to some psychiatnc and emergency services. The
extension of these nghts was based upon the iegislative concern that
adolescents might delay or avoid treatment for these important morbidi-

ties because of the fear of parental retribution.
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Beyond these specific statements in the law there is a great deal of
confusion about the ability of adolescents to consent to other forms of
health care. Some facilities require the parent to be present and actual-
ly in the examination room at ali visits creating obvious barriers to
confidentiality, others require a parent's signature at the first visit, still
others have no requirement that the parent be present.

In reality | find that most parents who are appropriately involved with
the health of their children recognize the wisdom of the health emanci-
pation of their teenagers. Aithough they rarely accompany their child-
ren to my office after the first visit they maintain communication with
me by telephone and they are happy that they are not required to lose
time from work to attend our clinics.

One additional issue relates to the adolescent proclivity to have a
hidden agenda as the reasons for health visits. For example, during a
routine physical examination an adolescent female may want to have
or need to have a test for STD's. [ hsr mother is in the room the health
care provider may not ask if she is sexually active, or if she/he does
ask the adolescent patient may feel compelled to give a false answer. °
Health Care Provider inadequacies

Many of the barriers would be breached by health care providers who
had training in adolescent heaith care. Currently this expertise is largely
limited to Pediatrics where training is mandated by the American Board
of Pediatrics to include experience in the care of adolescents and young
adults, lpternist, Family Practitioners, General Practitioners, Obstetri-

cian Gynecologist, Emergency Physicians who care for a large number

P+
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of adolescents currently received no specialized training in Adolescence
Medicine.
7.  Failure of Comprehensiveness
The adolescent is a whole person who does not experience his/her prob-
lems in isolation from each other - the young woman who needs help
to pass her English class may also be depressed, sexually active in a
non-protective manner, experiencing major conflicts with her mother,
and snorting P-dope between classes. Therefore, any effective preven-
tion or intervention must have the capacity to:
a. access and analyze the entire universe of an individual
adolescent’s life experiences;
b. develop appropriate responses when problems are identi-
fied: and
c. fashion responses which are specific to the adolescent
developmental stage but flexible enough to/change as the
adolescent develops.

° The failure of health systems to provide this level of comprehensive-
ness creates a barrier to the adolescent. This issue is particularly signif-
icant as the adolescent may not be conversant enough to negotiate the
complexities of the existing health care system and will tend to rely on
one health care contact for the exploration of all of his problems.
Therefore the health care provider who addresses acne should have the
capacity to determine the presence of and respond to issues relative to
substance abuse, sexuality and sexual activity as well as the consump-

tion of excess quantities of sodium and fat.
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HEALTH CARE SETTINGS

Health care for adolescents can be provided adequately in a variety of
settings:
1. Private Practice Model (individual and group practice as well as man-
aged care systems)
School Based/School Linked Systems
Institutional Settings ( Job Corps, Military, Prisons)
Medical Centers

Comprehensive Community Programs

All of these settings have the capacity to adequately respond to the health
needs of the adolescents and, given financial and legal access, to provide exceifent
care.

I have been asked to describe a model of one of these systems - The Door, a
comprehaensive community program with which | have been affiliated as a volunteer
physician for 18 years and where | am currently the Chairman of the Medical Board.
The Door began almost twenty years ago as our response to the needs of young
people who were living on the streets of New York City. The philosophy then and
now is that a young person is best served if he/she can have all of his /her ncads
accessed and addressed in one setting: and that setting should coordinate its
approach to those needs. Today the Door, which is now located in its own building
on New York's lower waest side has a collection of youth oriented services which
include primary health care, family planning, nutntion, social service, mental health,
substance abuse treatment and prevention, physical arts (basketball, weight lifting,
gymnastics, volley ball, dance), creative arts, alternative education (The Umoja

Alternative High School), vocational and education rehabilitation, and legal services.
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Young persons entering the facility today to join the gymnastics team will also be *
assessad for their lavel of educational achievement and the need for education
assistance; evaluated to determine of the presence or absence of patterns of sub-
stance use or abuse, questioned to determine the need for counseling to assist with
inter- as well as intrapersonal relationships; assessed for their readiness for sports
participation; and given a comprehensive physical examination which will also
include an evaluation of their nutritional status. an evaluation of their risk of expo-
sure to all STD's including HIV, a determination of their need for Family Planning
services and exposed to a comprehensive collection of physical and emotional
health preventive activities. Every day the 70 staff members provide these services
to 250 adolescents who are primarily from the five boroughs of Mew York but also

come to us from New Jersey and Connecticut.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Finaily allow me to offer a few general recommendations for your considera-

tion:

1)  We must develop a health consumer profile of the adolescent which
will facilitate the institution of services which will respond to their
needs.

2) We must enhance the awareness and sensitivity of the heaith care
provider system to the unique developmental and psychosocial issues
of the adolescent. This enlightenment should promote a greater recep-
tivity to the adolescent as patients and produce more effective re-
sponses to their problems.

3)  Wae must develop a system which allows the adolescent full confiden-
tial financial access to care. This would include allowing the adolescent

to make independent financia! consent for all heaith services.




4)
5)

6)

[€)

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

108

We must expand and clarify the adolescent’s right to consent to health
care services.

We must develop user friendly and flexible health delivery systems
which are geographica! accessible to all adolescents.

Finally, we must design health care systems which are comprehensive

or have the capacity for comprehensiveness.
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TABLE 1

CHARACTERISTICS OF EARLY ADOLESCENCE

GROWTH 1. Secondary sexual characteristics appear
2. Growth rapidly accelerates

COGNITION 1. Concrete thought patterns
2. Limited perception of long-range implications of
current acts and decisions

SELF IMAGE 1. Preoccupation with rapid body changes
. Disruption of former body image

FAMILY 1. Testing of boundaries of independence
2. Few major conflicts over parental control

PEER GROUP 1. Seeks peer affiliation to counter generative instability
2. identification of peer group based of similarities of
interest and behaviors

SEXUALITY 1. Self exploration and evaluation
2. Limited intimacy
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TABLE 2

CHARACTERISTICS OF MIDDLE ADOLESCENCE

GROWTH 1. Secondary sexual characteristics well established
2, Growth decelerates

COGNITION 1. Rapidly gains competence in abstract thought
2. Variably applied appreciation for the effect of current
acts and decisions on the future
3. The Armor of Middle Adolescence

SELF IMAGE 1. Reestablishment of body image

. Preoccupation with fantasy and idealism

N -

-t

FAMILY 1. Major conflicts over control

2. Struggle for emancipation
PEER GROUP 1. Strong need for identification to affirm self image
. Defines codes of behavior

N -

-t

SEXUALITY 1. Multiple plural relationships
2. Heightened sexual activity

3. Establishment of sexual idenity
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TABLE 3

CHARACTERISTICS OF LATE ADOLESCENCE

GROWTH Final stages of physical maturation process

COGNITION 1. Formal operations established
2. Intellectual and Functional ldentities established

SELF IMAGE Life-goal indecisions may develop as limitations on
expectations are realized

FAMILY Transposition from child-parent dependency
relationships to adult child-adult parent model

PEER GROUP Recedes in importance as major behavioral determinant

SEXUALITY 1. Movement to stable relationships
2. Expanded capacity for mutuality and reciprocity in
refationships
3. Intimacy tends to involve committment rather than
exploration and romanticism

2 o i,
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Chairwoman Scuroeper. Thank you very much, Dr. Johnson.
And I must say that is the most comprehensive overview of adoles-
cent problems I think I have ever heard. I mean, your sensitivity
shows tremendously. Thank you very much for helping us.

I want to thank all the panel. And I know we promised some of
you could go at 11:00. And if you need to go, please do, because we
didn’t mean to hold you hostage here by any way, shape or form.
We really do appreciate the very thorough testimony you have.

Congressman Wolf, do you have any questions of anyone who can
remain?

Mr. Worr. I do. Mr. Haislmaier, if you are going to leave, maybe
you could just answer the first question.

Mr. HASLMAIER. Sure.

Mr. Worr. But if you have to leave, I don’t want to keep you.

Mr. HAsLMAIER. I just have an 11:30 flight. That is all. I have to go
speak to insurers in Ohio and tell them how to fix their industry.

Mr. Worr. Well, why don’t you go. Go ahead.

Mr. HarsLMaIER. No, that is all right.

Mr. WoLr. What country do you think is doing the best job in
this area?

Mr. HawsLMAIgr. I don’t think any particular country with a na-
tional system is doing an outstanding job. What is interesting is
that I think we can learn from bits and pieces in different places.

For example, the British private system is a fascinating study.
The British have a comprehensive national health system, but they
also have a private system. Indeed 12 percent of the population
now has private health insurance, and even more don’t even buy
the insurance. They just buy private operations directly when they
need them.

It is amazing what you find in that kind of a market, because it
has largely been left alone by the government. There are no dis-
torting tax or regulatory policies. The only regulations are basic in-
surer solvency laws and requirements that the providers be certi-
fied and competent.

You can get price lists in a British private hospital. They will
just give you a list of the prices. They will even guarantee the
prices. They will say, for example, this is what a hip replacement
cost. Indeed, over Christmas some hospitals ran sales, offering 20
percent off their normal prices. I have clippings from the London
Daily Telegraph clippings reporting on this.

Now such behavior makes perfect economic sense, because most
people don’t like to be in a hospital over Christmas. But the hospi-
tal has a lot of fixed costs. So they ran sales.

When I talked with executives of British private health insur-
ance companies, I asked, “Would you cancel people or triple their
premiums because they had a big operation last year?” They said,
“My God, no, we wouldn’t do that! If we did that no one would buy
our insurance because it would be a bad value, and wouldn’t give
them the long-term protection they want.”

So the point I would simply make is if you look at some bits and
pieces of other systems-—and I am looking at a similar situation in
New Zealand now, though I haven’t looked at it in much detail
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%’et-—there are some examples of things that maybe we can learn
rom.

As another example, the Australians have a private, individual
Tystem but it is very heavily regulated and it does have some prob-

ems.

Mr. Worr. Thank you very much.

Ms. Brown or Dr. Nelson, what country do you think is doing the
best job? And I will add one question and maybe one of you can
take one and one of you can take the other.

You know, you make a compelling case. How do you pay for it?
What is your means of payment for what you recommend?

Perhaps, Doctor, you might cover the first question. What coun-
try do you think is doing the best job? And then Ms. Brown could
cover the question of payment.

Dr. NeLsoN. The Western European democracies are spending, as
you know, between six and eight or eight and a half percent of
their gross national products on health care, in contrast to our 11,
12 percent.

Most people that have studied the availability of care in those
systems realize that it is at least as good, if not better, despite some
waiting lists for elective procedures.

The conviction we have is that what characterizes most of those
systems is that they put a lot of resources up front in preventive
care, supporting young parents through home visiting, through pro-
viding immunizations and other sorts of care, and in trying to min-
imize the beginnings of chronic disease that are so costly.

er. WoLF. Does that deal with smoking and drinking and drug
abuse?

Dr. NELsoN. Yes. Now that doesn’t mean those countries don’t
have those problems. They do. But one of the explanations for why
the relative percent of their GNP is much lower than ours is that
there is an emphasis on prevention and those services are univer-
sally available.

Mr. Worr. But do you have one or two countries that you think
far exceed the others that we could look into, that you think are
doing a better job, perhaps one in prevention and another in treat-
ment?

Dr. NeLsonN. Well, each of these countries is different. The Scan-
dinavian countries have very strong prevention programs. And
Germany, despite all the problems that are occurring apparently
this week there, has a nationally regulated insurance industry that
seems to provide better universal access than our system.

I think we ought to look at those countries that have greater
similarity to us, rather than difference, because it is very hard to
transpose.

Most of the attention, of course, has been focused on the Canadi-
an system in comparison.

Mr. Worr. Yes. I get that a lot.

Dr. NewsoN. And while I don’t have the personal knowledge
about the Canadian System, it is clear that the Canadian system
has allocated health care dollars in a somewhat different way. And

again, preventive services and catastrophic services are available to
the population. Yes, some people choose to purchase additional
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services outside the system, even coming into the Unifed States to
obtain care. But basic services are available.

Mr. Worr. Ms. Brown, would you care to go over the cost, what
do you recommend?

Ms. BrRowN. Many of the issues most central to maternal and
child health offer, in fact, substantial promise of cost savings. For
example, some of the health services most important to this popu-
lation are preventive services, which have been shown to be cost
effective, that is cost saving.

The ones I mentioned, for example, were prenatal care and im-
munizations, family planning. I think it is an open and shut case
that we save money by making those services widely available.

Another source of cost savings in health care reform is decreas-
ing the chaos, paperwork and complexity in the health care system
that is costing us all enormous amounts of money. To the extent
that the Congress can find ways to simplify the overall system, we
are going to realize enormous cost savings, as suggested by the
GAO just recently.

Just as a personal comment: I am the health care manager in
our little family, and the amount of time I spend on claims, con-
testing denied claims, and on Xeroxing and mailing health insur-
ance claims forms, etc. is extraordinary. If you multiply these ef-
forts across the whole population—in doctors’ offices, in hospitals
and clinics—it is clear that a “simplification agenda” is what’s
needed.

Mr. Worr. Do you think it would make the difference?

Ms. Brown. I think it would make an enormous difference.
Many of the current crop of health care reform bills, incidentally,
do talk about simple things like universal claim forms and in-
creased electronic billing. I think everybody is beginning to under-
stand that we are wasting enormous amounts of money—not on
treatment or care or prevention—but on paperwork.

Another aspect of the cost issue to consider is that many current
expenditures are flowing through the system in relatively “hidden”
ways—expenditures that could be harnessed more effectively.

I mentioned, for example, uncompensated care, and the need to
find a financing source for people who contribute to that pool—the
uninsured. Expenditures for the uninsured are already flowing
through the system. They are displayed, however, on a different
ledger than the health insurance ledger. Their care appears on the
hospital uncompensated care ledger, which in turn is met then by
private contributions, higher insurance premiums for those who
are insured, and so forth.

In short, I don’t think it is prudent to approach the issue of
health care reforms with an overwhelming concern about where
and how to finance the improvements. The monies are already
being spent, but they are often being spent in a chaotic and an in-
effective way.

Mr. WoLF. You are saying we could better spend the money that
we are spending and deal with most of the problem?

Ms. BRowN. Well said.

Mr. Worr. Well, I appreciate it. It is very important. And I have
a number of family and friends who have children who have juve-
nile diabetes and it is very difficult for them. It is a real problem,
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Every time we look at initiatives, we should also look at how we
are going to pay for them. But I think you make a very good case.

Dr. Johnson, let me ask you a question. And I don’t mean this
too much in a sense of criticism. But the one thing that came
through to me with your testimony is you pretty much zeroed out
the parent. I mean, you never mentioned mom or dad in your testi-
mony at all.

Do you think there is any involvement? Or where are you on this
question with regard to parental involvement?

Dr. Jounson. Well, Mr. Wolf, when you read the entire testimo-
ny, there is a large section on the adolescent’s relationship with his
or her parent. And of course, the parent is the most important in-
dividual in the adolescent’s life.

One of the things that we try to do, however, is to turn the ado-
lescent into the person who is responsible for their own health
care. And as a young person enters the teenage years and as they
move through on into adulthood, we look at them taking increasing
amounts of responsibility to make sure that they do whatever must
be done in order to assure their continuing health care, and that
they become good health care consumers.

For example, when a young person comes to my practice or to
the clinic, usually at 12 years of age they come on their first visit
with the parent. And a good 25 percent of that visit is spent with
the parent, but I usually see the adolescent alone.

Part of that visit is educating the parent to the expectations we
have for this 12-year-old. The 12-year-old will give their own history
and know their own history. The 12-year-old will be responsible
for making sure that they take their own medications. And there is
a large degree of parental involvement at the beginning of that
process. As the young person becomes older and older, they take on
more and more responsibility.

One of the effects of this is that when the teenager reaches a
point where there is conflict between the parent and the child,
hea%_ich care does not become one of the issues that is used in that
conflict.

So the parent is extremely important. And with the psychosocial
issues there is another dimension of parental involvement.

In the need to condense these statements, I took out most of
those references.

Mr. Worr. Thank you very much. I appreciate that.

Chairwoman ScHrOEDER. Thank you. Congressman Barrett.

Mr. BarrerT. Thank you, Madam Chair.

Ms. Brown, you talked about several of your goals. And I think
in number three you talked about the medically underserved. And
I guess because I come from a largely rural district, I am wonder-
ing if perhaps you could embellish a little on your resource devel-
opment, I believe is what you talked about in number three.

Ms. BrRowN. Although many of the reform bills focus heavily on
financing health care, they often ignore the important area of re-
source development. In stressing “resource development,” I am sug-
gesting that providing access to insurance will not solve access
problems in rural communities or in some innercity communities.

Clearly, we do not have enough qualified doctors, nurses and
clinics in some of the most medicially under served areas. And the
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idea that an insurance card is going to somehow magically fix that
has, I think, been proven wrong time and time again. Clearly, we
need to focus on getting actual people, doctors, nurses and so forth,
and services, actual clinics and places people can go, into under-
served areas.

Having said that, there are many ways to proceed. There is no
one way to get people and services into a community. There are a
whole range of grant programs that have been very successful.
There are these tuition and loan repayment programs, such as the
National Health Service Corps. And there are other social experi-
ments that have been tried in this area of resource development.
We need to review those, to build on the best of them, and link the
best of them to changes in financing.

Mr. Barrert. With emphasis entirely on accessibility?

Ms. BrowN. The point is that if there is no place to go, no pro-
vider to see, having an insurance card isn't going to help you. For
example, many places in the country have clinics serving largely a
Medicaid clientele that have three, four, five week waiting lists for
prenatal patients. These patients have a payment source for care,
but there are no charge doctors and clinics who will care for them
in a timely manner.

The point is that we must offer both a financing source and
somebody to go to with your insurance card. And as I said, there
are many ways to do that. There is no single approach in this coun-
try to really do much of anything, I think.

Mr. Bargert. I guess finally, you then took us into some solu-
tions about provider distribution. And you talked about the direct
placement of nealth care providers in medically underserved areas
by the National Health Service Corps.

And I guess my question is essentially, give me just an off the
top of your head opinion of the National Health Service Corps?

Ms. BRowN. Well, I am one of its greatest fans.

Mr. BARRETT. Are you?

Ms. BRowN. Yes. Because I have had a lot of experience on a per-
sonal level with Health Service Corps providers. We can no longer
assume that market forces alone are going to take people to Zuni,
New Mexico or the District of Columbia, for that matter. The Na-
tional Health Service Corps has the capacity to place providers in
communities that do not naturally attract them, for whatever
reason, poverty, geography, whatever. The Corps is able to put pro-
viders in community health centers, in a wide variety of clinics and
elsewhere so that there is a doctor, a nurse or other trained care
giver available to take care of people even in medically under-
served areas.

The Corps has been a very, very successful mechanism using
school tuition in excharnge for service. I think it offers a “win/win”
formula that has helped us in this provider distribution problem.

Mr. BarreTr. That program is successful? It is adequate in your
opinion, I take it?

Ms. BRowN. Well, I don’t think we have a large enough Corps at
present. But I think that the model has been proven time and
again to work. Remember that when the National Health Service
Corps was almost dismantled in the mid 80s, a number of states
tried to develop their own state analogs to the Corps because they
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had come to depend on the providers it supplied for some of the
states’ neediest areas.

So the proof is in the pudding. The states tried to recreate the
Corps and fill the gap when it was almost eliminated; though re-
cently there has been some resuscitation.

Mr. BArgreTT. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Thank you. Congressman Holloway.

Mr. HorLLoway. Thank you. First of all, Ms. Brown and Mr. Wolf
touched on this. But in your study, you quoted from it to say that
actually no formal cost analysis was attempted. And of course, we
are always looking at the surveys. But the surveys show that a mi-
nority of the people in this country, when surveyed, are even will-
ing to spend $256 a year additional for health care or to provide
social programs of health care.

Where do we get the money from? I mean, we talked about in
one of the studies—Congressman Russo, he has a plan but he has
been defeated. So his plan wasn’t too big in his district.

Ms. BrowN. I know.

Mr. Horroway. So I think we all, as members knowing the posi-
tion of America—and I guess the question I would like you to
answer at the same time is, the panel we had earlier before you,
Ms. Renshaw and Ms. Weaver, definitely are middle class Ameri-
cans, what I would consider, and of course I grew up in a very low
middle class, if you call it. Back then we didn’t know what classes
there were.

But who really is hurting for health care more today? I think the
poor have so many government programs they can lean to, no
matter what the illness. And yet middle class America a lot of
times—how do we address—I guess I am looking for an answer, but
the number one question is, how do we pay for it? And then why
don’t we always include this in suggestion to us? If you are going to
tell us what we need, tell us how we are going to pay for it.

Ms. Brown. First, I want to clarify this comment about no
formal cost analysis was attempted. e Institute of Medicine
report that I have been referring to did not outline a bill or formal
proposal for reform. To make cost estimates, you must have a defi-
nite plan to run through a Univac cost-estimating brain. But be-
cause we offered no single plan of our own we made no formal cost
estimates.

We did, however, look at the cost estimates associated with the
seven bills that we examined.

I already responded to Mr. Wolf about some of the sources of rev-
enue for health care reform. But, fundamentally, meeting the cost
challenge centers on choices and on political will.

The Congress and the American people have repeatedly ex-
pressed willingness to pay for certain major undertakings, the sav-
ings and loan bailout being one of the more recent along with the
Persian Gulf war. We are able to come up with large sums of
money when we feel the need is great.

The issue is, are we willing to put health care reform in the cate-
gory of an effort where we might—I underline might—need to
spend some additional revenues. My clear belief is that we should.

Worry about the health care system, as you yourself mentioned,
has now spread throughout the country. We, have, for example, rel-
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atively wealthy people unable to get health insurance due to pre-
existing condition exclusions. And although the consequences for
these individuals clearly are not as great as for low income people,
the point is that problems of uneven and insufficient insurance cov-
erage are now national problems. They are no longer confined to
any particular group or geographic area.

I think the question is whether or not the Congress is going to
recognize the depth of this problem and the distress in the land,
and then be courageous enough to put some new revenues towards
a solution, aithough, as I said, I think that is really not the issue
here, given the amount of waste that we have and duplication and
paperwork, given the amount that we fail to spend on preventive
services that are cost effective, and the other points I made to Mr.
Wolf as well.

Mr. HorLroway. Well, if I can interrupt you there, we have often
tried to attempt the waste, new items, any way you can go at it. I
don’t think government has proven that we are not efficient at
doing anything. If it is something that we are not efficient at, I
wish you would bring it out to me, because I would like to go out
and ring our bell somewhere.

But I don'’t see us getting any more effi »nt. I would agree that
Ms. Brown probably had some great suggestions and paperwork
definitely is the number one. But we are not the best people to do
that. I mean, where do we come from? Who can address it better
than government? Because we are not the one to do it. Or if you
do, you are going to have to start showing me some places we are
good at doing it.

Ms. BrowN. Mr. Holloway, many of the current proposals on the
table are so-called multi-payer plans that retain the current mix of
public and private insurance. They propose that we continue to
rely on hundreds of private insurance plans, the Medicaid program
for very low income people, (which of course itself is more than 50
individuel state-run programs), and then a wide variety of publicly
financed »vograms and risk pools in the middle, various publicly
financed programs.

The inherent complexity of these programs, preduces a level of
chaos that is really quite incomprehensible. I often wonder how
people are supposed to move among all these plans. They are in-
sured under their business for a while, so they have private insur-
ance. Then they are out of a job, so they go into a newly created
public program. Then maybe they fall below the poverty line, they
are on Medicaid, back and forth, and back and forth. Surely the gov-
ernment can improve on this degree of complexity! It is the current
complexity, in part, that leads to all this chaos and churning and
expense.

Mr. HorLoway. Go ahead, Doctor.

Dr. NewsoN. Could I also respond, Mr. Holloway? I know, by
virtue of the fact that you are a part of this select committee, you
are especially interested in children and families. But I think one
of the things we feel very strongly about—and it may seem trite
but it is not trite when you move out into the world—is that with
this issue, with health care reform, I think children and young
families do get lost in the discussion, despite the fact that they are
really, as a population, the most vulnerable right now.
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When ,you look at uninsured or underinsured Americans, and
whether you talk about 37 million at one point in time or 50 mil-
lion over the course of a 12 month period, that number includes a
disproportionately large population of children and young adults
who are in the kinds of jobs that don’t provide benefits.

And I am afraid that as those in my generation approach retire-
ment and want to make certain that Medicare and the private sup-
plementation meet our needs, we are going to forget about these
young families and children, whose situation is really deteriorating
in our country now because of the kinds of jobs that are available
for a lot of young people.

I agree with Sarah, there is a tremendous amount of duplication
and needless complexity in the system. I think just the two experi-
ences of the families that we heard this morning, which are not, in
my experience, at all extraordinary—1I think every person in this
room, if you think through your extended family, has one such ex-
perience that you can easily point to, or even in your own family.

This is the typical situation we are facing now, where people that
have good jobs, who are very competent, caring parents, can’t nego-
tiate the system. The system does not work.

We are probably going to end up not just tinkering with the
system, we are going to have to do something fundamental that is
going to make it a lot simpler and hopefully at least reduce the ad-
ministrative end of the costs.

We are paying. When 1 talked about those 50,000 cases of mea-
sles, I don’t think there are children, you know, seriously ill with
measles and pneumonia that are at home. They are in the hospital.
Somebody is paying. But it is a cost that we wouldn’t have to be
paying at all if the children had been immunized.

Mr. HoLLoway. I agree. The system is nearly broke. But I mean,
what is the answer to it? I mean, it is not more government pro-
grams.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. We are trying to find that.

Mr. HoLLowAy. That is why we have a witness here. That is why
I am asking him, if he can, to tell me. I mean, more government,
you know, I don’t think we are the answer to it. Tell us where you
think that we can, other than cutting paperwork?

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. I think the time has about expired, un-
fortunately. We have some other people who want to ask questions.
¢ Mr. HoLroway. Well, I would like to ask Dr. Johnson a question,
if I can.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Okay. Certainly.

Mr. HoLroway. Because I don’t understand basically what the
policy is or what we are really—how his testimony almost fits into
this whole thing.

I mean, I don’t know basically where we are coming from with
adolescents if we—and you say you missed the part with the par-
ents involvement in it. I don’t know, do you counsel adolescents on
absence from sex, smoking, drinking? To what point do you fill—I
guess yours are typically, you said, about 12 years old, that you
have a typical child come into your clinic, Dr. Johnson.

Dr. Jounson. Well, I am not sure of your question, Mr.
Holloway.
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Mr. HoLroway. Well, I am just wondering, basically it sounds to
me like, you know, almost you have another agenda or policy that
we are not even—-—

Dr. Jounson. Well, I was asked to come and speak to the com-
mittee about the barriers that adolescents face to health care. And
also I was asked to outline, discuss The Door, which is an exempla-
ry comprehensive program for adolescents in New York City.

Parents are not excluded from health care and there are a
number of important health care issues that adolescents have. Ado-
lescents move into a time period where they begin to experiment
with sexual activity and therefore their sexual activity becomes an
important health care issue. Adolescents move into a period in
their lives when they become exposed to substance abuse and
therefore substance abuse becomes an important issue.

So the health care provider, if he or she is going to take the re-
sponsibility of assisting this young person in maintaining their
state of healthiness, must consider all of these issues. And those
issues are both physical as well as psychosocial.

I am not surprised that you don’t understand this approach, be-
cause this is an approach which is very different than our focus on
catastrophic care.

The health care system or the insurance system began as an ap-
proach to pay for surgery and it then extended to a system to pay
for very serious illness. But preventive care is something that is a
movement that is relatively new.

The health care industry has begun to realize the importance
and the savings that can be realized with preventive care. But we
really don’t know how to adequately pay for preventive care.

Now with reference to your other question, I recommend that
you look at the Oregon Health Plan. I am sure you are familiar
with that. The Office of Technology Assessment has either released
or soon will release a study of that plan. And it is a revolution in
the way to finance health care.

And I had some very serious concerns about the plan at the be-
ginning, especially the way that it will respond to health care
needs for children and for adolescents. But we do need a revolution
in health care. We cannot fiz the existing system.

And this plan, this issue must be looked at by Congress, your col-
leagues, as just as important as a war in the Persian Gulf. Because
if we don’t address it now, it will bury us by the end of this centu-
ry.
Mr. HoLLoway. Maybe I misunderstood what you said, but it
sounded to me like you were leading to the fact that adolescents
should have their own card, should have their own ability to go
down and buy their own prescription drugs without parental con-
sent or anything.

Dr. Jounson. I did in fact say that. Well, the law allows an ado-
lescent, for example, in every state to consent for the care of a sex-
ually transmitted disease. Yet the young person who saw me in my
clinic last week, although he could come to the hospital and sign
for that treatment, could not fill the prescription for that disease
because he didn’t have a card.

Mr. HoLLoway. I would love to continue but I will stop.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Thank you. Congressman Durbin.
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Mr. DursiN. Dr. Johnson, let me follow up on that. And I am
trying to reconcile in my own mind some conflicts here, and I think
Mr. Wolf alluded to them earlier.

In my home town I tried to get together with some groups and
talk about low birth weight babies and teen pregnancy and infant
mortality, and finally found ourselves talking about everything. It
all came in. You just can’t isolate these problems.

We found, when we could get doctors who would take Medicaid
patients, young women who were pregnant and needed prenatal
care, that we had to find a way to virtually drag many of these
women in for prenatal care. It wasn’t just a matter of telling them
how important it was. They would nod and say yes, and still
wouldn’t keep the appointments. We had to pound it into them to
get them to come in.

And when the babies are borm, and I visit a day care center
across the street from the prenatal clinic for a lot of the families
that don’t have the resources for private day care—it is kind of a
semi public day care center—the people throw up their hands and
say, what a problem we have. They hate weekends because on
weekends these parents take these babies home and dilute the for-
mula, after being told over and over not to do it, take the dispos-
able diapers off and hang them over the shower curtain rod and let
them dry out and use them again. And the babies come back with
all sorts of diaper rash problems that the day care center tries to
cure during the week.

What this brings me to is that a lot of these young people need
to be told they have to be responsible for their own bodies and
their own health. But you are dealing with a level where there is a
lack of knowledge and a lack of maturity.

And I just wonder, following up on some of the things said here,
how far can you go, though? I mean, you must run into this in your
practice all the time. How far can you go to entrust a young person
with that judgment, knowing full well that they are still going to
need advice and counsel and a helping hand?

Dr. Jounson. Well, is it a problem with the health care con-
sumer or is it a problem with the health care provider and the way
the provider delivers the health care?

At The Door in New York City and in our clinics at the New
dJersey Medical School, we make the adolescent the primary consid-
eration of that care and we make them responsible.

Young people are told that they should come back every six
months for a health care visit. And they come back every six
months for a health care visit. They make their appointments.
They take the responsibility to take their medications. We have a
compliance rate that approaches 95 percent in a clinic in an inner-
city hospital that is very difficult to get to.

So it can be done. But it has to be done keeping in mind who the
adolescent is and how you must correctly approach the adolescent.

If you approach the adolescent, whether it is a pregnant young
woman, with the assumption that she is dumb and stupid and can’t
take care of her baby correctly and therefore you have to preach to
her and tell her everything to do, I will bet you she doesn’t show
back up at that clinic.
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But if you approach this young woman and say, you are an indi-
vidual to be valued, you are an individual who can and wants to
take responsibility for your own care and the care of your infant,
and we are here to help you do that and we are here to listen to
gouktell us how we can best help you do that, you will get them

ack.

But we don’t do that. We are very punitive in our approach and
we are very unenlightened about the way we should look at adoles-
cents and their relative maturity in this country in many issues.
The health care system is only one of the systems where we have
this ambivalence.

Mr. DurgiN. Madam Chairlady, I hope we have a chance to visit
this clinic. We have done that with the committee from time to
time. I would like to see this in action.

My last question to Ms. Brown: You talked about the three
month waiting period. Now far be it from me to rush to the defense
of insurance companies. I don’t want to do that. It kind of chafes
against my own philosophy and nature. But how do you deal with
the adverse selection situation?

If you have got a person who is critically, terminally ill, who can
walk in off the street and sign up with a health insurance company
and be covered from day one, how do you answer the criticism of
thehhsalth insurance industry that that will bankrupt them over-
night?

Ms. Brown. This is a classic example of how we have competing
issues that we are going to have to resolve. On the one hand, we
have an industry that has its own requirements for profit making
and for management, and on the other hand, we have health care
needs. Clearly, in certain instances, the two are inconsistent. I
think that is actually the word I used. We are going to have to
decide which is more important, or we are going to have to decide
some way to help the insurance companies finance that risk.

But if we say to women that one of the ways you can help your-
self and your baby is to get early prenatal care and then simulta-
neously permit insurance companies to restrict access to care, we
aren’t giving a consistent message. Obviously, we need to resolve
such inconsistencies.

My own bias, because I am most interested in healthy pregnan-
cies and healthy children, is to find a way to reduce waiting peri-
ods. But that may require some different approaches to insurance
regulation. It is a tough call. But we have two competing interests
here that are at their heart irreconcilable.

Mr. DURBIN. And that may lead us to some of the general reform
programs you talked about.

Ms. BrowN. I would think so.

Mr. DurBiN. We may not be able to deal with some except on a
piecemeal basis. Though I have to say President Bush, as well as
all Democratic plans that I have seen before Congress, deal with
pre-existing conditions, and they should.

Ms. BrRowN. Yes. Distress with pre-existing condition exclusions
is one of the messages that is beginning to come through loud and
clear to the Congress.

Mr. DursiN. My closing comment, based on a question I asked
you earlier, is over the weekend I met with a state senator from
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Minnesota who explained to me what she had been through in the
promulgation of their plan that was passed a couple of weeks ago.
It was curious to me, having been around this place for a few
years, that they mustered the political courage in Minnesota to
impose a tax on cigarettes and on alcohol, and a two percent tax on
all providers of health care, to come up with the money to fund a
plan to set out to do something in their state. And we seem to be
Just frozen in the headlights here when it comes to the word, taxes.
We can’t deal with it, even if it is for the solution to a national
problem which most Americans concede needs to be solved.

The states are going to shame us, I am afraid, as they show the
initiative and move forward and the Federal Government is just
frozen in its track.

Ms. BROWN. One of the reasons that so many of us want to get
. issues of maternal, child health and adolescents’ health clearly
before the Congress now is that we understand, in part, the kind of
turmoil that will ensue, and the kind of guts it is going to take, for
theze Congress to come to grips with health care reform and cast a
vote.

We are worried that so much political capital will be spent in
getting something passed that the capacity after the fact to say, oh,
yes, we forgot about immunizations or we didn’t do anything about
nurse midwives, and, oh, what about the lack of obstetricians in
underserved areas, etc., will be minimal. We will all be in a state of
“compassion fatigue” and “policy fatigue,” and the door may well
be shut except for a few technical amendments.

That is why we really want these issues out now, so that the
course of Title V and the position of the public health system, for
example, are taken up as part of the main debate and not some-
thing addressed inadequately, after the fact.

Mr. DUrBIN. A good point. Thank you very much.

Chairwoman ScHrOEDER. Thank you. Congressman Walsh.

Mr. WarsH. Thank you, Madam Chairwoman. I have really en-
joyed the testimony that I have heard today. We are all talking
about this issue and it is good to see it from a child’s perspective.

I would like to ask a specific question. We took the liberty of
sending, I believe, all of you—but we may not have sent one to Ms.
Brown because we didn’t have her name for the witness list—a bili
that I have in regarding mandatory testing, auditory stem testing
for infants, for all newborns born in the United States.

The idea for that is to, in a preventive sense, determine what
hearing disabilities there are and react to them at an early age, so
that we are not spending larger sums of money down the road to
deal with that disability. Testing for infants would be mandatory. I
don’t believe we have ever done that before. And it would require
this test be paid for by private health insurance or government in-
surance. The test is relatively simple and relatively expense, the
$25 to $30 range.

If you have a thought on it, please feel free to make a comment
on the idea of this approach and the mandatory nature of it.

Dr. NeLson. Mr. Walsh, your office did send me a copy of the leg-
islation. I think we are moving rapidly toward trying to do what
your legislation calls for in practice, in that the technology has de-
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veloped within the last few years to make this a much more practi-
cal thing to do.

Most hospitals and centers that deliver infants now at least are
screening infants that have some risk, known family history or
they have had some neonatal problem. But that only detects, at
best, maybe half of the infants that have significant hearing loss.
So unless you screen all, you are going to miss the other half.

Even at $30, though, let’s say, times four million births in the
United States, you are talking, if my arithmetic is right, about
$120 million of costs.

Mr. WaisH. That is right.

Dr. NeLsoN. And I think the reluctance in a lot of areas has been
just how that cost will be allocated. If legislation can establish this
as a preventive measure, as an early identification measure, and
those costs are distributed among insurers, this screening will be a
good thing.

If it ends up being solely a public sector responsibility, in the
current climate I don’t think it will easily happen, because the dol-
lars aren’t there to do it.

Mr. WarLsH. Yes. We wouldn’t expect it to be that. We would
expect a public/private mix.

Dr. JoHNSON. I also received the draft, Mr. Walsh. I am also con-
cerned about the costs and I wonder what we will lose as a result
of this testing, because I am sure something will lose if it is going
to cost over $100 million, and then what the ultimate gain is.

The other issue is the timing. The bill does call for newborn and
I must admit I treat only kids above 12. But I think that it might
be more effective if it were done past the third month, or during
infancy, rather than the newborn period, three to six mor.ths. And
the American Academy of Pediatrics is looking at this issue and
there are recommendations from the academy on infant testing for
hearing loss. And you might want to contact them, the Committee
on Pediatric Practice specifically, and look at their recommenda-
tions. But they do focus on infant rather than newborn testing.

Mr. WarsH. I will do that. Thank you. And thank you all for
your comments.

Just one last point. Dr. Johnson, in your approach to adoles-
cents—I have two. I have a 15-year-old and a 12-year-old who is
about to become a 13 year old.

Dr. JounsoN. God bless you.

Mr. WausH. I pray for strength every day. I have, thank God, a
very good relationship with them, and my wife does, too, and we
work at it.

I am better able to communicate with my children than my par-
ents were with us, and I think there is a generational difference in

this country for sure.

I would feel a little uncomfortable with your approach in that it
seems that while your intent is to give the adolescent more deci-
sion making in terms of not only their own heaith but in the direc-
tion that they want to head in all their decisions.

I would want very much to be involved in that process, as a
parent. I would have no objection to you spending five or ten min-
utes with that child alone to discuss their health. But if they were
to be treated for either a venereal disease or some other ailment,
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regardless of whether it was sex related or anything else, I would
want very much to be part of that discussion.

A child that is homeless, that is without parents, obviously there
is no other way to go. But in other cases I would urge that the par-
ents be encouraged to take part in every aspect of that individual’s
health, not only because I think parents help children make wise
decisions, but also because it keeps the communication open.

If the child feels that there is another adult in their life who is
directing them away from their parent, I think that may cause
problems.

Dr. Jounson. I absolutely agree with you, Mr. Walsh. And in my
experience, just about all the teenagers in my practice have active
parental involvement. And it is usually the parents who direct
their children to our clinic. So The Door is an exception with that.
Young people come to The Door on their own.

But just last night, for example, there was a young man with a
strep throat, and I treated him for that. He wanted me to call his
n%other and tell his mother about it. And he is 16, actually 17 years
of age.

So there is not a schism that we create between the parent and
the adolescent. But let me enlighten you on the issue of sexually
transmitted disease.

Now if our 15year-old does have a sexually transmitted dis-
ease—and I believe you are from the State of New York, but it
doesn’t matter what state it is—that adolescent is enfranchised for
the treatment of that disease. The health care provider not only
can provide care for that young person without parental involve-
ment and parental notification, the health care provider must pro-
vide that care. And the health care provider must have the adoles-
cent’s permission to inform anyone else about that diagnosis.

Now that is an existing state law. It varies slightly from state to
state. But state legislatures have given adolescents these adult-type
rights for the treatment of sexually transmitted diseases, pregnan-
cy and substance abuse in all states.

And there was a very important recognition that young people
would very often refuse to receive care because they didn’t want
parents to know.

The 16-year-old boy I told you about who didn’t get his doxycy-
clin because he couldn’t get his card from his mother, has a very
good relationship with his mother and his father, but he didn't
want them to know. He didn’t want them to know that he was sex-
ually active. Although the parents—his mother puts condoms in
his underwear drawer once a week and she very well knows he is
sexually active, he didn’t want her to know that he had this dis-
ease. And because of that, he went a week without receiving treat-
ment for it because he was just afraid of telling her.

Mr. Warsy. That is a very unusual situation that you just de-
scribed and I just think there is a real communication breakdown
there, and perhaps further, even a moral breakdown there, in my
mind.

Dr. Jounson. Well, I disagree. The fact that teenagers can’t com-
municate with their parents, are afraid to communicate with their
parents on one issue, an issue as intimate as sexually transmitted
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disease, doesn’t mean that there is an overall communication gap
or breakdown between parents and children.

I think we make a mistake when we focus on very embarrassing,
highly personal issues and say that if you can’t communicate on
those very embarrassing, highly personal issues, then that means
that the whole relationship is no good. That is just not true.

Mr. WarsH. Well, I guess we are getting into philosophy now.
But a mother who puts condoms in the top drawer for her 16 year
old son on a weekly basis I think is making a tragic mistake.

Dr. Jounson. Well, I disagree with you. I think that indicates
that the mother has communicated with her son, realizes what her
son is involved in and wants her son to be protected. It is some-
thing that many, many parents in America do.

Many parents recognize the fact that their children are sexually
active. At 16 in this country, 60 percent of boys are sexually active.

Mr. WarsH. And they are not willing to show the courage to
stand up to their own child, that could be a fatal mistake for them.

Dr. Jounson. Well, we disagree, Mr. Walsh.

Mr. WarsH. Yes, we do.

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. Well, we have kept the panel way
beyond when we should, and I have a thousand questions. But I
promise I won’t do that to you. :

I do want to say I think it has been very, very helpful to look at
this. And as Ms. Brown said, our fear is we will do something and
then suddenly say, oops.

And of course, the one I think we are most apt to say oops about
is adolescent medicine, because there are very few advocates out
there for adolescents. And it is such a sensitive issue that you in-
stantly get into these very difficult discussions.

Dr. Johnson, I just wanted to ask, your specialty is very, very
small, isn’t it?

Dr. Jounson. Well, adolescent medicine is part of pediatrics. Pe-
diatrics now, as you know, is the care of infants, children, adoles-
cents and young adults. So we go someplace up to 21 to 25 years of
age.

Adolescent specialists are persons who have done a fellowship in
this area. There are roughly three to four thousand practitioners
now. And this specialty will be a boarded formal specialty by 1993.

So it is relatively small but most pediatric departments in this
country have a section on adolescent health care.

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. I thought your putting it in historical
context, that we don’t think about it because we don’t think of cat-
astrophic things that normally happen to adolescents, but preven-
tively it is probably the age where you can do the most prevention.

Dr. JounsoN. Absolutely, yes.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Long term. Well, I thank you all.

The record will be open for two weeks if people think of more
things. And I apologize again for keeping the panel so long. But I
think it is because you had so much to say and we enjoyed it.

Thank you very much. And with that, the hearing is adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 11:45 a.m., the select committee was adjourned.]
[Material submitted for inclusion in the record follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF HON. Mike BILIRAKIS, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM
THE STATE OF FLORIDA

Madam Chairwoman, I want to commend you for holding this hearing on health
care reform and how women, children and teens would be affected by current
health proposals. Throughout my district, there are continuous debates on health
care reform because most Americans have very strong opinions about what should
be done. I receive hundreds of letters each week from my constituents, expressing
their dismay about rising health care costs, unaffordable health insurance, over-
priced prescription drugs——the list goes on and on.

1, too, am deeply concerned about newborn infants and the large number of preg-
nant women who do not receive prenatal and postnatal services.I serve with Roy
Rowland as the cochairman of the Task Force on Infant Mortality for the Congres-
sional Sunbelt Caucus and we have found our Nation’s infant mortality statistics
are dismal. Part of the reason for this is the inaccessibility of health care services.

To resolve the problem of access, I have introduced legislation with Congressman
Rowland and a number of my colleagues from the Sunbelt Caucus that is designed
to expand access to obstetric services, particularly in medically underserved areas.
H.R. 3089, the Access to Obstetrical Care Act, will provide funds for a number of
Medicaid demonstration projects designed to increase access to obstetrical care for
women in medically underserved areas.

These demonstration projects will enable States to design and implement projects
sensitive to their particular needs.Improved access to health care will result, hope-
fully, in lower infant mortality rates.

Unfortunately, Madam Chairwoman, as far as health care reform is concerned,
we've got a mess on our hands. I believe it is the joint responsibility of Congress and
the administration to clean it up. Our health care system isn't improving—it is just
getting worse. Since I've been in Congress, we have done nothing but apply Band-
Aid solutions to a problem of devastating magnitude. Something has to change or
the health of our citizens, particularly those who cannot afford the luxury of private
health insurance, will continue to decline.

It is encouraging to me that so many of my colleagues are beginning to recognize
that this i§ a serious problem and want to do something about it. Almost forty
health overhaul bills have been introduced during the 102nd Congress, a bi-partisan
Health Care Caucus on National Health Care has been created, and House Minority
Leader Bob Michel formed a task force to develop a health care package to address
naticnal health care concerns, so there is some movement in Congress.

As a member of this task force, I am pleased to say that a legislative package on
health care reform will be introduced in the near future. Health care reform is the
issue of the 1990’s—1I, perhaps am an optimist, but I believe that we will be able to
develop some sort of a national health care strategy during this decade.

It is my hope that we will be able to develop a strategy that will involve both the
private and public sector in a partnership, yet still encourage competition. I am not
in favor of adopting a socialized health program, and I believe we must be cautious
of heading in that direction.

However, by creating a national health care strategy, sacrifices are going to be
required by everyone—patients, doctors, hospitals, and insurance companies all will
have to make concessions. I believe it can be done so that everyone will have some
degree of satisfaction.

I do want to remind my colleagues of a similar scenario from a few years ago—
catastrophic health care. Before that legislation became law, almost every senior cit-
izen was behind the bill, and when it became law, reality began to et in. One of the
biggest mistakes made, in my opinion, was that not enough time was spent studying
the legislation, and the average citizen did not take the time to fully educate him-
self or herself about the bill. Once it became a reality, America began to wake up.

Creating good, practical health care reform legislation will require lengthy discus-
sions among Members of Congress, the administration, the public, health care pro-
viders, and health organizations. Madam Chairwoman, I believe we are on the road
to resolving this problem. I look forward to hearing from our witnesses, and thank
you again for conducting this hearing.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF ELAINE H. WaL1zER, CHAGRIN FALLS, CH

My husband and | are the parents of a daughter, Laura Elizabeth, who was bom in 1980 with
maijor birh defects, including a serious heart defect. 1 have been asked to make a statement for the
Select Committee on the issue of health care for children and the need for health care reform. i believe
our experiences over the past tweive years have given us a unique and pierding perspective of the gaps
in our system of health insurance and health care defivery, and of the stresses that these gaps create for

farrilies akeady strugging to develop a stable, nurturing famiy life in the face of chronic ilness and

disabifity.

OQur daughter's serious medicat problems were manifested late in her second day of life. We
were fortunate in living near a major medical center: neonatal intensive care, surgery, medications, and
caring professionals saved our child's life. By the ime she was released from the hospital, we had
leamed hat Laura has a chromosomal abnorality known as Tumer's syndrome. ltis the source of her
heart defect, which required several surgeries, the last of which left her partially paralyzed. (Management
of this physical disability commands much of our concem. our resources, and our adaptiveness.) Laura
has some other sequelae of Tumer's syndrome: kidney malformation; eye musde imbalance;
maladaptive structure of palate and jaw; a growth disorder; missing ovaries; leaming difficufties with
visual/spatial and visual memory tasks despite high intelligence and a “very superior” verbal 1Q. Women
with Tumers syndrome are also known to be at risk for diabetes am.i thyroid disorders. For normal
develcpment and optimal heaith, giris and women with TS require hommone replacement

Laura is one of many children who are surviving birth defects and serious ilinesses; we expect
that she will grow to adufthood and live a full life span. We know, however, that she will need to monitor
her health carefully, that she will always requiire the care of specialists. and that she wili need medication
and hormone replacement throughout her life.

We all grapple daily with the demands of living with her disability and her medical needs—and we
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are rewarded with the joy of her achievements. Yet daily we parents worry about Laura’s future; the day
is coming when she will no longer be covered under the umbreila of our health insurance. and Laura is
uninsurable. Shewon't be able to buy a policy at any pnce under the present system. Our daughteris
inteilectually gifted; who can know what she will contribute to the world? 1f. that is, she is allowed to go
out and work init Many employers would rightly conclude that to hire her would be to raise the cost of
company health insurance so high that she would be a liability as an employee. We wonder if Laura’s
bodily life was saved only to reveal that her spirit would be broken ...

[We have a further worry in that there are no legal safeguards for Laura or the many other
ditizens who have gene-related predispositions for developing senous health difficultes. The Human
Genome Proct, rather than being an exciting exploration on the frontiers of medicaliscientific knowiedge,
raises for us the specter of prejudice and discrimination  Based on the mere possibility that Laura might
deveiop further health problems asscciated with her identified condition, insurance camers are potentially
free to reject her application for a wide range of coverages, (including health, life, disability. and accident
insurance.) There are currentiy no legisiative protections against abuses of biotechnology such as the
use of genetic testing to eliminate *high risk” appiicants.]

Given that the birth of offspring alters the life of any couple. our first child's birth nevertheless
changed our lives more painfully and drastically than we could ever have expected. Due to complications
of pregnancy, | had been forced to take an unpaid leave of absence from my teaching position: no
disability protection was available. We maintained our health coverage by paying premiums to my
employer, the county office of education. Because of Laura's serious problems, which continued to
worsen over the course of her first year, | was forced to use up my considerable accrued sick leave and
finally to resign my positon permanently. One effect of Laura’s birth defects. then, has been the

unwanted and unplanned end to my career (after a graduate degree and nine years of teaching.) The
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reality was that my husband's greater eaming power and our daughter’s great need for extensive ongoing
care dictated our decisions during that ime. While the outcome ultimately might have been the same, the
Jack of a family leave policy meant that my outside employment ended; my husband gave up self-
employment and sought a posiion with a company which would provide heaith care coverage. He was a
hostage to our desperate need for heaith insurance.

We found that we were geographical hostages as wel. The necessity of oblaining {requent care
from a growing list of pediatric specialists made itimperative that we *choose” to live within easy reach of
a major medical center. This has meant, literally, that my husband has from time to time backed away
from desirable potential employment because it was simply too far from appropriate medical care for our
daughter. (The level of care which Laura has required has varied; at one time, she had three
appeintments weekly for medical care or related services. Cumently, we average three office visits to
specialists each month, with weekly therapeutic/ recreational activities in addition.)

Supposing that my husband's heaith care insurance actuaily covered the expense of a major
health problem would be a significant eror. Pdlicy exclusions always seem to strike where they hurt the
most. Our daughter wears plastic orthoses (braces) on her feet; these have to be custom-made and
adjusted from time to time. Her shoes must be purchased to accommodate the orthoses; the necessary
width. over-ankle height, and lacing is only found in the most expensive leather tennies, which are
naturally "not a medical expense.” They aiso have to be modified by the orthotics laboratory, ata
minimum cost of $47; this modification is not a covered expense. Laura seldom outgrows her shoes; she
wears them out faster than that. Then we find $100 for another pair. Thisis justone of a host of
examples from which | can choose.

Further, well-child care, the pediatric first line of defense in preventng potential (or additional)

problems from worsening, has not been a paid benefit under most policies we have had. Some of the
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most important early-childhood immunizatons cost approximately fifty dollars each. We never questioned
having these for our children, so we just paid for them: but we can well imagine that other parents wo.uld
be choosing between immunizations and food on the table. Dental and orthodontic care, for which we
have no coverage, is a similar matter.

Whiie many medical expenses are.covered. we also face an annual deductible amount and our
“patient share,” which is typically 20% of an office visit charge. (Laura's highly-trained caregivers typically
charge from $60-$95 per office visit.) If we seek care from a provider who does not have a UCR (usual,
customary, reasonable) fee agreement with the insurance company. we are responsible for any amount in
excess of the "allowed" fee, (usually $39 for an office visit) These extra amounts are not credited as part
of the deductible; they are simply out-of-packet expenses in addition to our “patient share.” The expense
1o us for medical care for our son, who has no major heaith problems. is not excessive: the expense to us
for medical care for our daughter. who has chronic medical problems and a significant physical disabifity.
is another matter. gespite the fact that we have had “good" coverage.

There are many hidden costs to chronic iliness and disability. Unless | wish to drag Laura’s
younger brother (bom in 1983) along on her many appointments, | must pay for child care. It's certainly
not covered by health insurance, and it's hardly deductitie as a medical expense under IRS rules. Child
care deductions on federal taxes are for emplayed parents. Another example: we purchased a used
bicycle for our son, Nathaniel. for $20; we wanted Laura to enjoy the physical and recreational benefits of
piking, too. ..and were fortunate enough to find a "bargain® catalog with an aduit three-wheeler for $278.
(A portable model, which might broaden Laura's recreational horizons. costs $500.) This sort of purchase
could be argued as "adaptive ecuipment” on a tax form, but changes in tax law during the past decade
also purish us. When the allowed medical expenses must exceed 7.5% of taxable income. our relatve

financial comfort means that we cannot itemize those deductions. The hidden costs “don't count™ Our
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extra medical costs mainly reduce our disposable income and potential savings.

One must not suppose, further, that heatth insurance carriers are cooperative in paying covered
expenses. | struggle constantly with our insurer over incomrect denial of benefits, delayed payments, and
excluded diagnostic categories. | shudder to think what happens to families who don‘t have the
necessary energy or comprehension, and who thus fail to receive benefits to which they are entitted. An
additional burden of heavy medical expenses is the battie to have bills paid properly and in a timely
fashion by the health care insurer.

The lack of a single-payer system has meant, repeatedly, that our child has gone without
freatment while we satisfied "pre-existing condition” clauses or waited for an open enroliment period.
Specific example: Laura's short stature and below-normal growth rate gave her a predicted aduit height
of 4'6"—another handicap! Her Stanford endocrindlogist was ready to begin treatment with rONA human
growth hormone. My husband changed employers, and we moved to Ohio. We had to wait six months
before Laura could see a new endocrinologist, six months during which she could have been treated and
could have been growing had her care not been interrupted.

One method by which families often “control” the high costs of raising a child with health
problems is by entering studies. In our case. we considered that we were contributing to the body of
medical knowledge and in retum receiving free treatment for Laura. This works out well, unfess, of
caurse. the double blind study places your child on the placebo. In our case. either Laura was indeed on
the placebo or the dosage in the study was too low to benefit her. We exited the study after nine months.
The current cost of her hGH is approximately $4000 per month, much of it profit to the drug company.
Office visits and laboratory tests are in addition to this amount.

We have received other free care in the past when we resided in Dallas. the Texas Scottish Rite

Hospital provided a wide range of services atno charge. The facility is beautiful and elaborately
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equipped and staffed. the drawbacks of thus type of "dlosed” facility enterged siowly over yme. We did not
have free choice of physitians. and sadly we were exposed to some who could never have attracted and
kept patients based on their interpersonal anc communicative skills: a captve audiencer clientele was
their only hope. Continued conflicts over care delivery-refusal to allow parental presence during invasive
tests: denial of access to records: lengthy and harmfut defays in obtaining eouipment and bracing: lack of
physican chace—eventually led us back to the fee-for-service medical market and the ongoing battles
with the health insurance companies.

We also have had the expenence of be(ongmg to an HMO Managed heaith care pfans are
perfect for ordinary families whose members enjoy fairly good heaith—a piece of luck they are probably
unable to appreciate fully. The general population needs a minor range of services that is easily provided
in the fashion of HIAO's. But a child with serious difficultes recuires the care of highty-trained pediatric
speaalists. and these are not found 1n managed care programs. (In one instance. we were sentto a
member “speaalist” who was not Board-certfied and whor we would never have selected as a caregiver
fur our daughter ) Many special services are contracted from farger facilities such as teaching hospiais.
and they remain costly. Thus. the family whose child recurres these expensive “extras” finds itseif subtly
harassed: the services are grudgingly approved and the process of obtaining care 1s protonged and
troublesome each tme an appointment 1s recuired.

I am not painiing a ficbonal worst-case scenano: | am descrbing something that we have
expenenced first-hand. Once. after lengthy negotation (during which we were supported by our very
patient and dedicated pediatnaian and by the HMO dermatologist). our HMO reluctantly agreed to allow
our daughter to be seen by an expert at an area medical center However. the HMO refused to man e

the authonzation letter, | was recuired to pick it up in person since they were "making a specal provision *

At that tme | was stll recovenng from the Caesanan section birth of our son. | had to pack up our infant.
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our barely-ambulatory daughter, and drive to their distant offices or risk losing the opporiunity for our
daughter to receive care. Was that reasonable or was 1t simply mean-spirited harassment?
{hope you understand that there is much more | could tell, were it not for limitations of space and

the press of time. We are far from the only family experiencing these stresses; in fact, in some respects

we have gotten off lightly. My wide acquaintance with other famities, through our membership in support
groups and a broad personal network, tells m;a that we are not unique; many families are burdened by the
problems in our current systems of heaith insurance and health care delivery.
{ wish to make clear that we do not see our daughter as the burden. Laura makes a positive

contribution to our family; we have great expectations for her and for ourselves as a family. We have

grown personally and found meaning and purpose in our struggles despite many difficult days. We know
our strengths; we feel competent to direct our lives and make our choices. We feel connected to many
fellow citizens whose courage, fortitude. and love sustain them daily as they nurture thesr hurt children.
All of us want full citizenship for our children as they participate in American life-both our children with the
gift of health and our children with disabilities.

Ironically, President Bush came to Cleveland to univedl his health plan, and he cited the success
of programs such as COSE, which provides insurance for small businesses and controls costs. COSE is
one of the insurers who has rejected us! Their “success” is based on their policy of cherry-picking: they
simply refuse to enroll anyone with major health problems. If we did not need health care coverage, we
would of course be accepted.

We do not believe that our country lacks the resources and the ingenuity to revolutionize our
system of national health care. The basic goals must be that of promoting wellness and of caring for all of
our citizenry. The quality of medical care potentially available in the United States is second to none. but

currently it is nuthlessly rationed according to ability to pay. In addressing this issue, we cannot afford
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partisanship; we seem only to lack a leadership with the will to devise a plan and then put it into practice.
refining it as we gain experience.

Presidents. senators. and congressional representatives are elected by the people, to enact the
will of the people. and to govem for the benefit of the people. Write a plan that doesn't burden small
businesses, that prevents corporations from taking in the windfalt from unpaid refiree liability, that
promotes cooperation. controls costs. and reduces the burden of administration. Governrnentis not too

big. it's too serving of selfish interests. Time for it to sesve its citizens!
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF ROBERT H. SWEENEY, PRESIDENT, THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
or CHILDREN'S HosPITALS AND RELATED INSTITUTIONS, INC., ALEXANDRIA, VA

NACHRI ~-- the National Association of Children’s Hospitals
and Related Institutiong -- is pleased to submit this statement
for the record of the Select Committee’s May 5, 1992, hearing,
“Health Care Reform: How Do Women, Children, and Teens Fare?"
NACHRI strongly commends the committee for addressing an issue of
such great importance to both the health of children and their
families today and the future of the nation tomorrow.

Backqround

NACHRI is the only national, voluntary association of
children’s hospitals. It represents more than 100 institutions
in the United States, including free—standing children’s
hospitals, pediatric departments of major medical centers, and
specialty hospitals, such as pediatric rehabilitation and chronic
care facilities. Virtually all of the children’s hospitals are
teaching hospitals and research centers, and many function as
regional referrxal centers for specialized care.

while they are best known as tertiary level hospitals
providing highly specialized inpatient care for very sick,
disabled, or injured children, children’s hospitals are also
major providers of outpatient care, including primary, emergency,
and specialty care in ambulatory settings. Indeed, the typical
children’s hospital functions as the primary care pediatrician
for the children living in the surrounding neighborhood, as well
as the provider of specialized hospital care for children
throughout the region with acute and chronic health care
conditions.

In this statement, NACHRI speaks to:
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children’s hospitals’ support for health care reform;

common themes among the growing numbexr of health care reform
bills;

the importance of assuring health insurance for low income,
working families;

the importance of assuring a minimum health benefits package
that reflects the health care needs of children;

the need to recognize that several health care reform
proposals seek to contain health care costs by extending to
private insurance the use of the Medicare prospective
payment system (PPS) rules, which are not designed to
reflect the health care needs of children;

the need to recognize that several health care reform
proposals seek to contain health care costs by expanding use
of managed care, which requires protections to ensure
children‘s access to regionalized and specialized health
care services when they need them.

Children’s Hospitals Support
for Health Care Reform

NACHRI strongly supports the efforts of Members of Congress

to develop national policies that will ensure financial access to
health care for every American. The children’s hospitals are
acutely aware of the need for such reform because of their roles
as children’s advocates, indigent care providers, catastrophic
health care providers, and pediatric health care providers:

Children’s Advocates As advocates for the health and
well-being of children, children’s hospitals believe it is
imperative that the nation recognize that more than 28% of
uninsured Americans under the age of 65 are children, and
that the growth in the numbers of uninsured is a direct
consequence of the decline in employer-sponsored dependent
coverage, as well as the increasing cOsts and restrictions
on private health insurance to small businesses. Lack of
health insurance limits children’s access to health care,
which jeopardizes their future health and well-being.

Indigent Care Providers As institutions that freguently
have historic missions of caring for all children and
because of their inner-city locations, children's hospitals
have become major providers of health care to the children
of low income families. On average, a children's hospital
devotes more than 40% of its care to children of families
who lack private health care insurance and depend on either
public assistance such as Medicaid or charity for their
children’s care.
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° Catastrophic Health Care Providers Because they are
organized to care for the sickest of children and children
with serious chronic conditions, children‘’s hospitals see a
disproportionate share of children who are uninsurable,
regardless of income, because their health care needs exceed
the limits of their parents’ health care insurance or
trigger pre-existing condition exclusions which prevent
continuous health care coverage when their parents change
employment.

[ Pediatric Health Care Providers Children‘s hospitals exist
precisely because the health care needs of children are so
different from the health care needs of adults. And in
caring for children, children’s hospitals are acutely aware
that the health care insurance needs of children are
different, too.

Children’s hospitals are not alone in their concern about
the inadequacy of children’s financial access to health care.
Repeated public opinion survey research demonstrates that
Americans are deeply concerned about the need for the nation to
invest in the health of its children. 1In particular, national
surveys have shown that a majority of Americans not only wants
government to spend more for health care for all children but
also would be willing to pay small increases in personal taxes in
order for all children to have improved access to health care.

Common Themes in Health Care Reform Bills

There are now more than 50 Congressional proposals to reform
access to health insurance and health care, plus the President'’s
proposal and those of many private organizations and individuals.
Their diversity is almost as great as their numbers, encompassing
tax-based market reforms, reform of health insurance for the
small business market, "play or pay" models, single-payer models
based on the Canadian system or Medicare, and "managed
competition" that relies on a vexsion of managed care. As a
consequence, Congressional consensus on overall health care
reform has yet to emerge; indeed, it has not formed within each
party.

Despite the lack of overall consensus, a number of common
themes are apparent:

° bipartisan support for assuring health insurance for
families of individuals employed by small businesses;

° bipartisan support for the principle of a minimum health
benefits package for all insured, regardless of whether it
is paid for by private insurance or with public assistance
funds; and
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[ ] support, in some quarters, for assuring cost containment,
particularly through Medicare’s diagnosis related group
(DRG)-based prospective payment system (PPS) rules and
through managed care.

Precisely because children’s health care needs are
different from adults’, children’s hospitals bring a special
point of view to each of these themes.

Agsuring Health Insurance
for Low Income Working Families

In the fall of 1989, NACHRI conducted a one month survey of
the uninsured admissions to 22 children’s hospitals in order to
take a "snapshot” picture of the uninsured children seen in these
hospitals. The survey found that:

Typically a child who is uninsured at the time of admission
to a children’s hospital is very young and has few siblings.
At least one parent is employed, often for a small firm, and
in either the service or the construction industry. Usually
the parent cannot obtain insurance through the employer,

but the family’s low income makes private insurance
unaffordable to purchase personally. It is not unusual for
the child to need immediate hospitalization for emergent or
urgent care. About half of the time, the child eventually
is found to be eligible for Medicaid after admission to the
hospital -- the younger the child, the more likely the child
proved to be Medicaid eligible.

In general, this profile of uninsured children seen by
children’s hospitals is consistent with Current Population Survey
data collected by the U.S. Census Bureau. But the subsequent
identification of Medicaid eligibility demonstrates that
eligibility for national health insurance or public assistance
alone is no guarantee of coverage for, access to, or use of
appropriate care. This is especially striking in light of the
fact that more than 50% of the uninsured admissions identified in
the NACHRI snapshot survey involved children in need of immediate
hospitalization for emergent oX urgent care.

According to Current Population Survey data, more than 70%
of uninsured children live in poor or near-poor families with
incomes less than 200% of the federal poverty level. These are
families which are most vulnerable to moving in and out of the
work force. These low income families also are the most likely
to live in medically under-served communities where health care
services are unavailable, regardless of the insurance status of
the families.

Insuring access to appropriate health care for these
children will begin but not end with guarantees of health
insurance or public assistance.
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Agsuring a Minjmum Benefits Package

A minimum benefits package that makes sense for adults will
not necessarily make sense for children, since children have
different health care needs from adults. For example, Medicare
for the elderly is often cited as an effective model of public
health insurance, yet its benefits, co-payflent, and reimbursement
are not designed to reflect the special needs of children. The
table attached to this statement jllustrates the striking
differences in health care utilization by children and elderly
adults.

Compared to elderly adults, children use less of both
ambulatory and acute health care. They have far fewer hospital
admissions, shorter inpatient stays, fewer physician visits, and
much less long-term care. When they do use health care,
children are more likely to use ambulatory and primary care than
are the elderly, because children have basic preventive health
care needs that are critical to their future development and
different from adults’ preventive health care needs.

As a consequence, the minimum benefits package which
Medicare provides would be inappropriate for children. Medicare
emphasizes acute care over primary and preventive care, both in
benefits covered and in co-payment requirements.

For example, for children, immunizations, preventive dental
care, developmental assessments, and anticipatory guidance, as
well as medical, vision, and hearing screening are essential to
prevention and early treatment of conditions that otherwise could
cause significant morbidity and mortality. However, since they
either are not indicated for the elderly, or can be less critical
for this population, Medicare does not cover such services.

Similarly, Medicare Part B deductible and co-payments would
be even more of a barrier to children’s use of primary and
preventive care than they already are for many of the elderly.
Even for acute care, Medicare's co-payment reguirements would
need to be adjusted, because they are related to the cost of the
first day of inpatient care. By tying deductibles to the cost of
the first day of hospitalization, Medicare would force the
families of children, who on average have shorter hospital stays
but higher per diem costs than adults, to pay a proportionately
larger cost for hospitalization. The impact of these co-payments
on the families of children is especially significant, since
children -- as the single largest group of poor Americans -- are
especially vulnerable financially.

A basic benefits package for children must employ
co-payments so as to encourage primary care, reflect the limited
resources of young families, and build on the principles of the
Medicaid Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment
(EPSDT} program.
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Assuring Cost Contaimment Through Medicare Payment
Rules and Managed Care

Two of the most frequently mentioned methods of health care
cost containment are reimbursement based on the model of Medicare
DRG-based prospective payment and managed care. However, without
adjustments for the requirements of pediatric health care, each
can be inappropriate to ensuring the continued availability of

services children need.

Medicare Payment Rules When hospitalized, children require
more intensive staffing -~ to meet both their developmental and
health care needs; more specialized health care ~- to meet their
different health care needs; and more space and physical
resources -- to meet their families’ needs as well as their own.
As a consequence, the full resource needs of efficient and
effective inpatient hospital care for children cannot be
reflected in a reimbursement system based on average health care
costs reflecting adult health care needs.

In particular, Medicare's DRG-~based prospective payment
system (PPS) is inappropriate for pediatric hospital care for
several reasons:

Medicare DRGs (diagnosis related groups) -- as a method of
case-mix classification -- do not distinguish sufficiently
among the resource demands of treating different pediatric
diagnoses. (For example, the Medicare DRGs often do not
distinguish between complicated and uncomplicated diagnoses

for children the way they do for adults.)

Medicare cost accounting principles fail to reflect the
higher costs of pediatric hospitalizations, because they are
based on general hospitals’ cost transfer from pediatric to
adult patients. The Medicare cost report averages adults
and pediatric health care costs; it does not distinguish

between the two.

Medicare outlier policies fail to reflect the much higher
incidence of high cost and long stay cases among

children than adults, resulting from children being more
likely to become sicker faster and to need intensive care

more often when hospitalized.

Medicare reimbursement for medical education and capital was
not designed to address the specialized training required by
pediatric nurses, physicians, and technicians and the more
intensive facility needs of children.

Last summer, in its annual update of the Medicare DRG-based PPS,
the Health Care Financing Administration noted:
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...(TYhe prospective payment system, and the DRG
classifications in particular, are based on Medicare data
and are designed for the Medicare population, that is, the
elderly and the disabled. Therefore, changes and
modifications that we make to that system may not always be
appropriate for a younger population, such as the one
treated most often in children’s hospitals. (Federal
Register, August 30, 1991, page 43211)

NACHRI is encouraged that several bills that would expand
use of the Medicare PPS rules to private insurance do recognize
the need for adjustments of those rules to reflect the needs of
children in general and the patients of children’s hospitals in
particular. But these bills often defer to the discretion of the
Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services
determination of the type and extent of such adjustments, if any.

There are many problems raised by proposals to extend
Medicare payment rules to private insurance. Congress should not
adopt such a policy without first engaging in a thorough
assessment of the impact of such a policy, as is proposed in the
Senate-passed small business market reform legislation. And even
with such research, Congress should require any policy based
on Medicare payment rules to:

reflect modifications of the Medicare payment system and
payment adjustments adequate and appropriate to meet the
special hospital inpatient resource requirements for
children, with updates and rebasing determined through the
use of pediatric-specific inpatient data; and provided
further that such payment shall be developed on a
hospital-specific basis for hospitals whose inpatients are
predominantly children.

Manaqed Care As a result of their missions of service to
children, children’s hospitals embody many of the principles
underpinning managed care. They seek to avoid hospitalization
whenever medically possible, because it is in the best interests
of a child’ development. They value the importance of
coordination of care because of their extensive experience in
working with children who often have highly specialized and
challenging conditions. And because they see in their emergency
rooms the consequences of the inability of families to obtain
p;lmary and preventive care, children‘s hospitals have become
major proponents of primary care, both in organizing primary care
services and advocating preventive care in their communities.

However, children’'s hospitals also know from their
experience that if driven only by cost containment managed care
can reduce, rather imrove access to necessary care, especially
for children with special health care needs. In order to serve
the different health care needs cof children, managed care plans
must ensure continuing and ready access to primary care, as well
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as to pediatric specialists who can coordinate the care of
children with specialized health care needs. The latter is
especially important, since children are more vulnerable to
delays than are adults. They develop serious complications more
rapidly than adults, because they have less physiological
reserves and less fully developed organ systems.

In addition, it also is important for managed care systems
to reflect in their reimbursement the different needs of children
and the different resource demands on the children’s hospitals,
including care to low income patients, emergency and specialized
care, and medical education. For example, children require about
50% more nursing care than do adult patients. And children’s
hospitals carry a greater burden of graduate medical education,
because -~ with only about 10% of all pediatric hospital beds in
the country -~ they account for more than 25% of pediatric
residency training.

The risk of pursuing managed care first and foremost for the
purposes of cost containment -- particularly given the serious
inadequacy of existing public financing and reimbursement for
health care for children of low income families -~ is that it
will discourage rather than improve children’s access to the full
range of health care services they need. NACHRI believes that
managed care must:

° ensure adequate reimbursement for efficiently and
economically delivered health care services, with
appropriate payment adjustments to meet the needs of
providers sexrving a disproportionate share of low income

patients;
° prohibit arbitrary limits -- such as durational inpatient
stay limits or dollar caps -- on inpatient hospital care;
(] ensure recognition of specialized care management and

financial requirements of health care for “"children with
special health care needs;" and

° ensure the fiscal solvency of managed care entities and the
quality of care for which they contract.

Conclusion

As the Select Committee continues to explore the impact of
health care reform proposals on children’s access to health care,
NACHRI would be pleased to be of assistance.
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DIFFERENCES IN HEALTH CARE UTILIZATION

BETWEEN CHILDREN AND ADULTS

RIC

Health Care Utilization Children Elderly
Ambulatory visits/ 8.4/year 8.3/year
individual/year (a) {undexr age 5) (ages 65+)
2.9/year
(ages 5 - 17)
Hospital admissions/ 5.7/100 >36.8/100
100 people/year (b) children under
age 15
Average length of stay (c) 4.6 days 8.7 days
Number of acute conditions/ 3.3/year 1/year
individual/year (d) (undexr age 5) (ages 65+)
2.4/year
{ages 5 - 17)
Annual costs of personal $745/yeax/ $5,360/yeax/
health care/individual/ child under individual
year (e) age 19 65+

(a) National Center for Health Statistics,

“Current Estimates

From the National health Interview Survey, United States,

1985, " Table 1, page 13.

(b) National Center for Health Statistics,
Short-Stay Hospitals, United States,

(Excludes newborns.)

(c) National Center for Health Statistics,
Short-Stay Hospitals, United States,

{Exclude newborns.)

(d) National Center for Health Statistics,

1985, "

1985, "

"Utilization of
Table B, page 3.

"Utilization of
Table B, Page 3.

"Current Estimates

from the National Health Interview Survey, United States,

1985, " Table 1, page 13.

3, pages 116-117.\
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF THE AMERICAN ACADEMY OF PEDIATRICS, WASHINGTON, DC

The American Academy of Pediatrics is an organization of
43,000 physician members who are dedicated to the health,
safety and well-being of infants, children, adolescents and
young adults. We thank you for inviting us to address the

important issue of children’s access to health care.

The Case for Children First:

The Academy believes all United States citizens deserve
proper medical care, but we believe that, as we move towards
universal health care reform, the first step should be health
care coverage for children and pregnant women. Our children
simply cannot afford the time it may take to debate and enact
a universal health care reform bill. For far too long,
children’s lack of access to health care has been slighted by
our society. As this Committee knows, we cannot afford to
ignore this crisis any longex. The time has come for this
country to beccme a nation that makes the health and

well-being of its children its highest priority.

The fact is, children, our most vulnerable population, are
29% of the population, but they represent 36% of the

uninsured. Approximately 12.5 million children have no

health insurance. Millions more children are underinsured.
They are without adegquate insurance coverage for necessary
treatment services and for even the most basic care needed to

prevent unnecessary disease and death. Still others are

"uninsurable" because of preexisting chronic or recurring
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conditions. Families with special needs children should not
be further burdened with significant concerns about how to
finance the critical and often multiple health services

needed.

Surprisingly, a large number of uninsured children do not
come fr m stereotypical "poor families". The majority live
in two parent families where there is at least one parent who
is a full-time employee earning an income above the poverty
line. Less than one in four is from a minority household.
These families are not covered by either Medicaid or private
health insurance; they fall between the cracks of a system
that requires them to pay for all health care services out of

their own pockets.

Problems with Insurance:

The majority of health insurance coverage in America is
provided through employers, but the availability and quality
of employer-based insurance, especially for employee
dependents, is declining. Economically pressed employers are
either dropping dependent health insurance, reducing the
benefit packages, and/or requiring employees to pay a higher
share of premium for dependent coverage, thereby discouraging
dependent coverage. Between 1981 and 1986, the number of
employers that fully covered employee‘s dependents declined
from 51% to 35%. Nearly 1/4 of uninsured children have
insured parents. In addition, plans that do cover dependents

often fail to meet basic health needs of children.
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Children's medical care needs and consequently their
utilization and costs are very different from adults. Most
child health services are provided in an ambulatory setting
and are often not covered by health insurance (immunizations,
prenatal visits). Private health insurance plans have an
array of benefits designed to cover an adult pattern of
utilization (inpatient care and high-cost procedures), but

they do not address children’s needs.

value of Preventive Care:

Not only are uninsured children unable to receive medical
attention when they are sick, but they also fail to receive
preventive care. Preventive care, the hallmark of pediatric
practice, is poorly cover: if at all, despite the economic
payback and medical efficacy of childhood immunizations,
injury prevention counseling, and screening for anomalies
which can prevent or lessen lifetime disability when detected
early. This results in unnecessary suffering for the child
and his or her family along with higher costs. The Academy
believes that preventive care is critical to any proposal

designed to provide a healthier future for our children.

Lack of preventive care can lead to dire consequences.
Uninsured children tend to experience delays in care leading
to more expensive, and less effective treatment with poor
outcomes. Uninsured children are less likely to be immunized
than children with insurance. In fact, the percentage of

fully immunized two-year-olds is decreasing. One in four
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American pre-school children is incompletely immunized
against diseases including measles, whooping cough, mumps and
polio. Outbreaks of these preventable diseases are
increasing. Between 1983 and 1990, the incidence of measles
increased nearly 1800 percent - despite the fact that this
deadly disease is easily prevented by immunization. The goal
of the U.S. Public Health Service was to reduce the number of
measles cases to 500 by 1990. Instead, the nation averaged
500 cases per week that year, which translated into roughly
one death a week among preschool-age children. How can we,

as a nation, stand by and not act?

Our children do not have to suffer. Vaccines have been
highly effective in preventing infectious diseases. Along
with the obvious health benefits, vaccines are cost-effective
as well. For every $1 spent on immunizations, we save an
estimated $10 in future health care costs. Prenatal care,
perhaps the best investment society can make in terms of
immediate and long~term savings, is frequently excluded from
private insurance. For every $1 spent on guality prenatal
care, more than $3 can be saved by reducing the number of low
birthweight babies. Ensuring proper health care for our
children is crucial to our nation‘s future. The Carnegie
Institute reported that 70 percent of teachers had students
whose education was adversely impacted by poor health or
nutrition. Our nation‘s ability to compete in the world
market of tomorrow, depends on the type of health care we

provide our children today.




The Case for Pregnant Women:

Health insurance problems affect children even before they

are born. One of every four pregnant women is not insured

for maternity care, and a comparable proportion do not

receive any prenatal care during the first trimester. Lack

of counseling about proper nutrition and use of alcohol,

tobacco and drugs, can result in low-birthweight babies,

prematurity and a high rate of infant mortality. 1In 1950,

the United States had the sixth best infant mortality rate in

the world. It has since plummeted to 21st ~ behind Singapore,

Spain and other poorer countries. Our infant mortality rate

is now higher than that of any other industrialized nation.

The First Step:

The moral imperative and the value of preventive care and

early intervention for children and pregnant women, are

strong arguments for starting our march towards universal

access with children and pregnant women.

Over the past two years, the American Academy of Pediatrics

has focused its efforts on developing a plan entitled

"Children First", to provide financial access to health care

for children through age 21 and all pPregnant women. We are

pleased that Congressman Robert Matsui, along with 39

bipartisan cosponsors, has introduced H.R. 3323, "The

Children and Pregnant Women's Health Insurance Act of 1991,

legislation modeled after the Academy’s "Children First"
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legislative proposal. This legislation essentially
establishes health care as a right for all children and
pregnant women, and it can serve as a model to expand
financial access to the health care system for other age
groups. Such a plan embraces the principles presented
earlier in the hearing by Sarah Brown from the Institute of

Medicine.

Conclusion:

As pediatricians, we witness events that the rest of society
would choose to ignore -- the consequences of the lack of
access to health care intertwined with social and
environmental travesties. These include: addicted infants,
school failure due to malnutrition, children needlessly
maimed by environmental hazards, children suffering long~texm
sexual abuse and children suffering need .essly from diseases

that could have been prevented.

At this time, when the awful state of our children is
becoming apparent to all who are willing to look and capable
of seeing, when the consequences are frightening to all who
can look to the future and understand the implications of the
present, we cannot accept rhetoric and token actions, be they
well-meaning or self-serving. We must demand pragmatic
proposals for meaningful action. Putting our children and
pregnant women first under national health care reform is an

important step in the right direction.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF Bor Griss, SENiorR HeALTH PoLicy RESEARCHER anp Co-

CHAIR, HeALTH TASK FORCE CONSORTIUM FOR CITIZENS WITH DISABILITIES, UNITED
CEREBRAL PALSY ASSOCIATIONS

May 15, 1992

House Select Committee on
Children, Youth & Families

385 Ford House Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20515-6401

Enclosed is the CCD Health Task Force testimony on the
Principles for Health Care Reform from a Disability
Perspective for the hearing record of the House Select
Committee on Children, Youth & Families.

I hope we have an opportunity to work more closely with
your Committee on future hearings and educational
strategies around the need for comprehensive health care
benefits. Ironically, these are not included in small
group insurance reform proposals, or in the minimum benefit
package of “"Play or Pay" proposals, or even in the existing
Medicare benefit package.

We believe that the health care crisis cannot be solved by
extending acute-care oriented health insurance to all
persons when a majority of Americans have chronic health
conditions. Unless these issues of comprehensive health
benefits are better understood by Congress and the American
people, the growing pressure for cost containment will
undermine access to the health care benefits that persons
with disabilities or chronic illness are likely to need.

Looking forward to working with you on these critical
issues, I remain,

Sincerely,

Bet Yoy

Bob Griss

Senior Health
Policy Researcher

and
Co-chair, Health Task Force
Consortium for Citizens
with Disabilities
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Consortium for
Citizens with
Disabilities

STATEMENT OF TEE
CONBORTIUM FOR CITISEMS WITE DISABILITIES

HEALTH TASK FORCE

to the
SELECT COMMITTEE OM CHILDREM, YOUTH, AMD FAMILIES
of the
U.8. House of Representatives
on the subject of

“EPALTH CARE REPORM: HOW DO WOMEN, CHILDREK, AND TEENS FARE?"
May 5, 1992
ON BEHALY OF:

AID8 Action Council

Alliance of Genatic Bupport Groups

American Acadery of Physical Medicine and Rshebilitetion
Americer Association for Counseling and Development
American Association of University Affilieted Programs
American Association on Mental Retardation

American Civil Liberties Union

American Congress of Rehabilitation Medicine

American Foundation for the Blind

American Occupetional Therapy Association

American Physical Tharapy Association

American speach-Language-Eearing Association

Association for Retarded Cititens of the United Btates
Epilepsy Poundation of America

Immune Deficiency Youndatioxn

Internetionel Association of Psychosocial Rehabilitation Services
Leerning Disabilities Rssociation

Mational Alliance for the Msntally Ill

National Association of Protection ana Advocacy Bystems
National Associetion of Private Residential Resources
National Association of Rehabilitaetion Pecilities
Netional Association of Developmental Disabilities Councils
National Association of State Mental Retardation Program Dirsctors
National Council on Independent Living

National Easter Beal Bocisty

National Head Injury Foundation

National Mental Health Association

Netional Multiple Sclarosis Sociaty

Nationel Organixation for Rare Disorders

National Parsnt Network on Disabilities

Nationel Recreation and Parks Association

Netional Rehabilitation Association

National Transplant Support Network

Spine Bifida Association of America

The Associetion for Persons with Sevsre Disabilities
United Cerebral Palsy Associetions, Inc.

wWorld Institute on Disability
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PRINCIPLES FOR HEALTH CARE REFORM FROM A DISABILITY PERSPECTIVE
FROM THE HEALTH TASK FORCE OF
THE CONSORTIUM FOR CITIZENS WITH DISABILITIES

INTRODUCTION

Ms. Chairwoman and Members of the Committee. The
organizations represented in CCD’s Health Task Force appreciate the
opportunity to express our priorities for health care reform from
a disability perspective. The time is ripe to sharpen the debate
for national health care reform. We commend the Ways and Means
Committee for holding this series of hearings to focus this debate
on one of the most important civil rights issues of the 1990’s.

The Consortium for Citizens with Disabilities is a working
coalition comprised of over 70 consumer, service provider, and
professional organizations which advocate on behalf of persons with
disabilities and their families. This statement is presented on
behalf of 37 national organizations who comprise the overwhelming
majority of CCD Health Task Force members. The more than 43
million Americans with disabilities include individuals with
physical or mental impairments, conditions, disorders, severe acute
or chronic illness which limit or impede their ability to function.
Such disabilities may occur as a result of disease, injury, sudden
trauma, aging, or congenital anomaly. One of the reasons for the
passage last year of the historic Americans with Disabilities Act
was to finally recognize not only the existence and importance of
these millions of Americans with disabilities, but also to ensure
their individual civil rights.

When one considers the numbers and range of individuals
covered by the definition of disability, it is no wonder that the
issue of access to appropriate, adequate, and affordable health
care and related support systems is of such critical importance to
the ccb. In fact, while 43 million is the official number cited
for persons with disabilities, the CCD believes that, in actuality,
this number is an under-estimation. Therefore, it is also no wonder
that any discussion of reform of the nation’s health care system
must include not only the generic consumer perspective but also the
unique perspective of consumers with disabilities. It is the belief
of the ccCD that addressing the disability perspective in the
current health care reform debate will ultimately benefit all
Americans.

In considering the issue of health from the disability
perspective, it is essential to re-focus our conception of what
being "healthy" really is. For so many people with disabilities
health is determined by functional capacity. It is the ability to
maintain or increase this functional capacity that is often the
measure of the person with disabilities opportunity to live an
independent life and participate as fully as possible in the life
of the community. True realization of the rights now guaranteed by
the ADA and other important pieces of civil rights legislation,
unfortunately, will continue to be limited as long as people with

a .o
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disabilities do not have access to a seamless array of life-long
health, personal, and support services.

The CCD has determined that any effort to reform the nation’s
health care system must be built on five basic principles:
non-discrimination, comprehensiveness, appropriateness, equity, and
efficiency. Only in this manner can we ensure that national health
care reform efforts take into consideration the needs of Americans
with disabilities.

PRINCIPLES

The CCD believes that any ultimate solution to the health care
crisis must be based on the principle of non-discrimination
ensuring that people with disabilities of all ages and their
families have the opportunity to fully participate. The CCD would
define a successful health care system as one that offers a
comprehensive array of health, rehabilitation, personal, and
support services, as well as a system that ensures that these
services are appropriate in that they are provided on the basis of
each individual’s need, personal choice, and situation. 1In
addition, any truly effective solution must be equitable ensuring
that no group of individuals bears a disproportionate burden.
Finally, the CCD asserts that an effective and accessible health
care system must be efficient ensuring that system resources are
utilized to meet health care needs. The CCD strongly supports the
right to health care for all persons regardless of income or health
status.

Non-Discrimination: People with disabilities of all ages and their
families must be able to fully participate in the nation‘s health
care system.

People with disabilities are often discriminated against in
the health insurance marketplace because they are presumed to be
high health care users. 1In fact, most people with disabilities are
not sick. Nevertheless, private insurers use medical underwriting
practices which are designed to ensure that high users of health
care are charged higher premiums, subjected to preexisting
condition exclusions, or rejected totally as an "unacceptable
risk". Discrimination occurs when a sizeable proportion of persons
with disabilities who are actually low users of health care are
denied insurance or subjected to preexisting condition exclusions.
Discrimination also occurs when high users of health care are
denied adequate coverage because they cannot afford the premiums or
are subjected to 1limitations on covered services. From a
disability perspective, the very practice of experience-rating
which ensures that premiums are set on the basis of previous
utilization, is a form of unfair discrimination against high users.

Access to health care for individuals with disabilities cannot
be considered in a vacuum. Historically, discrimination on the
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basis of disability has limited opportunities in employment,
education, housing, travel, and other aspects of daily life. Now,
with rights guaranteed in so many of these areas by the passage of
the Americans with Disabilities Act and other important civil
rights 1legislation, there 1is a growing realization 1in the
disability community that access to health care is a major barrier
that threatens to interfere with the attainment of these rights.
The CCD believes that the present inability of a substantial
proportion of people with disabilities to participate in the
nation’s health care system at a level which meets their needs is
a direct reflection of the continued misperception of both tle
skills and needs of people with disabilities. Non-discrimination
requires that the health care financing system:

o prohibits pre-existing condition exclusions;

o prohibits rating practices that discriminate against
higher users of health care;

o ensures that all persons, regardless of income or

health status, have access to the al’ needed health
related services;

] provides access without regard to age, race, place of
residence, or the characteristics of persons with
whom one maintains family relationsnhips;

] ensures continuity and portability of coverage.

Comprehensiveness: People with disabilities and their families must
have access to a health care system that ensures a comprehensive
array of health, rehabilitation, personal, and support services
across all service categories and sites of service delivery.

The CCD asserts that an effective and comprehensive health
care system, one that is responsive to the needs of people with
disabilities, would provide a seamless array of life-long health
related services. Comprehensiveness implies the broadest set of
services that assist individuals with disabilities and their
families to achieve and sustain optimum physical and mental
function. The terms "health, rehabilitation, personal, and support
services", used by the CCD, refers to a universe of services
delivered by a range of practitioners in a variety of sites and
illustrates the necessary breadth of a health care delivery system
that is truly accessible to people with disabilities. Over the
course of a lifetime, all people commonly require a broad array of
health, rehabilitation, personal, and support services. However,
access to the entire array of these services must be ensured for
people with disabilities. Often it is the availability of these
services that can determine their ability to live independent lives
and fully participate in the community. Moreover, adequate access
can prevent exacerbation of a small health problem from developing
into a larger more costly health problem. People with disabilities
would most benefit from a health care system that includes access
to:
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o preventive services, including services to prevent the
worsening of a disability

o health promotion/education services

[} diagnostic services

o inpatient and outpatient physician services

o hospital inpatient and outpatient care

o long term care in medical facilities

[} long and short term home and community~based services

o prescription drugs, biologicals, and medical foods

] mental health and counseling services

[} habilitation services

o rehabilitation services, including audiology,
occupational therapy, physical therapy, respiratory
therapy. speech-language pathology services,
cognitive, vision, and behavioral therapies, and
therapeutic recreation

[} personal assistance services and independent living
services

[} durable medical equipment and other assistive devices,

equipment, and related services

Appropriateness: People with disabilities and their families must
be assured that comprehensive health, rehabilitation, personal, and
support services are provided on the basis of individual need,
preference, and choice.

Particular attention must be placed on the appropriateness of
available services. It is of critical importance to the disability
community that full involvement of the "consumer" is assured in all
decisions affecting the selection of service, service provider,
service timing, and service setting. CCD is concerned that certain
forms of managed care create an incentive for under-serving persons
with disabilities and often utilize gate-keepers who are not
knowledgeable about the special health care needs of persons with
disabilities. :

The issue of consumer choice and participation has a
particular importance for persons with disabilities. While the
present acute-~-care oriented health care system has a tendency to
relegate all "consumers" to a dependent status embodied in the
usick role", this indignity is particularly disempowering to
persons with disabilities when their chronic health conditions are
permanent. That is why the health related services for persons
with disabilities must be delivered in a way that minimizes
interference with normal activities, and that health care financing
policies which govern access to health care for persons Wwith
chronic conditions must be sensitive to issues of locus and
control.

It is essential that decisions about health care services
reflect personal preference and maximum benefit to the individual
rather than provider and service setting availability, cost-
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containment goals, or coverage limits. CCD asserts that meaningful
access to health care involves the right of the individual consumer
to participate in the decision-making process regarding the
provision of needed services and to be educated so appropriate
self-care is possible.

In addition, CCD strongly believes that persons with
disabilities must be involved in policy decisions that will guide
the nation’s health care system. An appropriate health care system
is one which:

o includes consumer participation;

o ensures consumer choice in relation to services and
provider;

o ensures a range of service settings through an
integrated delivery system;

o ensures appropriate amount, scope, and duration of
services;

o ensures the availability of trained personnel.

Equity: People with disabilities and their families must be
ensured equitable participation in the nation’s health care system
and not burdened with disproportionate costs.

The CCD asserts that equal access to health services will not
be readily achievable unless payment for health, rehabilitation,
personal, and support services is equitably distributed so that no
individual or public or private sector interest is burdened with a
disproportionate share of the cost. Because of cost issues, too
often people with disabilities and their families have been
required to make unfortunate choices between needed health services
in appropriate settings and what they can afford. These types of
choices obviously do not reflect the principles of
non-discrimination, comprehensiveness, and appropriateness of
services. Health care reform must ensure that people have access
to services based on health care need and not on their employment
status or income level. As a group, pecple with disabilities have
lower incomes than the general population and many 2adults with
disabilities and families with members with disabilities devote a
disproportionate share of their income to health care and
disability related services. An equitable health care system would
be one which:

o limits out of pocket expenses and cost sharing
requirements for participants;

o provides access to services based on health care nheed
and not on income level or employment status;

o ensures adequate reimbursement for service
providers;

Efficiency: People with disabilities and their families must have
access to a health care system that provides a maximum of
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appropriate effective gquality services with a minimum of
administrative waste.

The CCD is conhcernhed that the current fragmentary system has
failed to achieve effective cost controls, or a rational allocation
of health resources, and contributes to substantial administrative
waste. It is estimated that more than 20 percent of health care
expenditures are attributed to administrative costs as 1500 private
health insurers reguire different forms of provider documentation
to trace every claim for reimbursement to the utilization by a
specific individual with his or her own health insurance plan. 1In
addition, the fragmentary system has contributed to the growth of
excess capacity in the health care delivery system, inviting cost
shifting, and undermining efforts to achieve effective cost
controls. This has reinforced pressures for arbitrary cost
containment by limiting coverage in ways that often adversely
affect persons with disabilities.

Moreover, health care financing policy has not evolved much
beyond acute care, failing to respond to the growing need for
preventive care and for chronic health care management which could
significantly reduce the growth of preventable diseases.

An efficient health care system is one that:

o reduces administrative complexity and minimizes
administrative costs; ¢
o allocates resources in a more balanced way=apdetween

preventive services, acute care, rehabilitation,
and chronic care management;

o ensures the delivery of effective services;

o maintains effective cost controls so that all people can
get the health care services which they need.

Based on these “principles" from a disability perspective, CCD is
reviewing various health bills before the House of Representatives,
and will submit a formal statement of our assessment of these bills
as soon as we complete our analysis.

CONCLUSION

The disabil..ty community needs to be a major player in reexamining
health care financing policy. People with disabilities are highly
vulnerable to the limitations of both public and private systems as
they are squeezed between a private system which is designed to
charge accordilnd to an assessment of risk and a public systen which
subsidizes health™ care according to age, poverty status, family
structure, and an 1n*bility to work.

pPrivate health insurance was <&2veloped and has remained a method
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for spreading risk of incurring excessive costs primarily for
hospital and physician services. For individuals with
disabilities, access to health care has been severely restricted
because of preexisting conditions and the mistaken assumption that
most people with disabilities need more hospital and physician care
than the population as a whole. Health care reform needs to
eliminate this restriction and assure access to needed hospital and

physician services. Equally as important, the tradition of
limiting covered services to hospital and physician services must
be changed. Rehabilitation services, personal and support

services, mental health services, and assistive technology must be
recognized as essential components of health care.

Perhaps our greatest contribution will be in clarifying the
principles which should guide our health care system. These
include: (1) expanding the definition of "health" to include
prevention services, rehabilitation therapies, assistive
technology, and on-going health-related maintenance services; (2)
distributing all health related expenses equitably throughout the
population; and (3) restructuring our health care delivery systenm
to more effectively support consumer~directed chronic care

management.

For more information, please contact any of the ccD Health Task
Force Co-chairs:

Bob Griss, United Cerebral Palsy Associations, 1522 K Street, N.W.,
Suite 1112, Washington, D.C. 20005, telephone: (202) 842-1266.

Kathy McGinley, Association for Retarded Ccitizens, 1522 K Street,
N.W., Suite 516, Washington, D.C. 20005, telephone: (202) 785-3388.

Janet O'Keeffe, American Psychological Association, 750 First
Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20002, telephone: (202) 336-3934.

Bill Schmidt, Epilepsy Foundation of America, 4351 Garden City
Drive, Landover, Maryland 20785, telephone: (301) 459-3700.

Steve White, American Speech-Language-Hearing Association, 10801
Rockville, Maryland 20852, telephone: (301} 897-5700.
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. PREPARED STATEMENT OF STEVE A. FREEDMAN, Pu.D.,, F.A.A.P. (HoN.) Executive Dr1-

RECTOR, INSTITUTE FOR CHILD HEALTH PoLiCY, ASSOCIATE PROFZS60R OF PEDIATRICS

AND HEALTH SERVICES ADMINISTRATION, UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FL
Distinguished Chairman, Members of the Committee, I am Steve Freedman. I
direct the Institute for Child Health Policy of the State University System of
Florida and I also have the privilege of directing the National Center for Policy
Coordination in Maternal and Child Health which is supported by a grant from
the Maternal and Child Health Bureau of the U.S. Public Health Service (MCHB).

On March 31, 1988, an article was published in the New England Journal of
Medicine, that outlined the School Enrollment-based Health Insurance concept.
Subsequent to the publication of that article, the Robert Wood Johnson
Foundation provided a planning grant to the Institute to develop a
demonstration of the concept. The Foundation's interest stemmed from their
broad national concern for finding alternative mechanisms to finance access to
health care for the uninsured. In addition, the Maternal and Child Health Bureau
of the U.S. Public Health Service has provided funds to the National Center to
determine the feasibility of the proposed program of School Enrollment-based
Health Insurance. MCHB was motivated to provide that support, in part by its
commitment under Title V to assuring family centered, community-based
comprehensive care.

Context of the Proposal

The proposal for School Enrollment-based Health Insurance evolved out of our
understanding of the current financing and access issues related to adequate
health care in the United States. Because I am aware that this Committee and its
professional staff are fully cognizant of the statistics surrounding the issue of the
uninsured, I will not take up your time reiterating those data.

I would like to begin with two fundamental principles. The first is that all
individuals in this country participate in the health care risk pool. The second is
that there is no such thing as uncompensated care. Let me explain. Sometime
during their lifetime, virtually every individual in this country will seek and
secure access to health care. In financing terms that access is called “risk”. All
those who secure access make up what is termed the “risk pool”. However, not
all individuals participate in financing the cost of that risk pool. Hence, the
financing of that risk is disproportionately distributed to and subsidized by
policy-holders and taxpayers through premium increases and tax increases. That
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brings me to my second point, i.e., there is no such thing as uncompensated care.
Compensation is received by providers for all health care events. However, that
compensation is not always paid directly by the individual receiving the care or
from a public or private insurance program intended to support the care for that
individual. Sometimes the compensation is paid indirectly through increased
premium rates for those who are insured and increased taxes for those who must
support publicly financed programs. Thus, while there may not be any
uncompensated care, there is an overwhelming amount of inappropriately
financed care. For example, last year in Florida, $600 million in hospital care was
described as uncompensated. However, I can assure you that, in this and
subsequent years, this care will be inappropriately financed by increases in per
diem rates charged to public and private insurers. Consequently, one of the
underlying principles behind the School Enroliment-based Health Insurance
Program is that we must find ways to encourage all individuals and families to
assume some financial responsibility for the cost of their own health care. Itis
important to get those who are capable, but now pay nothing, to pay something,
because the cost of their care is paid for by the rest of us. The $64 billion question
is - how?

Like most programs on the current public agenda attempting to deal with the
problems of the uninsured, School Enrollment-based Health Insurance is not
intended to be a universal solution. However, our approach does have broad
applicability. From our understanding of the existing data, we have concluded
that nearly two-thirds of the uninsured are members of the immediate family of
an individual enrolled in school. You already know that the uninsured tend to
be young individuals who are employed in circumstances that, as a practical
matter, don’t offer affordable health insurance. You also know that the largest
single uninsured segment of our society is children. Logically, these children are
linked to uninsured employees in a majority of cases. As a consequence, the
School Enroliment-based Health Insurance idea is based upon school enrollment
since it is the common bond that links many of the uninsured together within
families.

I want to re-emphasize that the uninsured typically are employed but have a
limited economic capacity to afford what has become a prohibitively expensive
product, health insurance. The fact is that there is a direct statistical relationship
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between income and insurance coverage. Another germane fact is that most
uninsured individuals and families have some resources with which to
participate in the cost pool. However, they can neither afford the full premium
for a health insurance policy nor the bill for a single day in most major hospitals.

I cannot help but note the rapidly waning availability of commercial group
health insurance for small businesses. This is due in large part to the high cost of
insuring groups of small size for risk-spreading. Additionally, the federal ERISA
legislation has had an impact on the cost of health insurance. The exemption of
ERISA qualified plans from state mandates and state taxes leaves employers,
public and commercial insurers holding the bag. Not only must these groups
comply with state public policies, but they are also left with the responsibility of
the unpaid costs that are shifted as a resuit of the uncox;ered, but used, health
care services of ERISA plan employees. In fact, ERISA has caused many
commercial insurers to move rapidly away from insuring health risk and toward
the administration of self-insurance plans. Consequently, at this time,
commercial group health insurance is becoming available only to large groups.
This fact brings me back to school systems as grouping mechanisms that can
provide the kinds of large groups that are still attractive to insuring
organizations.

Concept of School Enroliment-based Health Insurance

Underlying the concept of School Enroliment-based FHealth Insurance, is the idea
of a private/public partnership similar to the private/private partnership in
employment-based insurance. In traditional group health insurance, the
employer subsidizes premiums and is the policy-holder; the employees are the
certificate-holders either for themselves alone or for themselves and their
dependents. Under the School Enrollment-based Family Health Insurance
proposal, the schoo! system or other public entity subsidizes premiums and is the
policy-holder; the students are the certificate-holders either for themselves alone
or for themselves and their parents, siblings and their own children.

This will not be a new role for school systems. School systems are currently
policy-holders for teachers and other employees and administer health insurance
plans. While implementation of School Enrollment-based Health Insurance
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would be an expansion of that administrative activity it is not a wholly new
responsibility for school systems.

Given what I have already said about the economic characteristics of the
uninsured, it is clear that in order to encourage their participation in payment of
premiums, some sliding scale subsidy must be made available. Once again,
school systems have substantial administrative experience with sliding scale
subsidy programs through their administration of the school lunch program.

Indeed, school systems have another existing function that would be of
inestimable value in adequately administering a proper family health insurance
program. That significant asset is their capacity for health education. Private
businesses and industries have only recently begun internal health education
programs to assist employees to understand self-help health measures and
prudent utilization of health care resources. The school systems, on the other
hand, have been in that business for some considerable time and could integrate
that function with a comprehensive health insurance program.

As an aside, Florida’s Commissioner of Education, Betty Castor, noted that if a
family is depenident for health insurance on the active school enrollment of a
child, it is likely that this may have a positive impact on the family’s efforts to
avoid having Johnny dropout of school. Additionally, Florida’s Secretary of
Health and Rehabilitative Services, Robert Williams, has been most supportive
because he recognizes that, as families rise economically from the public
assistance rolls and lose Medicaid coverage, this program provides an
opportunity for continuing health care access. Both of these public officials have
comumitted themselves to support a full demonstration of the proposal.

A School Enrollment-based Health Insurance Demonstration in Florida

Having described the context for School Enrollment-based Family Health
Insurance and the concept of the program, let me share with you one effort at
demonstrating this concept in Florida.

In reviewing the legal basis for such a program, we rapidly discovered that
existing group health statutes adopt the traditional view of the employer as the
principal grouping mechanism. Accordingly, most group health insurance laws
are written to permit coverage of the employee as the certificate-holder and,
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through the employee, coverage of dependents. Clearly, parents, siblings, and
the children of a student in school are not dependents of that student.
Recognizing that, the Institute worked with State Representative Lois Frankel
and State Senator Jeanne Malchon to have legislation introduced to modify
Florida‘s insurance code to permit school systems to be policy-holders, students
to be certificate-holders and parents, siblings and children of students to be
insured under the student’s certificate. The Florida Legislature passed and the
Governor signed into law a law permitting that new grouping mechanism. It
should be noted that there was bi-partisan support for the measure and the
measure passed unanimously in both Houses of the Florida Legislature.

In planning for the design of this program, the Institute brought together a
distinguished panel of advisors representing insurers, benefits managers,
insurance regulators and leaders from human services and education to critique
the evolving concept. Through those deliberations, several themes came to the
fore. First, limiting benefits does not control costs. Needed services will be
utilized even if no insurance benefits exists and the cost of those services will be
shifted inappropriately to existing payment mechanisms. As a consequence, we
have planned a comprehensive benefit package similar to the benefits outlined
by the American Academy of Pediatrics and those already provided for under
the Medicaid Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment Program.
A second theme was that managing utilization can control costs. As a
consequence, our planning includes a professional triage and case management
function to assure appropriate and timely utilization.

The third theme to evolve was that enrollment should be both open to all
uninsured children and mandatory for that group. Under that formulation,
eligibility is only an issue of eligibility for subsidy. Uninsured children and their
families would have access to the program on a subsidized, sliding scale basis.
Naturally, as with employment-based insurance, the certificate-holder (student)
may elect to be insured alone or may optionally insure uninsured parents,
siblings and children. As one of our advisors put it, “If immunizations are
mandatory for school attendance, why shouldn’t health insurance be? If
everyone is required to participate within their means and subsidized to assure
affordability why shouldn’t the program be mandatory?” In many private
businesses, participation irn the health insurance benefit is mandatory. For
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example, my wife is an officer with a large banking group that offers a cafeteria
plan, including health insurance with a variety of options. However, the
corporation requires participation in the minimum health insurance plan
irrespective of any other fringe benefit selected or any other health insurance
coverage that exists within the family.

At this point in the demonstration’s history, the 1990 Florida Legislature, at the
urging of the state commissioners of insurance and education, passed the

. Healthy Kids Corporation Act which became law July 1, 1990. In the summer of

1990, a joint proposal was prepared and forwarded to the Health Care Financing
Administration (HCFA) by the Institute, the Florida Medicaid Program and the
Healthy Kids Corporation. The proposal sought financial support for a School
Enrollment-based Health Insurance demonstration project to be administered by
the Healthy Kids Corporation. Subsequently, HCFA selected the joint proposal
and a four-year cooperative agreement was established. The support from
HCFA, in combination with state and private contributions, has provided
resources to subsidize the premiums for children from low-income families, as
well as program development and administrative costs.

The health care provider was selected as a result of a public request for proposals
to serve in Volusia County, Florida. Florida Health Care Plan, a Health
Maintenance Organization, already operating in Volusia County, was selected as
to provide the physicain network, health services, and case management. Barnett
Technologies, Incorporated (BTI) performs claims processing and monthly
premium collection. The Institute will provide an evaluation of the
demonstration's effectiveness. Enrollment in the insurance program began in
Volusia County, Florida in February, 1992. Applications have greatly exceeded
expectations with over 6,000 children seeking enrollment in the program thus far,
and 4,000 of the applicants are currently active entollees.

The Institute and the Healthy Kids Corporation have reviewed a range of options
for continued financing of the program and is now exploring the following
concepts. First and foremost is the requirement for family participation in the
cost, both directly out-of-pocket and, where appropriate, subsidized by an
employer. Small employers with limited resources who offer no health insurance
because of the exorbitant cost to small groups, may find participation in this plan
economically attractive and feasible. Indeed, small businesses and families in
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better economic circumstances could be permitted to participate at full cost with
no subsidy.

For most participants, public funding would be needed at two levels: premium
subsidy and stop-loss protection. The reality is that states already subsidize
heaith care for the uninsured through cost shifting into Medicaid and other
health programs supported by state revenues. Some of the funds currently
misdirected in that way might be redirected into premium subsidies, an
alternative which could serve to lower the burden of financing shifted costs.

An example of creative reprogramming of funds would be to use state Title V
Program for Children with Special Health Care Needs as a stop-loss mechanism
for children insured under this program. The stop-loss would be invoked for any
participating child reaching an annual expenditure threshoid, e.g., $25,000.
Because it is likely that any child with $25,000 of health expenses has special
health care needs, it would be appropriate for the Title V program to participate
in this way. The trade-off would be that the first $25,000 for that child’s care
would come from the School Enrollment-based Family Health Insurance
Program and not the state’s Title V Program, as it does now. Of great importance
is that a stop-loss provision would substantially enhance the attractiveness of the
program to private sector insurers.

Because of recent improvements in the Medicaid program we are also exploring
methods for articulating that program with School Enrolilment-based Health
Insurance, both in benefit structure and premium subsidy. The state has a
compelling interest to assure that people make a successful transition out of
public assistance. One significant factor in that transition is the assurance of
continuing health care coverage. We would look to the Medicaid program to
subsidize premium during that transition since it would be more cost-effective to
pay a premium subsidy than to continue to pay the full cost for all care.

This program is not expected to be budget neutral for the state. Premium
subsidies would require some level of enhanced state funding. However, policy
makers at both the state and federal levels have long recognized that the
assurance of access to adequate health care for all people requires public support;
that healthy citizens are more likely to be taxpayers and unhealthy citizens are
more likely to be tax consumers.
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In the final analysis, the total cost for the care of those insured through School
Enrollment-based Health Insurance could be substantiaily reduced. I make this
assertion based on data which the Institute collected in a 1988 state-wide health
insurance survey of Florida families with children. One of our findings was that
uninsured children had hospital lengths of stay nearly twice that of insured
children, a very expensive difference. In fact, when we closely examined the
results of that survey, we found that for children who were hospitalized, only
19% of the insured had lengths of stay greater than 5 days, while 43% of the
uninsured had lengths of stay greater than § days. Thus, it would appear that
the provision of health insurance, and the access that comes with it, has the
potential to reduce overall expenditures for care.

I will close by expressing my appreciation for the privilege to provide this
information to you and to personally thank you for your sensitivity to and
advocacy for improving the health of our nation’s children.
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SOUNDING BOARD

COVERAGE OF THE UNINSURED AND
UNDERINSURED

A Proposal for School Enrollment—-Based
Family Health Insurance

TrADITIONALLY. Americans have obtained individ-
ual and family health insurance coverage in one of
three ways. Some have been covered by public pro-
grams (Medicaid for the very poor, Medicare for the
clderly). and some have paid directly for policies, but
by far the largest number of people have obtained
health coverage in the form of group insurance pro-
vided through their emplovers. Insurance programs
for members of large groups have had the lowest
prices. In most cases. however, low prices have not
been extended to small employee groups or o individ-
uvals. This aspect of health insurance structure has
had adverse financial effects on industry, government,
and health care providers and has compromised ac-
cess 10 health care for many nearly poor. low- and
moderate-income Americans who are not members of
sizable groups.

In recent years, a large and growing percentage of
the population has had inadequate health insurance
coverage of none at all. A number of factors have
contributed to this problem. The American economy
is changing from being a system dominated by indus-
try to one dominated by service, with a commensurate
rise in the number of small businesses and the use of
part-time labor. With respect to health insurance cov-
crage, there 1s an inverse relation between group size
and premium level.' because large groups provide the
opportunity to reduce administrative expenses and
distribute risk more widely, As a consequence. small
businesses have found it difficult 10 obtain the favo:r-
able group rates enjoved bv larger enterprises. and
many workers, particularlv those working for a mini-
rum wage or part time, receive no health insurance
benefits at all. Among firms with fewer than 25 em-
plovees, up 10 60 percent offer no health insurance to

their workers.2 When the employer elects to make
available a health insurance program without subsidy,
many employces may find the premium unaffordable.
Even when employers provide individual health insur-
ance for their workers at no cost, the employee may
be unable to bear the high cost of supplemental fam-
ily coverage. And for people whose employers do
not provide insurance, the premiums associated with
individual policies are often out of reach. Even so,
7 million of the 24 million workers who lack access to
group health insurance buy the more expensive pri-
vate coverage.®

Other aspects of the nation’s changing economic
structure have compounded the problem of access to
health insurance. First, the number of low-income
and poor Americans has grown. Between 1978 and
1983, the number cf people living below the federal
poverty level increased by approximately 50 percent.*
Second, peopls who must pay for their own health
insurance have found the costs increasingly high. Pre-
miums rose almost 40 percent in 1981. and another 30
percent in 1982.% Finally, states have imposed more
stringent eligibility requirements for Medicaid, reduc-
ing the percentage of persons who are covered by that
program. Between 1975 and 1986, the proportion of
the population below the poverty level that was cov-
ered by Medicaid declined by one third.® In conse-
quence, the population of the uninsured and underin-
sured has grown, and the gap between them and
persons adequately covered under public and private
programs has widened.™® In 1982, Medicaid reached
Jess than half the people under the federal poverty
leve! in 36 states, and in 22 of those states, it reached
less than a third.®

The cconomic and social consequences of poor ac-
cess 10 health insurance are considerable. People un-
able to qualifv for Medicaid or to afford insurance
often go without care uniil their health deteriorates.
and as a result, the care they need is more costly.'”
When charges for these services remain unpaid, pro-
viders pass them along as a “sick tax" to public and
private payers. This cost shifting has become a major
problem for taxpavers. as well as for other payers and
providers of health care.

WHO ARE THE INADEQUATELY INSURED?

Here are some statistics relating to Amerncans with
inadequate coverage. First, as many as 65 million
Americans, more than 30 percent of the population
under 65, have inadequate health insurance protec-
ton against large medical bills '' OF these, about 35
million, 17.5 percent of the population under 63, are
without private or public health insurance coverage at
least part of the vear.'?'* Up to 30 million more are
underinsured for any serious illness.?'!

Second, adequate insurance coverage is strongly re-
lated to. but not solely dependent on. income level.
One third of the uminsured population have incomes

Reprinted from the New England Journal of Medicine
318:843-847 (March 31). 1988

PEST COPY AVALABLE




170

above 200 percent of the poverty le  , whereas 35 o
40 percent are below the poverty line.2

Third, most uninsured adults work. In 1986, 17 mil-
lion workers, representing about one sixth of the U.S.
labor force, were uninsured.? More than two thirds of
those who have no health insurance coverage live in
homes where the head of the houschold works full
time and year round.'?

Fourth, the number of uninsured Americans is rap-
idly increasing. The uninsured population rose onc
third between 1977 and 1984, from approximately 26
million to 35 million.?

Furthermore, because employers typically cover
workers rather than families, children as a group are
disproportionately uninsured. Nearly one American
child in five has no coverage, and onc third of the
uninsured (12 million) are children.'*'* The chance
of being uninsured is 37 percent higher for a child
than for an adult. More than a third of al} uninsured
children (4.1 million) live with a parent or guardian
who is insured.'3

In addition, a lack of insurance coverage translates
directly to a lack of health care. Uninsured persons
use medical care less often than do insured people, and
they are more likely than the insured to be in poorer
health.'®!? In addition, uninsured Americans spend
one-third more days per year in bed because of iliness
than do the insured.'8

Finally, lack of insurance coverage constitutes a se-
rious financial burden for insurers, providers, and tax-
payers. Health insurers, providers, and taxpayers ab-
sorb the enormous costs incurred by people who need
care but who have neither insurance nor the personal
resources to pay. For example, a study of Florida hos-
pital charges in 1985 and 1986 revealed that 72 per-
cent of an estimated $283 million in unresol: ed hospi-
tal care bills was generated by patients under 65 with
no health insurance coverage. An additional 16 per-
cent of the unresolved amount was attributable to pa-
tients under 63 with inadequate coverage.'®%

PraNS UNDER CONSIDERATION

Policy makers and health planners have become in-
creasingly seasitive to the plight of the uninsured
and the immense costs of catastrophic health condi-
tions. In recent vears, a number of state and federal
programs have been proposed or implemented that
seck to ensure access to health insurance for more
Americans. 212312

It is questionable whether the plans proposed to
date — e.g., those requiring all small businesses to
carry insurance for their employees, 23 the establish-
ment of state-sponsored high-risk pools.”® multiple-
employer trust funds,'? or tax-exempt bonding mech-
anisms?’ — will address the health insurance crisis in
a meaningful way. At best, most of these proposals
focus on subsets of the problem. It is important to
recognize that the inadequately insured population

comprises many discrete subgroups with a variety of
constraints on access.?®

There is no panacea to this multidimensional prob-
lem. but alternative strategies can be mounted thai
redefine groups so as to extend coverage to large seg-
ments of the vninsured or underinsured populations.
One such alternative strategy is described here.

AN ALTERNATIVE: FamiLy HeaLTH INSURANCE
Basep ON ScHOOL ENROLLMENT

Most American children attend public schools. Ap-
proximately 23 million. or two thirds, of the uninsured
are children of school age and their voung par-
ents.'?# To enhance access to health care for children
and their family members, state school systems could
be used as a grouping mechanism for negouating com-
prehensive group health insurance policies. Coverage
could be offered to all families with children enrolied
in public school. Policies could be designed to ac-
commodate cither the individual child or the entire
family. Such flexibility would be ideallv suited to the
needs of parents who receive individual coverage as
a fringe benefit of employment but who must pay a
relatively large premium for supplemental family eov-
erage. This arrangement is identical to current em-
ployment-based insurance structures, except that
schoolchildren become the “employees,” qualifiing
both themselves and their family members for cover-
age. A health insvrance program based on school en-
rollment could be structured to target three groups:
the uninsured, the underinsured. and those for whom
the program would represent an economicallv com-
petitive choice. Though the benefit package would be
the same for all participants, the enticement for each
group might be differcnt, A reasonably priced compre-
hensive health insurance program would afford access
to coverage for the uninsured, better coverage for the
underinsured. and a better buy for the cconomically
secure. Indeed, for families in which the wage earner
alrgady receives employment-based coverage, the op-
tion of coverage for the child only through school-
based insurance mighi be a low-cost alternative to
the purchase of employment-based coverage for the
family.

In examining this proposal. a number of 1ssues
must be considered, but two — adverse selection and
cost — are of particular importance. Adverse selection
refers to the possibility that the resulung group would
be characterized by lower health status and hence by
potentially higher rates of insurance use. There is no
empirical evidence for this argumeni: on the contrany .
some characteristics of a school enrollment-based
group suggest favorable selecuon. For rating pur-
poses. we assume that the group will be defined on a
statewide basis. In addiunon 10 being large. the group
would be disproportionately composed of persons be-
tween the ages of 5 and 30 — those with the lowest
rates of insurance use and health care expenditure 1n
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the nation.* ** The group would not include the pop-
ulaucn cligible for Medicaid. which is assumed to be
characienzed by negative health status due to extreme
poverty. Nor would the proposed group include many
partcipants rom the older, pre-Medicare population,
because such persons are unlikely to have school-aged
children. Finally, insurers concerned about the high
rate of poor and nearly poor clients among the unin-
sured should be reassured by the potential for heavy
participation from the nonpoor — the underinsured
and those who would avail themselves of the buying
power of  group so large.

The cost issuc is also of central importance. Clearly,
4 program to provide coverage for an uninsured popu-
lation cannot be created without cost. However, this
proposal suggests an initiative that will enhance pri-
vate group nsurance coverage. That is, given the evi-
dence that large group size can affect the cost of health
insurance positively, we assume that premiums could
he cstablished at a tevel that would make this an at-
tractive business opportunity for private insurance
carriers Indeed. substantial evidence affirms that in-
surcts already find school enrollment~based groups
actuanally atractive Some insurers already market
gap-hlling huspitalication and accident coverage to
public school children and standard health coverage
1o college students.

Despite the potential viability of the proposal, pre-
nuumis are still likely to be beyond the reach of some
lowcr-ncome families, To ensure the affordability of
basi . adequate concrage lor all program participants,
states could subsidize tnsurance premiums on a slid-
ing scale based on incame, just as they currently
subsidize school lunch programs. In addition, the ex-
perience that most school districts already have in
adnumstering hiealth insurance programs for their
taculn. members and other emplovees would equip
the schowd svstems 1o administer the proposed plan
skilliufl

Given the potential size of a statewide group com-
prising alt pubhe school children and their families,
1 should he possihie 10 design an tnsurance benefit
and prenuum package that could adequately address
somr of the difliculues inherent in employment-based
health msurance programs. For example, the small
emplor et could easily "buy in” to a school-based pro-
gram for emplonees with school-aged children. Fur-
thermore. moving the insurance company’s point of
contact trom the emplover to the school system en-
hatees the “portabilitn™ of coverage for the family.
Luder the uadiwonal plan. employees wishing to
chater fubs often nisk distuptung a family member’s
coretuge i the process. especiallv when the family
member has o preeaisting illness

Benetn packaees could be desianed to meet the
cotsprehiensio hiealth needs of schoolehildren. Appro-
priar beneis o chuld health and developmental su-
peivision cunenth mandated in onlv one state (Flor-

ida), could be part of the design. Special health
services provided by the school for physically and edu-
cationally handicapped children and not now covered
by private health insurance -— ¢.g., physical, oecupa-
tional, and speech therapies — could be included. Be-
cause many school systems already provide a range of
health-related services for handicapped children, in-
surance benefit packages that recognized those serv-
ices might offset some of the related costs and the
associated tax burden.

The social benefits of such a program might be con-
siderable. With access to better Health care, including
primary and preventive services, children and their
parents might become more resistant to illness and
{ose fewer days from school or work. Children with a
more positive health status tend to perform better in
school. A less obvious but equally important point is
that families that depended on their child’s enrollment
to maintain their own health insurance would not
readily permit the child to drop out of school and risk
losing the “fringe benefit” of family health insurance.
As with insurance in the workplace, access to health
benefits would provide an incentive for staying in
sehool, and thus might contribute to a valuable frame-
work of family responsibility. Finally, with a larg-
er proportion of the population insured for health
care, the burden of the sick tax would be reduced
dramaticaily.

The concept of family health insurance based on
school enrollment constitutes a private-sector eflort
to solve an important problem of public policy. Bene-
fit packages and actuarial assessments developed un-
der state supervision would form the basis for bids
from private carriers. The mainstream community of
health care providers would supply health care. The
cost of subsidies, where necessary, could be offset by a
reduction in the requirement for publicly supported
programs of direct health care delivery. For example,
county public health departments often receive state
funding to operate public clinics, which are constitut-
ed to provide alternative access to health care for the
uninsured. To the extent that the proposed program
diminished the uninsured population, funding for
such clinics could be diverted to premium subsidies.
Furthermore, this type of insurance programming
might receive the support of industry, which has ex-
pressed dismay at the cost of employee health care
and is pressing for a redesign of the health delivery
system.*

The structure of current insurance programs has
precluded access to appropriate health msurance cov-
erage for up 1o one third of all Americans under the
age of 65. As Butler et al ** have pointed out. this
problem “stems primarily from the American svstem
of employer-provided health insurance.” Although no
single approach will solve all the ills of the insurance
crisis. the creation of statewide groups using the
school system as the grouping mechanism could make
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tmportant progress toward the provision of coverage
to uninsured or underinsured peaple. Such a program,
though not providing universal coverage, might re-
lieve many of the complex financial and social prob-
lems attendant on the current distribution of health
insurance coverage.
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BACKGROUND

In 1988, an article was published in the
New England Joumal of Medicine which first
described the concept of School Enrollment-
Based Health Insurance.

The Institute for Child Health Policy at the
University of Florida received grant funding
from the Matemnal and Child Health Bureau
under the U.S. Public Health Service and from
Robert Wood Johnson, a private foundation,
which financed further study of the concept.
With this financing, the Institute began product
research and development with Medimetrix
Group, a health care consulting firm.

In 1990 the Florida Legislature, at the urg-
ing of the state commissioners of insurance
and education, passed the Healthy Kids Corpo-
ration Act which became law July 1, 1990. This
was in fesponse to the rising number of
uninsured families and children in the state and
overwhelming statistics evidencing a decline
in child health and preparedness for learning.

The proposed Corporation was given two
missions: to Create a comprehensive insurance
product for school children and to facilitate the
provision of preventive care for all children.
These two primary assignments were the foun-
dation upon which the Corporation began op-
erations.

With its creation in November 1990, work
began on the product design and administrative
structure of the Corporation.

A joint proposal was prepared and forwarded
1o the Health Care Financing Administration

by the Florida Medicaid Program, the Institute
for Child Health Policy and Hecllty kds. This
proposal described the school enrollment-based
health insurance concept which would provide
free and reduced price health insurance for
school children based on their eligibility for
the school lunch program. The HCFA selected
the joint proposal and a four-year cooperative
agreement was established. The grant has helped
to fund program development and administra-
tion during the past year and release of these
funds to provide subsidized premium is cur-
rently pending. State and private contributions
are required to ensure the flow of these federal
dollars. A mechanism which could provide
some subsidy of premium for families with
incomes above 185% of the federal poverty
level is also desired.

Initial program implementation has been
broken into three phases. Phase one, which has
begun, covers the school age child; Phase two,
which will begin in the Fall of 1992, will cover
the preschool age siblings and dependents of
the school child; Phase three, for which no date
has been set, may extend coverage to the par-
ents of these children in the future.

There is considerable interest in what we, in
Florida, are doing as is evidenced by recent
national wire service stories as well as radio
and television coverage about the program. Af-
ter contacting us, other states have introduced
laws similar to the Healthy Kids Corporation
Act and Congress is currently considering bills
which reference school-based programs such
as this.
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WHAT IS SCHOOL
ENROLLMENT-BASED
HEALTH INSURANCE?

Traditionalty, Americans have obtained indi-

vidual and family health insurance coverage in
one of three ways. Some have been covered by
public programs, and some have paid directly for
policies, but by far the largest number of people
have obtained health coverage in the form of group
insurance provided through their employers. In-
surance programs for members of large employer
groups have had the lowest prices. Because em-
ployers typicaliy pay for coverage of individual
workers rather than families, children as a group
are disproportionately uninsured.
It is estimated that
-} approximately 500,000
& of Floridas school chil-
dren are uninsured. The
chance of being uninsured is 37% higher for a
child than an adult. In addition, a lack of insurance
coverage translates directly to a lack of health
care. Uninsured persons use medical care less
often than do insured, and they are more likely
than the insured to be in poorer health. In a recent
study of Florida families with children, it was
found that uninsured children had hospital iengths
of stay nearly twice that of insured children.

An alternative is
school enrollment-based
health insurance. To en-
hance access to health
care for children, state school systems are used as
grouping mechanisms for negotiating preventive
care and comprehensive group health insurance
policies. Coverage will be offered to all families
with children enrolled in school. Policies are cur-
rently designed to accommodate the school child.
Coverage could be extended to dependents, non-
school age siblings and the parents of these children
in the future.

School Enroliment-Based Health
Insurance Model

o~
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THE CORPORATION

RIC

Staffed by experienced insurance and man-
aged health care professionals, the Corporation
is the facilitator which brings together all par-
ties involved in this project. The Board of Di-
rectors is representative of insurance and insur-
ance regulatory officials, school health and
school administration officials, private physi-
cians, public health programs and universities.

The Florida Healthy Kids Corporation,
through its staff and subcoatractors, provides
the administrative functions of the project. By
providing these functions, administrative costs
built into the premium are currently less than

physician members of the county medical soci-
ety have joined with the health plan to provide
a geographically appropriate network of health
care providers. In addition, 2 new pediatric
facility was designed, equipped and staffed in
order to better serve Hocllty .

The Institute for Child Health Policy will
provide an evaluation of the program’s effec-
tiveness. Annual surveys will be performed in
each pilot site and the program’s impact on the
health status of children will be measured. In
addition. school enrollment trends will be
monitored as well as the frequency of emer-
gency room visits by this population.

It was widely acknowledged by the Board

2%. Private contribution:

that programs of this type

H . § Healthy Kids Partnership i Volusia County: i i . .
by local businesses to Florid Ride . require local input. In or

ward printing and mar- Dns«;mv
keting have been key in§ Florida

the effort to keep admin- By oeat Sieering C
istrative costs down.

Institute for Child Health Policy
‘ouvmittos

der to gain the input of
the local community, the
Volusia Steering Com-
mittee was established.

The Corporation was designed to operate
with very few staffed positions. A significant
amount of the inner workings have been con-
tracted to private market companies.

A records administrator was hired by the
Corporation to assist with ‘many of the enroll-
ment functions. BTI Services, Inc. piovides
assistance with eligibility determination, and
monthly premium collection. A coupon book is
provided to those families making monthly
contributions to the premium and on-line en-
rollment information is available to the Corpo-
ration. The records administrator also provides
extensive computer capabilities without the as-
sociated investment the purchase of equipment
would require.

Florida Health Care Plan, Inc. provides the
physician network and health services required
for the program in the first county. Enhance-
ment of the existing provider network was nec-
essary to accommodate the anticipated increase
in pediatric members, Pediatricians and family

Chaired by Ms. Linda Merrell, this active group
brings together local medical society members,
child advocates, the health care previder. the
county public health office, local school offi-
cials and representatives of the business com-
munity. The common goal of this diverse group
is that children gain access to health care and
be better prepared for leaming.

The Steering Committee makes recommen-
dations to the Board on areas of critical local
concemn and has helped to shape the projects’
design. Contributions are being sought by this
group for scholarships and a rescue fund to
assist farnilies who have difficulty making
regular monthly premium contributions. This
committee developed a new member orienta-
tion to help better educate parents on how to
gain access to medical care for their children
and 10 increase community awareness about
the program. The efforts of this group a.e con-
sidered to be a key to local program success.

o
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When the schoot bells rang in Voiusia County this Fall, many organizations kad already stepped
forward to ensure that students would have greater access to health care services.

Hedlty kkds: A Public-Private Partnership
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THE SCHOOLS

In order to implement a school enroliment-
based project, cooperative school districts were
sought. The Corporation solicited interest from
Florida school districts and reviewed proposals
for participation. Ter school districts were se-
lected as potential pilot sites.

Volusia County was se-
lected to be the first site
implemented due primarily to
its urban/rural mix and popu-
lation size. Innovative pro-
grams already in existence in
the county and the evidence
of a cooperative medical and
business community were
also important factors for site
selection.

The part played by the school district is
varied in this project. School district personnel
provide assistance with the family health and
insurance survey, offer school facilities for use
by the Corporation, and formally endorsed the
progran. A very important part of the schools’
involvement has been to put staff in touch with
community leaders and business groups. Each
school was asked to appoint a contact person to
assist with distribution and collection of enroll-
ment and marketing materjals, to assist fami-
lies with completing the forms and to answer
questions applicants may have. School contacts
provide families with a familiar face with which
10 consult. School personnel have acted as in-
terpreters and translators, made facilities avail-
able for meetings and orientation programs for
families signing up and have agreed to allow
the performance of initial health assessments
on participating children on school premises if
the family chooses to have one.

Essential to the project, is the districts” abil-
ity to verify student participation in the na-

tional school lunch program and other eligibil-
ity criteria. School personnel will advise
Hed?/ kkds of those stadents who drop out of
school, making them ineligible for the pro-
gram. All families participating in the program
have signed authorizations for the release of
this information.

Schools can put us in touch with children
whom they may have identified as potential
participants. School nurses help to identify these
children.

In addition, the school district may provide
birth date information on students in order that
they may receive a card reminding them when
they are due for a wellness check.

Schools have provided mailing labels to as-
sist the Corporation with marketing efforts and
allowed use of their dial-up system which au-
tomatically calls a student’s home with a pre-
recorded message. These systems are frequently
used to notify parents of a child’s absence from
school and have been made available to the
Corporation.

These activities have required a tremendous
commitment from school board members and
district personnel. Similar assistance and in-
volvement will be necessary for programs
implemented in other school district sites. The
degree of commitment is an important measure
in future site expansion.

School Involvement Includes:
« verify school enreliusent and age
* verity lnuch program participation
» endorse the program
materials

+ aliow wse of Koot contacts
+ comduct snmwal survey
*« keep in towch with the community

.. rent outreach
provide pa
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THE MOST FREQUENTLY
ASKED QUESTIONS:

Whoa is eligible?
Childrer must:
« be actively attending school
» be age 5-19
« be uninsured for six months
« be ineligible for public programs

What are the covered benefits?

The services were designed with children in
mind and with an emphasis on preventive care.
Health benefits include:

Well Child Care Visits & Immunizations
Primary & Specialty Physician Office Visits
In-Patient Hospital Care

Surgical Procedures

Emergency Services & Transportation
Prescriptions

Vision Screening & Glasses

Hearing Screering & Hearing Aids
Physical Therapy

Mental Heaith Services

What about pre-existing conditions?

There are no limitations on coverage for pre-
existing conditions. No health questions are asked
of applicants and there is no waiting period.

Are there out-of-pocket expenses?

There is no charge to the patient for doctor
office visits or hospital stays. Some co-payments
arc required for cmergency services, prescription
medicines and mental heaith services.

For a complete schedule of benefits and
copayments, please contact the Corporation.

Which doctors will kids see?

In Volusia County, services will be delivered
by Florida Health Care Plan, Inc.. a local health
maintenance organization. Families will select a
primary care physician who will manage their
child's care. An cxtensive network of primary and
specialty physicians has been developed for this
population.

How much is the premium?

In Volusia County, costs are determined by
family income. In order to keep administrative
costs in line, family income is determined to be
that which is reported to the school for participa-
tion in the National School Lunch Program. By
doing so. the Corporation is eliminating the need
for a separate, time consuming and more costly
system of determining income eligibility. Deter-
mination of income is only necessary for those
familics wishing to apply for help in paying their
premiums.

How do families sign up?

At least one open enrollment period will be
held each school year. The initial enrollment of
children in Volusia County began February 1,
1992. Coverage will be in effect through the sum-
mer with a renewal period and second open
enrollment period scheduled for each Fall there-
after.

Applications are distributed and collected at
the schools. Once eligibility has been confirmed.
families receive membership handbooks and se-
lect their primary care provider.

How will this program be expanded?

Additional sitcs. when implemented, may re-
quire a different scale of payment depending on
local factors such as medical costs and availabil-
ity of local funds or other grants. The administra-
tive structure is designed to accommodate differ-
ent *premium levels depending on local needs.
This is a key element to implementation of a
statewide program.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF THE MARCH OF DrMES BirTH DEFECTS FOUNDATION,
WASHINGTON,

The March of Dimes shares the concern about the growing
number of uninsured Americans and the increasing cost of health
care which have heen expressed by other voluntary health
organizations and professionals, as well as business, labor, and
elected leaders. The mission of the March of Dimes is to
improve the health of babies by preventing birth defects and
infant mortality. Thus, we have a special interest in the
barriers to access to care faced by millions of American families
who want to have healthy babies.

I. We know that problems result from our nation's failure to
ensure universal access to health care.

The nation simply cannot afford to continue on its present
course. This is especially true if we are to make good on our
moral and ethical responsibilities to ensuring that babies are
born with the greatest chance of survival.

o Each year, nearly 40,000 infants die before their first
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birthday. More than 8,000 of these die as a result of a
birth defect and thousands more die from low birthweight
(less than 5.5 pounds).?

o The White House Infant Mortality Task Force estimated that
every infant death represents $380,000 in lost productivity
and that one-quarter of the total number of infant deaths
could be prevented with the knowledge and technology now
available.?

Our national policies and these resulting statistics reflect

a half-hearted commitment to improving infant health and

survival. Inadequate access to health care for pregnant women

and infants is a primary factor contributing to our poor
international standing in maternal and infant health. Experts
tell us of the importance of access to high quality maternity
care, that begins with prenatal care in the first three months of
pregnancy, but the nation has failed to heed the call.

o We have made no progress in improving early prenatal care
use since 1979. A decade ago, one-guarter of all pregnant
women received no prenatal care in the cr’tical first three
months of pregnancy. That figure has not :hanged.

o In 1989 more than 85,000 babies were born without benefit of
any prenatal visits -- this means that their mothers did not
see a health provider before they arrived at the hospital to
give birth.3
When we fail to ensure access to care for pregnant women and

children, we miss opportunities to prevent costly health

problems. When families delay preventive care, society pays.

o Prenatal care has been found to be effective and cost
effective -~ saving $3 for every $i invested by improving
infant health and reducing neonatal intensive care costs.

o Neonatal intensive care is among the most costly of all
hospital services, and related hospital bills often go
unpaid because infants are uninsured. About one-quarter of
unpaid hospital costs are for maternity and newborn care.

o Inmunizations, beginning in infancy and delivered on time

[€)
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can save $10 for every $1 invested. We pay more when

infants do not receive vaccines and a case of preventable

whooping cough or measles is the result.

It is obvious that health status and utilization are linked
to many factors. However, insurance is the first critical step
in assuring access to services. In a landmark report on prenatal
care, the Institute of Medicine reported that:

wrinancial barriers -- particularly inadequate or no

insurance and limited personal funds -~ were the most

important obstacles reported in 15 studies of women who
received insufficient care."

From New York City to Oklahoma City, these studies document the

financial barriers that keep women from receiving early and

adequate prenatal care.

II. The Inadequacy of Current Insurance Coverage
As the number of uninsured Americans has grown in recent

years, women of childbearing age and children experienced 2

disproportionate impact. Workers’ children and dependent

spouses often are excluded from employer-based health insurance
plans. Young families rarely can afford to buy the additional
coverage which may cost $3,000 or more per Year. As a result
they live uninsured or underinsured. Consider these facts:

o In 1990, despite recent expansions of Medicaid, an estimated
443,000 pregnant women had no health insuranc..5 That
year, over 8.4 million women of childbearing age had no
health insurance; of these, 6 million were working women.

o Nearly two-thirds of the uninsured are concentrated in low~

income families. The majority .ive in two-parent, working

families with children. The typical woman having a baby is
from such a family -~ she is in her twenties, married,
family income of just under $20,000 per year, with at least

a high school education, and employed, or married to a man
who is employed, full-time.®
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o Between 1980 and 1985, the proportion of children under age
18 covered by employer insurance fell by 6 percent (from
64.6 percent to 60.6 percent). Among poor children under
age 18, the proportion privately insured declined by one-
quarter, from 16.9 percent to 12.8 percent.

The problems of being uninsured are most serious for low
income families who cannot afford to pay for care "out-of~-
pocket." For example, when a pregnhancy occurs the need for care
is urgent but may go unmet. The average bill for having a baby is
estimated at over $4,000. This conservative estimate, that
assumes there are no complications, represents one-fifth of the
average income of a couple in their early twenties.

Furthermore, the concept of insurance is eroding. Many of
the sickest populations have been left behind. At the same time,
the preventive care needed by pregnant women and infants often is
left out of private employer-based benefit packages.

o An estimated 5 million women of childbearing age have
private insurance that does not cover maternity care.3®
This means that prenatal care already is outside of the
scope of coverage for thousands of pregnant women each year.

[o] Uninsured women often cannot afford to purchase "out-of-
pocket" the basic services that might have given a baby a
chance to survive, such as genetic screening or prescription
drugs to treat sexually transmitted diseases.

o Infants born with a birth defect may have conditions that
are excluded categorically from insurance plans. For those
who survive, health care coverage may not be available to
meet the cost of remedial care that could prevent or limit
disabilities.

III. What action must be taken in reésponse to these problems?
The March of Dimes strongly believes that the unique needs

of pregnant women and infants must be considered in the health

care reform debate. To that end, the Foundation has supported
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the work of an expert panel of the National Academy of Sciences,
National Forum on the Future of Children and Families that
released a report last month which examines health policy issues
presented by children and pregnant women that should be addressed
as part of the health care reform debate. The panel set out 11

principles for evaluating the adequacy of health care reform

‘proposals in relation to maternal and child health. ! fThe

report, “Including Children and Pregnant Women in Health care

Reform," has brought to light many questions about how the nation

can improve the health of pregnant women and infants.

In the broad health care reform debate, the March of Dimes
kelieves that:

1) Any health care reform proposal should provide affordable
and user-friendly health care coverage for all pregnant
women and infants.

2) A health care reform plan should define a basic set of
benefits for pregnant women and children, with emphasis on
prenatal care and other preventive services.

3) Health care reform legislation should include a plan for
improving the supply and distribution of maternity and
pediatric providers.

4) Health care reform legislation should contain mechanisms to
coordinate funding streams, contain costs, and assure
quality to protect the health of mothers and infants.

These principles of the March of Dimes support the view that

a primary goal in health care reform is universal coverage for

pregnant women and infants. At the same time, our principles

recognize that while insurance reform is a start, it alone cannot

solve the crisis in access to care. 1In addition, millions of

families live in communities where there are no maternity or
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pediatric providers.

We understand that there are no easy answers to the current
crisis in health care. At the same time, we urge Congress to act
thoughtfully and expeditiously to ensure access to care for all
Americans and to give priority to actions that can improve

infant health and survival.
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ASSOC ATION FOR gdsam Otfice
C| FNEW {3 Halsey Street Newark. NJ 07102
CHILDREN OF NEWY JERSEY 2016433676 FAX 2018439153

ACNJ Southern Regional Office

609/854-2661

TO: The Honorable Pat Schroeder, Chairperson
Members. House Select Committee on Children Youth and Families

FROM: Dr. Richard H. Flyer, Chair
Reginald S. Dorsey, Member
Emergency Medical Services for Children Coalition (EMSCQ)

DATE: May 15, 1992
RE: EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES FOR CHYLDREN (EMSC)

The Emergency Medical Service for Children Coalition (EMSCC) is a statewide coalition made
up of advocates, pediatricians, nurses. state department personnel and others that have come
together in support of legislation to establish an emergency medical services for children
program on behalf of New Jersey's children and families.

EMSCC members have participated and are presently active on various coalitions and advisory
councils that are concerned with maternal. child and infant heaith issues. The present coalition
has organized in response to the recognition of an inadequate emergency medical services system
for children in our state. Members strongly feel that now is the time for New Jersey to develop
and implement a comprehensive and coordinated system of specialized pediatric services and
EMSC components.

INJCRIES -- THE MOST TRAGIC REALITY FOR QUR CHILDREN

According to Antonia C. Novello. US Surgeon General, about 40 percent of the deaths among
children under 4 and 70 percent of deaths among older children are due to injuries. Injurics are
the leading cause of death among children today, with nonfatal injuries outnumbering fatal

injuries. Annually, injuries claim the lives of over 22,000 children between the ages of 0 and

L yawe o New Jersey s Chilgren ann thewr Famues

PO Box 634 Bellmawr, NJ 08093-0634




ERIC

PAFulToxt Provided by ERIC

189

19 years. Each year, an estimated 600.000 children are hospitalized, and almost 16 million
more are seen in emergency rooms for their injuries. The toll of injuries on the young is
devastating; they suffer more deaths from injuries from the first year of life through the age of
19 than from all diseases combined.

Injuries are also the leading cause of disability, with more than 30,000 children suffering
permanent disabilities each year. Although the effects of such disabilities on children’s
development, daily living, and future productivity are great, the financial. emotional and sociai

effects on the family are enormous.

In New Jersey, approximately 10% of the calls for paramedics are for pediatric services.

Twenty-five to thirty-five percent of emergency department visits in many areas of this state arc
for pediatric patients. Community hospitals often lack the clinical resources and equipment or
they don’t have sufficient caseloads to warrant specialized staff for child emergencies. Many
emergency vehicles are not adequately equipped with special sized equipment for children. The
death rate of children in the field and emergency departments in hospitals is almost twice that
of adults. Because of a fack of Emergency Medical Services for Children, a number of New
Jersey’s most valuable and precious resource. our children. die or suffer permanent disability

needlessly each year.

MEETING THE EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICE NEEDS OF OUR CHILDREN

Perhaps the biggest concern is that many doctors, nurses, paramedics. and emergency medical
technicians continue to treat children as miniature adults. The life saving techniques that work
in the field, in emergency rooms and in intensive care units for critically ill and injured adults
cannot be directly transferred to the care of critically ill and injured kids. For example, medical

doses are different, airway sizes are different and intravenous lines are different. to name a few.

Improving the system to better mest the emergency needs of children will take an intense effort
on the part of govemnment, physicians, and parents. The development and implementation of

a comprehensive, coordinated emergency medical services system for critically il and injured
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children requires 3 elements:

1. Prehospital Services - Ambulance crews must have the equipment and training to
provide proper care to children and the most accurate information to help direct young

patients to facilities that can provide the most appropriate care.

Emergency Room and Intensive Care Systems - Hospital emergency rooms that receive
such children must have emergency care specialists who are well versed in pediatric care,
with the necessary equipment to back them up to assure that children who require
intensive care are being treated by pediatric units rather than adult units.

Rehabilitation Services - Rehabilitation units must be staffed with rehabilitation
specialists expert in treating children and capable of providing any service required to
assure maximum recovery from the physical, emotional, and cognitive effects of critical

illness and severe trauma.

LEGISLATION ESTABLISHING EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES FOR CHILDREN
(EMSC) PROGRAM

On February 24, 1992, Senator James Cafiero introduced legislation that would establish an
Emergency Medical Services for Children Program within New Jersey’s State Department of
Health (Senate Bill 408). Senator Cafiero’s bill would require the implementation of a statewide
comprehensive and coordinated emergency medical service system for children. An Emcrgency
Medical Services for Children Advisory Council, created by the bill, would monitor and have
the oversight of this critically needed system.

This legislation addresses the 3 critical elements of a comprehensive program. The EMSC
Program would also include, among other things: 1) initial and continuing education programs
for emergency medical services personnel that include training in the emergency care of infants
and children; 2) guidelines for referring children to the appropriate emergency treatment facility,
3) pediatric equipment guidelines for pre-hospital care; 4) guidelines for hospitai-based

BESTEAPY A7 1
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emergency departments appropriate for pediatric care to assess, stabilize, and treat critically ill
infants and children; 5) guidekines for pediatric intensive care units, pediatric trauma centers.
and intermediate care units fully equipped and staffed by appropriately trained critical care
pediatric physicians, surgeons, nurses and therapists; 6) an inter-hospital transfer system for
critically ill or injured children; and 7) pediatric rehabilitation units staffed by rehabilitation
specialists and capable of providing any service required to assure maximum recovery from the

physical. emotional. and cognitive effects of critical illness and severe trauma.

PORT FOR A COMPREHENSIVE RDINATED EMERGENCY MEDICAL
SERVICES FOR CHILDREN PROGRAM

The fact that everyday. some of America's children die. almost die or suffer needlessly from
being permanently disabled because they are taken to the wrong hospital, treated with improper
cquipment, given wrong dosages of medications or not diagnosed properly, speaks to the
necessity of developing a comprehensive and coordinated emergency medical services for
children program. A report by the National Center for Education in Matemal and Child Health
declared, "The majority of infant. children and young adults who might benefit from pediatric
critical care services do not receive them...[also] in communities without access to specialized
pediatric services and EMSC system components. there is a higher mortality rate for critically
ill and injured children."

New Jersey has made some tremendous strides in addressing the health care needs and
prioritizing prevention efforts for our children through various initiatives such as the Medically
Needy Program, HealthStart, The Catastrophic Illness Relief Fund and most recently, requiring
children 14 years and under to wear bike heimets. However, there is much more to do. If only
one child and one family suffers from a traumatic experience that cou!d have been prevented by

an appropriate system of medical services, then that suffering is one too many.

New Jersey has the opportunity to take a major step in the medical care of its children. Senate

Bill 408 establishing medical services for children program tzxes an important step toward

improving the critical care needs of the children of our State for years to come. The Emergency
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Medical Services for Children Coalition strongly supports the passage of S-408 and will do what
it takes to see to it that the children of our state have access to a comprehensive and coordinated

system of pediatric services to assure them the healthiest life possible.

Unfortunately, the criticz.ﬂ care needs of New Jersey are true for many, if not all, states across

the nation. This is a crisis that needs to be met on the federal level. Congresswoman
Schroeder, and members of the House Select Committee on Children Youth and Families, we
are asking you to consider the following as the basis for federal action for emergency medical

services for children:

1) The New Jersey legislation and proposed program is based upon a federal grant that will
provide the "start-up” funds for the emergency medical services program. It is hopeful that in
two years, after the federal funds have been utilized, that the State will take the responsibility
of funding the critical care program for children. We encourage this committee to explore the

possibility of a stast-up fund for states to establish similar programs as proposed in New Jersey.

2) The strength of the New Jersey proposal is that it provides a comprehensive coordinated
system of standards for pediatric services. Along with the start-up funds, the federal government
should outline standards for meeting the critical care needs of children to provide direction for
state initiatives.

The opportunity to make a tremendous impact on the critical care needs of our children is upon
us now. We strongly encourage this committee to consider our recomimendations for federal
action. As stated above, our Coalition is available to help and assist in anyway possible for the
health of our children.
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.. Housge of Representatives

SELECT COMMITTEE ON
CHILDREN, YOUTH, AND FAMILIES
385 Houst Orrct Burding Anwix 2
WaSHINGTOR, DC 20515-6401

May 21, 1992

Director

Iowa Child Health Specialty Clinics
HS-247 University Hospital School

Iowa City, IA S2242

Dear Dr. Nelson:
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I want to express my personal appreciation to you for appearing before

the Select Committee on
"Health Care Reform:
2, 1992.

How Do Women, Children,
Your testimony was important to the work of the Committee.

Children, Youth,

and Families at our hearing,
and Teens Fare?,” on May

The Committee is now in the process of preparing the transcript for

printing.

of your remarks to assure that they are accurate, and return the
transcript by Monday, June 1, with any necessary corrections.

Iin addition, I would appreciate a response in writing to the following

questions for inclusion

in the record:

It would be helpful if you would go over the enclosed copy

1. Are there any state Maternal and Child Health initiatives that
stand out in your mind that are already meeting the criteria you

described in your framework?

Any state efforts that are improving

access to preventive and comprehensive care for teens in

particular?

2. Which of the proposals you analyzed would benefit or ameliorate the ‘

PATRICIA SCHROEDER
Chairwoman

problems experienced by each of our families who testified at the

Select Committee on Children,

Youth and Families
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Response From Ricuarp P. Newson, M.D., 10 Questions Posep BY CHAIRWOMAN
PATRICIA SCHROEDER

June 4, 1992

The Honorable Patricia Schroeder

Chairwoman

Select Committee on Children,
Youth and Families

Attn: Jill B. Kagan

U.S. House of Representatives

Room H2-385 Annex 2

Washington, D.C. 20515-6401

Dear Representative Schroeder:
Thank you for the opportunity to further comment on how

health care reform will affect women, children, and teens.
I am writing in response to your request of May 21.

There are many initiatives supported by state Title V
maternal and child health programs that are consistent
with the criteria described in our framework for the
analysis of health care reform proposals, including

innovative service delivery models fostered and supported
by state MCH programs. In Colorade, for example, there
are seven distinct projects targeted to adolescents that
are funded through the MCH block grant; some are focused
on education, others on health and support services.
These projects are involved in a variety of activities,
including training and support for volunteers in several
communities who provide workshops to adolescents around
the development of self-responsibility and communication
skills. Another nationally known program that is almost
statewide provides comprehensive school health education
through training teachers to work with students on health
decision making. Several programs target high risk
pregnant and parenting teens, offering both preventive
services and clinical care. Support is also provided for
the Denver School Based Clinics System. (A recent study
of fourteen school-based programs, including Denver’s,
found that eleven of them were at least partially funded
by federal or state MCH funds; in five of the programs,
the MCH funds were the primary source of funding.) The
Colorado Department of Health estimates that over 86,000
adolescents benefitted from Title V supperted services
during a recent fiscal year. During the current fiscal
year new multiagency collaborative projects were
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anticipated in Colorado, including an effort to provide intensive intervention to
all teen parents in Boulder County, and a mali-based Youth Services site to
provide health education and counseling, as well as job referrals for high risk
youth, many of whom are dropouts. The Colorado MCH program’s successes in
facilitating community-based innovative programs for adolescents have been
recognized by the award of a grant from the federal MCH Bureau for the state to
serve as a resource center to otfer states. Similar programs and services can be
found in many other states. These programs, using Title V, state and local
public health funds, are designed to reach at risk populations and provide a
range of services that are not generally available through individual health care
practitioners, and require organization and planning. They are comprehensive and
preventive in nature, based on an understanding that common issues and needs
underlie the various manifestations of teen health problems--whether there be
teen pregnancy, substance use or violence.

You also requested that we comment on how the current Tegislative health care
reform proposals would benefit or ameliorate the problems experienced by families
who lose their source of health care financing due to the high utilization (and
therefore high cost} of health care required by a family member, or who are
uninsurable if their employer’s policy lapses or coverage is converted to another
company. The bills analyzed by AMCHP using our maternal and child health
framework would apparently provide some protection. The bills assure the ability
to continue coverage and to convert coverage. Each of the four bills analyzed
within the framework (Matsui, Russo, Rockefeller and Stark) would furthermore
provide coverage for catastrophic care without a lifetime cap on benefits. A
major issue in implementing any of these proposals, however, would center on
whether premiums are affordable for families when cost-sharing is required. On
the other hand, the proposals provide little support to families of children with
chronic health conditions who require suppert services to benefit from health
care, such as assistance with the costs of transportation when necessary services
are provided at a distance from their home, support for regionalized specialty
services that would be more accessible to families in rural or less populated
areas, and other family support services (such as home visiting and respite care}
for special populations. These latter services are often essential to maintain
the overall health and well being of families as they struggle to care for the
child with special health care needs and at the same time maintain other aspects
of family function.

As legislative proposals are further developed and refined we would be pleased to
offer specific comment on these issues and have appreciated the opportunity to
provide this information.

P Releer

Richard P. Nelson, M.D.
President

Sincerely,

RN:bjk
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May 21, 1992

Robert Johnson, M.D., Director
Adolescent and Young Adult Medicine
New Jersey Medical School

185 South Orange Avenue

Newark, NI 07103-2757

Dear Dr. Johnson:

I want to express my personal appreciation to you for appearing
before the Select Committee on Children, Youth, and Familiesg at
our hearing, "Health Care Reform: How Do Women, Children, and

Teens Fare?," on May 2, 1992. Your testimony was important to

the work of the Committee.

The Committee is now in the process of preparing the transcript
for printing. It would be helpful if you would go over the
enclosed copy of your remarks to assure that they are accurate,

and return the transcript by Monday, June 1, with any necessary
corrxctions.

In addition, I would appreciate a response in writing to the
following questions for inclusion in the record:

1. You described a variety of appropriate health care settings
for adolescents. Would all of these settings work in avery
coemunity or should particular communities decide which
mode)l works best for them? Do all of the settings you
described meet your criteria for supplying providers who are
well-trained in adolescent development and adolescent
nedicine? Do they all meet your criteria for meeting the

needs of adolescents?

What about college heaslth services that have been around for

years? Do they provide an appropriate model of care for
teens?
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2. You mentioned that one barrier to care is the insurance
company requirement that beneficiaries identify themselves
with a card -- and teens can't always do this. Should we
mandate in any health care bill that moves forward that
adolescents in the family be given their own insurance card?
Don't we need to do this in concert with modifying parental
consent laws s0 that teens can have confidential access to
general health care services? How would we overcome

iﬁ//gg;gntal_asjections? political objections?
Sificerely,

ICIA SCHROEDER
Chairwoman
Select Committee on Children,
Youth and Families

Enclosure

56-586 O - 92 —- 8
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RespoNsE From Ropert L. JounsoN, M.D. 10 QUESTIONS POSED BY CONGRESSWOMAN
PATRICIA SCHROEDER

NEW JERSEY

University of Medicine & Dentistry of New Jersey
New lersev Medical School

D ision o1 Adolescent Medicine Medical SCiences Building
Department ot Pediatrs 143 South Orange Avenue
L2011 456-5277 Univers:tv Heghts

Newarh. NI 07103.2713

May 29, 1992

The Honorable Patricia Schroeder
Chairwoman

Select Committee on Children,
Youth and Families

U.S. House of Representatives

385 House Office Building Annex 2
Washington, DC 20515-6401

Dear Ms, Schroeder:

[ have reviewed the transcript of my testimony before your committee and I have no
substantive changes.

1. You described a variety of appropriate health care settings for adolescents. Would
ali of these settings work in every community of should particular communities
decide which model works best for them?

Response:

In my testimony, I described a variety of health care settings all of which have the
capacity to comprehensively and holistically respond to the health care needs of adolescents;
however, communities may vary in their need to and their capacity to develop these services.
For example, a large comprehensive service center such as The Door in New York City may
work very well in other large cities but it may not be feasible in rural communities where
there are fewer adolescents and shortages of professionals to provide the services.
Individual communities should assess their needs and capacities and develop the health care
setting which are specificaliyappropriate for their adolescent populations.

The « et v i an AImAt e aChon AQuE 0DPJAURdY FMEOVET
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Do all of the settings you described meet your criteria for supplying providers who
are well trained in adolescent development and adolescent medicine?

Response:

Thae settings which I have described all have the capacity to meet the criteria I set
forth relative to supplying providers who are well-trained in adolescent development and
adolescent medicine. However, since this training currently exist only in Pediatrics, other
practitioners who intend to care for adolcscents should e given the opportunity to attend
training workshops where they could develop specialized skill in Adolescent Health.

Do they all me=t your criteria for meeting the immediate needs of adolescents?
Response:

Each health care model has the capacity te provide the support necessary for the
health of our adolescents. Given the financial and legal access necessary, each model has
the capacity to provide excellent adolescent care.

What about college health services that have been around for years? Do they
provide an appropriate model of care for teens?

Response:

In my experience, most college health services are designed to provide episodic care
rather than comnprehensive health care. Therefore, they are usisaily noi appropriate models
for this consideration.

2 You mentioned that one barrier to care is the insurance company requirement that
beneficiaries identify themselves with a care - - and teens can't always do this.
Should we mandate in any health care bill that meves forward that adolescents in the
family be given their own insurance card?

Response:
Yes, a health care bill that provides adolescents with their own insurance card would

remove an important barrier to access. ldeally, every family member covered under the
insurance policy should have his/her own insurance card.
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Don’t we need to do this in concert with modifying parental consent laws sos that
teens can have confidential access to general health care services? How would we
overcome parental objections? political objections?

The rules and regulations which currently govern a minor’s right to consent to health
care is a confusing patchwork of statutes, torts, supreme court decisions, administrative
regulations, and traditions. Federal efforts are needed to encourage states to clarify to
interpretations of the current “consent laws” and broaden the health enfranchisement of
adolescents. In my experience, parents have not objected to these proposals when it is made
clear that this is not an attack on parental authority or the integrity of the family.

Obviously, the accurate appreciation of these proposals will require education and
enlightenment.

If I can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely, 7
/

son, M.D., F.A.Ap.
Professor of Clinical Pediatrics
Associate Professor of Clinical Psychiatry
Director of Adolescent Medicine

RLJ/me
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.S, House of Representatives

o " ot e
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335 HouLE OFnCE BUNOING AnkEx 2
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May 21, 1992

Edmund F. Haislnaier

Healt!

Herit
214 Massachusetts Ave.,

Washi

Dear

h Care Policy Analyst
age Foundation

N.E.
ngton, DC 20002-4999

Mr. Haislmaier:

I want to express my personal appreciation to you for appearing
before the Select Committee on Children, Youth, and Families at

our hearing,
Teens Fare?," on May 2,

"Health Care Reform:
1992.

How Do Women, Children, and
Your testimony was important to

the work of the Committee.

The Committee is now in the process of preparing the transcript

for printing.

It would be helpful if you would go over the

enclosed copy of your remarks to assure that they are accurate,
and return the transcript by Monday, June 1, with any necessary
corrections.

In addition, I would appreciate a response in writing to the
following questions for inclusion in the record:

1.

Your proposed health care reform program is targeted at
individuals who work for employers. How do you propose to
provide health care coverage for individuals who do not fit
into this category, such as college students, seasonal
workers, those who are self-employed or who work on
commission?

In your proposal there are several health insurance
regulation reforms to control rapid increases in the cost of
premiums. How do you plan to prevent insurance companies

from shifting more of thae cost of health care to the
congumer by limiting the scope and extent of what they will
pay?
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How would your proposal help the families who testified at

the hearing? How does your proposal meet the goals and

criteria outlined by Ms. Brown and Dr. Nelson to meet the

special needs of women, children and teens in gaining access
- 1th care system?

Chairwoman
Select Committee on Children,
Youth and Families

Enclosure
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RESPONSE FroM EpMUND F. HAISLMAIER, TO QUESTIONS POSED By CONGRESSWOMAN
PATRICIA SCHROEDER

Q: Your proposed health care reform program is targeted at
individuals who work for employers. How do you propose to
provide health care coverage for individuals who do not fit into
this category, such as college students, seasonal workers, those

who are self-employed or who work on commission?

A: As noted in my testimony, one cf the principle objectives
and effects of our reform proposal would be to end the present
link between health care and employment. The current system
provides tax relief almost exclusively for medical care purchased
through employer-sponsored health insurance. In contrast, our
proposal would provide health care tax relief directly to
Americans instead of through their employers. Under our

proposal, individuals and families would themselves decide:

1) wWhat part of their medical expenses to purchase

directly out-of-pocket and what potential expenses to
buy insurance protection against. 1In other words, how
comprehensive they wanted their insurance coverage to

be.

oD
N4
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2) Which insurance plan to purchase and whether to
purchase it on their own or through a group. There are
often wholesale purchasing advantages for buying
insurance, or anything else, through a group. But
because the tax benefits under our proposal go directly
to individuals and families, people could purchase
coverage through any group, not just employers, and

still receive health care tax relief.

In addition, the size of the tax relief would vary based on
an individual or family's total health expenses (both out-of-
pocket payments and insurance premiums) relative to income.
Those with lower incomes and/or higher health expenses would

receive proportionately more tax relief.

Therefore, these reforms would be particularly advantageous

to the many people who are currently discriminated against by the

present policy of tying health care tax relief to employer-
sponsored insurance, including those you asked about -- namely,
college students, seasonal workers, the self-employed and those

who work on commission.

Under our reforms, all people who fall into these categories
would be able to purchase health insurance either individually or

as part of a family plan with other relatives who may have other

Q
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Furthermore, these individuals and families could

either purchase coverage on their own or as part of a larger
group. But in all cases, the tax relief would go directly to

individuals and fawmilies and would be based on need, not

In addition to purchasing coverage on their own as

individuals or families, there are a number of other likely

purchasing arrangements which I can envision the people you asked

1) Some college students would likely retain Coverage
under a family policy purchased by a parent, until they were
ready to buy coverage on their own. Other college students might
buy their own coverage while still in school. 1In exchange for
the opportunity to market their products directly to a large
number of students, insurers could be expected to offer discounts
for policies purchased by students through their university or a
student group. of course, since these would be individual

e

policies, the students could ch?§e to retain them once they left

school.

Given that students are young, generally quite healthy, and
could become long-term customers if they keep their policies
after leaving school, I believe insurers would be eager to market

to them. Indeed, based on the belief that they can develop long~
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term customer relationships and brand or product loyalty,
businesses such as banks and computer companies already offer
special discounts on their products or services when purchased by

students through their college or university.

2) Seasonal workers, such as farm workers or construction
workers, might find it particularly advantageous to purchase
coverage through an appropriate union. For these workers, the
advantage of such an arrangement would not only be the

possibility of discounts on their coverage but also the union's

assistance in handling premium payments, and the tax relief they

are eligible for, to ensure that they retain coverage year round

despite seasonal fluctuations in income.

In other words, the union would make sure that a worker was
not faced with a unaffordable premium payment when he or she was
not working. Similarly, the union would make sure that the
appropriate tax relief accrued to the worker during the course of
the year, instead of th~ worker having to wait until he or she
filed a tax return. Of course, if these workers obtained other,
more regular employment, or even left the union, they could still
retain their policies and make other payment arrangements through

their new employers.

Such union sponsored coverage would have advantages not only

for the workers but also for the unions and the insurers
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involved. The unions would be offering a very attractive service
which they could use to recruit and retain members. The insurers
would get much greater certainty that premiums would be paid,
providing them with considerable savings on the costs they would
otherwise expect to encounter with selling policies directly to

seasonal workers.

For example, without the union assistance, insurers
marketing to seasonal workers could expect much higher than
average costs associated with marketing policies, collecting
premiums, tracking address changes, and lapses in coverage and
bad debt losses due to policyholders' fluctuating incomes. For
the insurers, union involvement would make seasonal workers a
more stable, financially less risky, and thus much more
attractive, market to sell to. To get the business, the insurers

would pass their resulting savings on to the union, which would

in turn paés the savings on to the workers.

3) Many small businesses, self-employed individuals or
those who work on commission would likely buy coverage through
either a national or local professional society, trade
association or business group. Indeed, the list of groups which
could potentially create such arrangements -- as some have
already done -- would fill dozens of pages. For example:
Chambers of Commerce, Rotary clubs, Farm Bureaus, Boards of

Realty, Bar Associations, the National Federation of Independent
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Business, the American Institute of Architects, the National
Restaurant Association, Associated Landscape Contractors, -—- even
Medical Societies, the Independent Medical Distributors

Association and the Association of Health Insurance Agents!

The advantages of such arrangements to the individuals,
groups and insurers participating would be similar, or even
identical, to the advantages discussed above for union

arrangements for seasonal workers.

Q: In your proposal there are several health insurance
regulation reforms to control rapid increases in the cost of
premiums. How do you plan to prevent insurance companies from
shifting more of the cost of health care to the consumer by

limiting the scope and extent of what they will pay?

At As noted, beyond a basic required level of catastrophic
—-
coverage, individuals and families would chq§e the package of

coverage that best suited their needs and preferences. hellth

insurers would likely offer a number of options on deductibles,
coinsurance and covered services, as do insurers in other area:.
Also, as in other types of insurance, policyholders could later
choose to change the terms of their coverage, say, by trading a
higher deductible for a lower premium or vice versa. But
insurers would not be able to unilaterally change the coverage

terms.

[€)
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While insurers could be prevented by law from unilaterally
changing coverage terms, this would not really be necessary. No
one would want to buy any kind of insurance that did not contain
an enforceable contractual agreement by the insurer not to
unilaterally change the coverage terms. In other words, just as
no one would buy a home, auto or life insurance policy under

1 which the insurer could unilaterally change the coverage by, say,
raising deductibles or reducing benefits at any time, so too, no
one would want to buy that kind of health insurance.

Whether individuals and families chqég to buy comprehensive
coverage with high premiums and low out-éf—pocket costs, or no-

frills coverage with low premiums and higher out-of-pocket costs

would be a matter of personal preference, with little financial
impact. This is because the tax relief would be based on tota)
health expenses (both out-cf-pocket payments and insurance
premiums), relative to income. Regardless of their specific
purchasing decisions, all Americans would have an incentive to
get the best deal on health insurance and medical care because

they would pocket the savings.

[*H How would your proposal help the families who testified at

the hearing?

Q
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A: Because, under our proposal insurers would be prevented from
dropping coverage on sick individuals or families, or charging
them experience rated premiums, the sort of problems encountered
by these families would not be faced by similar families in the
future. 1In addition, under our proposal, during the transition
to the new system, insurers would be required to accept those
individuals and families who are currently both uninsured and
uninsurable and would not be allowed to charge them premiums more
than 25 percent greater than the premiums for conparable coverage
for similar individuals in good health. This would guarantee
that such individuals would have affordable coverage under the

new system.

Once covered under the new system, like everyone else, they
would no longer need to worry about their insurer dropping their
coverage or charging them high renewal premiums based on their
own particular medical condition. Similar, additional
regulations could also be included limiting the extent to which
insurers could adjust premiums for health status when a child
reaches majority and wants to convert from coverage under a

parent's policy to individual coverage.

Furthermore, under our proposal, individuals and families
with higher out-of-pocket medical expenses would receive greater
tax relief. Currently, families such as the Weaver's and

Renshaw's can incur substantial out-of-pocket expenses yet

Q
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receive little or no tax relief on themn. Finally, because health
insurance under our proposal would be individual and family
based, and thus portable, individuals would be free to pursue
their desired careers and job opportunities without fear that
their employment status might adversely effect their access to
health insurance and medical care. Parents would no longer be
forced, like Mr. Weaver or Mrs. Renshaw, to change jobs or

careers just to get insurance coverage for a high risk child.

Q: How does your proposal meet the goals and criteria outlined
by Ms. Brown and Dr. Nelson to meet the special needs of women,

children and teens in gaining access to the health care system?

A: In her testimony, Ms. Brown listed six goals for health care
reform. My reading of the criteria which Dr. Nelson provided in
his testimony are that they are essentially the same as Ms.
Brown's. The one significant difference is that Dr. Nelson gave
as an additional criteria, "that plans incorporate consumer-
oriented administrative policies and procedures that assure
appropriate quality, utilization, efficacy and cost efficiency."
Obviously, the whole purpose of our consumer choice health care
reform proposal is to create a health system that provides

power ful incentives for the maximum responsiveness to consumer

needs and preferences.

ST GO ANEELLL S
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Because Dr. Nelson's other criteria are very similar to Ms.
Brown's goals, in the interest of clarity and brevity I will
simply restate each of Ms. Brown's goals, followed by statements

as to how I believe our proposal relates to each goal.

Goal #1: All children and pregnant women have continuous

access to health insurance.

Response: Our proposal is designed to provided universal,
continuous coverage through the private purchase of health
insurance and medical care with the support of targeted tax
relief, combined with the continuation, in existing or modified
form.of publicly financed health care ;fograms for the most

e
disadvantaged members of society.

Goal #2: Coverage is provided for a continuum of services
that emphasize primary and preventive care and includes the
diagnosis and management of a variety of diseases and conditions,

as well as specialized care to handle complex health problems.

Response: Unlike other proposals, ours does not specify in
great detail the coverage health insurance policies must contain.
This is because we believe that the real goal of health care
financing policy should be to ensure affordable access to needed

medical care -- not just health insurance. Health insurance is

simply one means of paying for medical care. In some
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circumstances, it is the preferable means. But in other

circumstances, buying medical care directly is the preferable

means.

Therefore, our proposals seeks through tax relief to
encourage the purchase of both medical care and health insurance.
Furthermore, by targeting more generous tax relief to those with
lower incomes and/or higher health expenses, our proposal seeks
to ensure that the disadvantaged will be able to afford the same
access to medical care and health insurance as the rest of

society.

Beyond a basic requirement to obtain catas “-ophic coverage,
our proposal leaves decisions about how, from whom, and in what
combination, people purchase health insurance and medical
services up to individuals and families to decide for themselves.
We believe that it is impossible for anyone, ourselves included,
to design an ideal, detailed, one~size-fits-all package, that
effectively meets all the varying needs and desires of millions

of individuals and families.

Individuals and families are the ones best able to make
these decisions for themselves and have the greatest, natural
interest in obtaining the package of care and insurance which
best suits their own circumstances. & proposal such as ours will

allow many different people to obtain many different “bestW
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solutions, while ensuring that they are encouraged to purchase

medical care and health insurance and have the means to buy what

they need or prefer.

Furthermore, as I noted in my written testimony, there are
several reasons why I believe our proposal offers the strongest
incentives of any for individuals and families to obtain, and
insurers and medical providers to offer, preventive and p ‘maxy

care health services.

Goal #3: Health services are provided by qualified
providers in a wide variety of settings that are effective in

caring for children and pregnant women, especially the medically

underserved. Similarly, the number and diversity of qualified
providers offering services to this population are increased,
particuiarly for those who are poor, high risk, or living in

inner-city or isolated rural areas.

Response: One of the principle effects of our proposal
would be to increase the health care purchasing power of the
disadvantaged. Such policies, I pelieve, will serve to
substantially reverse the trend of providers avoiding low-income
individuals or areas because they cannot obtain adequate

reimbursement for their services.

~ e '

Q

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC




Q

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

215

However, there will likely continue to be a need for
government programs to target even more assistance to underserved
areas. There is also a need for reforming major programs like

Medicaid, which currently has, simultaneously, some of the

highest per-capita costs and the worst service delivery record

and provider reimbursements.

I believe the reforms we have proposed for the basic health
system would, over time, serve to substantially reduce the costs
of medical care and health insurance while simultaneously
improving quality and benefit. This is because under our
proposed reforms consumers would be rewarded with more money in
their pockets for seeking better quality and benefits at lower
cost, while those providers and insurers who offer better quality
and benefit at lower cost would be rewarded with more business.
The resulting system-wide improvements would make it much easier,
both fiscally and administratively, for governments to improve
publicly financed health programs for the most disadvantaged

members of society.

Specific reforms of public health care programs could easily
be included as part of a legislative package centered on our
proposed reforms, or could be undertaken at a later date, or
more likely, both. I am currently working on developing some

Medicaid reform proposals, and we would be willing to add to our
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package specific reform proposals suggested by others. We are

simply looking for what is likely to be most effective.

Furthermore, it may prove desirable to increase government
funding for one or more targeted health programs. If that is the
case, there are three options. First, reduce funding for some
non-essential, non-health programs. Second, increase funding of
certain health care programs at the expense of others. Third,
increase taxes. I would find the first option the most desirable

and the third option the least desirable. If it is a question of

finding budget savings to offset expanded funding of health

programs, I would be glad to provide the Committee with the
numerous and detailed budget savings identified by my colleagues
at The Heritage Foundation and described in the Foundation's

publications on federal budget policy.

Goal #4: The future role of existing government grant
programs in maternal and child health is explicitly considered in
reforming the health care system, with regard to both the
personal health services supported by these grant programs and

to their planning, evaluation, and training functions.

Response: My response to this goal is essentially the sane

as my response to goal three above.
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Goal #5: Cost management measures accommodate the special

needs of children and pregnant women.

Response: As noted in my written testimony, I believe our
proposal offers powerful incentives for primary and preventive
health care. Furthermore, once consumers are able to pocket any
savings on their medical care and health insurance, they will
quickly find sound managed care programs and cost management
measures which help them stay healthy or increase quality and
benefit, to be good value -- and will choose to purchase them.
However, consumers will have a natural incentive to shun policies
whose cost management measures simply consist of placing
obstacles in the path of policyholders seeking treatment or

benefits.

As I noted in my oral testimony, one of the effects of a
consumer-driven system will be to, “turn manage care into a
system for helping people stay healthy, as opposed to what it has

now become, as Ms. Brown pointed out, a demand control tool." As

evidence in support of this contention, I would point to the fact

that federal workers, who under FEHBP can pocket the savings from

choosing a less expensive plan, voluntarily enroll in managed
care plans at twice the rate that private sector workers are

forced into managed care plans by their employers.

£
r
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Goal #6: The administrative complexity of the health care
system is substantially reduced from the perspective of both

providers and consumers.

Response: Consumers and prcoviders have a natural aversion
to administrative complexity. Therefore, in a consumer-driven
market, consumers would exert powerlal pressure on insurers to
reduce such complexity. At the same time, to attract individual
policyholders, insurers would want to be able to offer
policyholders automatic acceptance of their insurance by the best
providers. But those providers will likely demand administrative
simplicity as a condition of establishing closer relationships

with insurers.

as I mentioned in my oral testimony, I conducted extensive
interviews last year with executives of British private health
insurance companies, who sell almost exclusively individual
policies. One thing that made a significant impression on me in
those interviews when we discussed the terms of their coverage,
was their clearly expressed aversion to having, "to much fine
print" in their policies. They were afraid that if they made
their policies too complex they would induce their policyholders
to switch coverage to insurers offering simpler policies. 1
think we all want to see the day when American health insurers

exhibit the same attitude.
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May 21, 1992 TRPHOME 101 726-7983

Sarah S. Brown, Senior Study Director
National Forum on the Future of
Children and Families

Institute of Medicine
2101 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
washington, DC 20418

Dear Ms. Brown:

I want to express my personal appreciation to you for appearing
before the Select Committee on Children, Youth, and Families at
our hearing, "Health Care Reform: How Do Women, Children, and
Teens Fare?," on May 2, 1992. Your testimony was important to
the work of the Committee.

The Committee is now in the process of preparing the transcript
for printing. It would be helpful if you would go over the
enclosed copy of your remirks to assure that they are accurate,
and return the transcript by Monday, June 1, with any necessary
corrections.

In addition, I would apprecizte a response in writing to the
following questions for incavsion in the record:

1. Wwhich of the seven proposals that you analyzed comes closest
to meeting the most important goals as you defined them?
Which of the proposals would most reduce the legal and
access barriers to care faced by teens, as identified by Dr.

Johnson?

Do any of the proposals confront the parental

consent or confidentiality issues that affect teens?

2. Which of the seven proposals you analyzed would bkenefit or
ameliorate the problems experienced by each of our families
who testified at the haaring?
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3. In general, which approach ~- a multi-payer or single~payer
system -~ benefits children and teens the most? What are
the advantages or disadvantages to insuring the best
possible care for children with an employer-based system?

4. Does a tax-based or free market-based approach to health
care reform meet any of your goals? Why or why not?

5. In terms of reducing administrative complexity, do any of

the proposals require the development of a single insurance

claim form? Would mandating the development and use of such
a form be useful?

6. Could you provide an up-date on the status and funding of

th ional Health Service Corps?
s/iaﬁ
Mw
PATRICIA SCHROEDER

Chairwoman
Select Committee on Children,
Youth and Families

Enclosure
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF MARGARET FELDMAN, WASHINGTON REPRESENTATIVE, Na-
TIONAL CONFERENCE ON FaAMILY RELATIONS, 1992 COORDINATOR, CONSORTIUM OF
FamiLy ORGANIZATIONS, WASHINGTON, DC

All those listening to the testimony of the families at the Committee’s May 5th hearing
on “Health Care Reform: How Do Women, Children, and Teens Fare” must have been impressed
with the terrible impact of illness on those families. The National Council on Family Relations
and the Consortium of Famify Organizations, are pleased to be able to add our ideas for the
record to bring to the attention of the Committee the need for a special focus on the needs of
families. It is easy to consider the needs of the individuals in the family and stilt overlook and
not make explicit the importance of families in health care. Our belief is that there are
important family needs that need to be addressed above and beyond those of individuals.

In addition to ali other criteria for health care reform, we need criteria for
FAMILY FRIENDLY HEALTH CARE.

The Consortium of Family Qrganizations,(CQFQ), is composed of the American Association for
Marriage and Family Therapy, the American Home Economics Association, Family Resource
Coalition, Family Service America, and the National Council on Family Relations. As a group,
our five organizations comprise nearly 50,000 family professionals working with families n
every state of the Union and Canada, faculty members in every major university in the nation,
nearly 300 family agencies and more than 2000 family resource programs providing services
to miilions of families annually, and more than 10,000 volunteer board members.

COFO is nonpartisan and nonsectarian and is involved with families of all ethnic groups.
While agreeing that the child-rearing stage of family life is of critical importance. COFO's
broad family focus includes refationships between members of different generations and
relatives who do not live in the sarne household.

COEQ has four main goals:

1. Yo raise policymakers awareness of the diversity and complexity of family (ife and of the
myriad ways in which govemment and institutions positively and negatively impact upon
families throughout the life cycle.

2. To promote the family unit as a central focus of data collection, research, policy analysis and
program evaluation.

3. To monitor and assess the impact of proposed legisfation and executive actions on famiiies and
family life.

4. To encourage informed debate about governmental and institutional reforms needed to ensure
a family focus in policymaking.

It is in accord with these goals that we are presenting this document for the record in
regard to the national health care reform debate. Just as it is important to hear from doctors and
insurers, we feel it is important for policy makers to hear from consumers. However, most
frequently consumers are defined as individuals. In this national debate on health care it is-
crucial that families should be given a central position because it is in families that people are
shaped and supported in their hezith behaviors, cared for in their iliesses, and at times.

'
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subjected to aversive influences which require intervention by medical, mentat health, and
social services professionais.

PLACE OF FAMILIES IN A NATIONAL HEALTH CARE PROGRAM

The Department of Health and Human Services, after a three year period of conferences
and preliminary work, set forth its goals for the nation in a 1991 publication, Heaithy People
2000. The goals are: “to increase the span of healthy life for Americans, reduce health
disparities among Americans, and achieve access to i¥eventive services for all Americans”.
While not explicitly emphasizing the place of families, the book does cite the family as “the
primary context in which health promoting activities occur and is therefore potentially the
most immediate source of health-related support and education for the individual.™

See our Rationale for FAMILY FRIENDLY HEALTH CARE

But prevention and healthy living cannot do it all. Disease and disability also occur and
families have to tum to the medical establishment for treatment. At times this becomes an
overwhelming task, recogmzed in Heaithy People 2000. “As the burdens of a family increase,
its very spirit is threatened and the need for community support becomes still more crucial,
not only to the well-being of its members but also to its survival.”

Healthy people are the result of a “shared responsibility™. Families, communities,
employers and the government itself must be part of that shared responsibility, as acknowledged
by Healthy People 2000.

We have drawn up 3 set of Preliminary Principles for FAMILY FRIENDLY
HEALTH CARE which includes community responsibility.

At a 1991 Nationai Center for Health Statistics conference called to discuss the HHS
goals, Thomas L. Campbell.M.D., an NCFR member from the University of Rochester School of
Medicine delivered a paper entitled, “The Role of the Family in Meeting the Nation's Health
Objectives™. He points out that almost every area discussed in this report is either a family
activity or strongly influenced by the family: heath promotion, including the negative behaviors
of violence in the family; health protection, including injuries and oral health: and preventive
services, which involve maternal and infant heaith, cancer, HIV and STD infections and
immunizations.

Professor Campbell writes that families are important because of two “pathways” or
“mechanisms” which effect health. The first is the behavioral, and the second is the psycho-
social.

In the behavioral aspects of daily living, from family modeling and teaching the
behaviors of nutrition, smoking, drinking and exercise are ail learned and maintained. Very
negative behaviors of violence and punitiveness are also learned. For healthy behavior, the best
way to get change and compliance to a regimen is to have family participation and support.

The qualities of family relationships, the psycho-social aspects, can have a physiologic
effect on the immune system, on depression, and seif-reported poor heaith. Other effects may
be shown by future research. A family centered physician and/or health care program may be
especially valuable in forestalling the onset of diseases to which people have a predisposition,
promoting compliance which will lead to optimum recovery and in identifying and getting help
for family violence.

Health also affects the quality of relationships. When one child or adult needs excessive
medical attention, tensions arise in famities which may lead to jealousy among siblings, by
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children against the adult, or may actually lead to divorce as spousal tensions and disagreements
become very severe.

Since the hearing was addressed to the needs of women, children and teens, each expert
witness property focused on their particular segment of health care need. Our concern is that
focus only on the individual segments of women and children, adolescents, and, in another
hearing, of older people. may cause us to lose sight of the fact that the family must also be
addressed as a System. Our view is to consider “families” to be dynamic, interactive systems

Families are dynamic interactive systems consisting of all ages and compositions, not
only mothers or parents and their children. Families are also composed of adults who support
each other as spouses, committed partners, siblings and all those relatives and non-relatives
who care for and support others of all generations. In a system, what effects one effects all; the
infirmities of one has repercussions on alfl. An infectious disease suffered by one may spread to
others and mental or emotional conflict and distress can seriously disorganize a family.

Services need to be addressed to the system needs of the family. Mental health services
and counseling are an integral part of any comprehensive program. These services must be
financially available as needed.

FAMILY FRIENDLY HEALTH CARE must include mental health services and
explicit inclusion of families in the treatment pian and financial arrangements.

DEFINITION OF FAMILIES.

Given the complexities of families today, consisting of many contractions and expansions
of the traditional family through single parent families to blended families, multigenerational
and intentional families, it becomes necessary to deveiop new definitions.

Today’s families are pluraiistic, consisting of a wide variety of forms. Professor
William Dougherty in a recent Psychology Today article on the new Pluralistic Family,
describes what he calls the new family ethic which should emerge. This ethic includes
commitiment, caring,and community from the old ethic, but adds equality, and diversity.

Commitment and care are still considered by many to be the essentiaf characteristics of
family life, but Professor Dougherty thinks that our society has moved away from a national
consensus on the importance of community. Families have to be part of the community and the
comrmunity has to take some responsibility for the families. FAMILY FRIENDLY HEALTH CARE
is part of this community support.

Many citizens and policy makers cannot accept the diversity of new family forms. These
new forms will be evakiated by whether they provide commitment and care, and community
support will be given to encourage and support these values.

The factor of equality within families is a modemn goak-full personhood for men and
women. This is perhaps the most difficult part of the transition from the traditional family to
the new ethic and is causing the most resistance. To implement this value may take many years
but should be included in our criteria.

Traditionally, and still today, in most families women are primarily responsible for
health care. This ascription of caregiving to women alone rmay have negative consequences for
women and for men. Although many women enjoy being the caregiver, being kooked upon as the
only caregiver has served to keep women in lower paying jobs, given them the reputation of
being unreliable employees since they are the ones called upon for family care, and given them
lower pensions in retirement because of their lower attachment to the work force.

For men, being discouraged from the caregiver role has denied them the opportunity to
experience a major part of life. Fathers who take time to be caregivers to their children find it
very satisfying and those who missed caregiving of children often regret it in later life. Today,
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we find many men who find deep satisfaction in being able to care for their children, wives, and
partners. Men now have joined the caregiving community and their role in caregiving should be
recognized and encouraged in FAMILY FRIENDLY HEALTH CARE.

Women, in their reproductive role are crucial to the health of society and their care is,
and should e, a major focus of FAMILY FRIENDLY HEALTH CARE. We support alt the goals
presented by Dr. Brown and Dr. Nefson. We fee!, however, that attention to male partners needs
to be expanded in the care given in pregnancy and chiid birth.

The health of women as persons has received much less attention than that of men, even
though women are major users of heaith care services. Recent development of 2 women's Health
Care Initiative at NIH and the recently organized Campaign for Women's Health are calling to
attention the special needs of women. We have made use of and adapted the Principles of the
Campaign for Women's Health in our criteria for FAMILY FRIENDLY HEALTH CARE.

The Women’s Campaign calls for actions to address family violence. in 1980, the
National Crime Survey based on telephone interviews estimated 192.000 family assaults
resulting in 39,900 visits to a physician and total health care costs of approximately
$44,393.700. FAMILY FRIENDLY HEALTH CARE should bring attention to the increasing costs
to society and comymunity of the escalating violence in our homes and streets. This is a part of
health care.

The special needs of adolescents were well described at the hearing. The special
interactional problems of adolescents and their parents were clear, showing the need to help
adolescents and their families negotiate the transition to adulthood and self-responsibility as an
integral part of in FAMILY FRIENDLY HEALTH CARE.
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A FAMILY FOCUS FOR HEALTH CARE:
A SET OF PRINCIPLES TO USE IN ASSESSMENT OF

HEALTH CARE REFORM PLANS
RATIONALE for the need for FAMILY FRIENDLY HEALTH CARE.
Families are partners in all forms of heaith care:
Families, ideally, provide the heaith care needed for ali members
Families make arrangements for the professional care needed.
Families carry out the home proceedures recommended by professionals.

Children do not go to get medical care on their own:
Famikes are necessary to make arrangements and take them.

Children do not get immunizations by themseives:
Families are needed to get chiidren to the doctor.

Children do not foliow the doctor's prescription:
Families care for children by followin, e doctor’s prescription.

Children do not arrive at school without habits of eating and caring:
Families have taught them, by modeling or instructing them.

Adolescents’ use of medical care is strongly influenced by their family relationships.

Spouses who become infirm or sick who cannot care for themselves usually tumn to:
Their families: Wives and husbands, spouses, and other relatives care for each other.

Older parents who need support and ultimately long term care are often cared for by:
st Families of all generations.

Any NATIONAL HEALTH PLAN must be evaluated, in addition to ali other criteria. by the degree to
which it is FAMILY FRIENDLY.
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PRINCIPLES OF FAMILY FRIENDLY HEALTH CARE:

These principles were designed to supplement, not replicate or repeat other health care
reform principles developed by other groups which define the need for universal. accessible.
comprehensive and affordable care for all. We offer these criteria as some additional ways
health care proposals should take the special needs of families into account.

1. Family Friendly Care is FINANCIALLY ACCESSIBLE:

-to all families without worry about famiiy finances.

-with no linkage to employment status and no job-lock. No breadwinner should have to
select a job or give up training in order to get family health care.

-without concern for pre-existing conditions. No parents should have to worry that a
child with serious health problems during childhood will be excluded from
employment in aduithood because of pre-existing condition.

2. Family Friendly Care is AVAILABLE:
' -preferably in the community, for primary care.
, -int one central place for treatment of ali family members so that what is “going
around” is not treated by one doctor for a chuld and another for the adult.

-by public transportation for those without cars, and within reasonable distance.

-at night and weekends when employed family members do not have to lose work time
except for emergencies.

-with some provision for care for a second child when the family is occupied with care
for the first.

3. family Friendly Care INCLUDES:

-primary care

-specialist care

-prevention services including immunizations.

-screening for abnormalities

-glasses and hearing aids and prescription drugs as needed.

-family centered mental health care

4. Famly Friendly Care CONSIDERS FAMILIES AS PARTNERS:

-Families are treated with dignity and their opinions and needs taken into account.

-The special circumstances of rural and farm families, as well as urban families are
considered.

-Services take into account the culture and language of the family.

-Families are given needed information, training , and mentai health support in times of
serious iliness, and the respite necessary during long term care.

5. Family Friendly Care is DEVELOPMENTAL.
. -Includes prenatal care. birth in a supportive environment, and post-natal care.
-Includes outreach.
-Provides age-appropriate care.
-Helps adolescents move to adulthood and take responsibifity for their care.
6. Family Friendly Care is EDUCATIONAL. Families are offered opportunities to
fearn:
-How to foster normal development; physical, intellectual and emotional.
-What 1s normal and what is deviant enough to worry about.
-What to look for to provide correct information for the specialist.
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-What to do to get children ready for school.

-How to make sure their adolescent children, both boys and girls. get the information
they need to successfully negotiate the transition to adulthood.

How to understand the needs and feelings of older members and the family members who
care for them.

-Strategies to cope with the stresses of family living due to unempioyment, financial
strain and family loss.

7. Family Friendly Care provides for a reasonable ratio of PRIMARY CARE

PROVIDERS AND SUBSPECIALIATION PROVIDERS.

8. Family Friendly Care is FOSTERED BY COMMUNITIES AND EMPLOYERS.

-Family and medical leave is essential.

-Employers, public and private, should implement family friendly policies to allow
tamilies to provide for the health needs of children and the elderly.

-Communities should take families into account as they locate and support health care
facilities.

-Services may need to be taken to families.

-Communities take responsibility to find and remedy health hazzards in their area
which make it more difficuit for families, especially those who live in blighted
urban areas.

-Rural areas need health practitioners sympathetic to the stresses of rural living.

9. Family Health Care is often provided by women but all CAREGIVERS NEED
CARE.

-The health of caregivers, both women and men, is necessary to keep the rest of the
family well.

-All health services provided by caregivers in the home should be considered part of
society's work and caregivers should not be penalized in wages or benefits for
family work.

-The special needs of single parent households should be considered.

10. RESEARCH NEEDS INCLUDE:

-document and analyze the effect of families on the health outcome of proceedures.

-develop and evaluate methods for maximizing family support in times of illness.

_further document the impact of family viclence on the health care system. -

-develop and evaluate means of preventing and reducing violence in families.

-assess the value of using practitioners of various levels as promoting family health.

11. TRAINING

-Health care practitioner training should include understanding of families as partners
in health delivery and the operations of family systems.

-Women practitioners at all levels need to be trained and valued in order to promote
equity.

12. ADVOCACY

_Families and their advocates should make the needs of families visable and necessary
for health planning and should lobby as strongly for their needs as other interest
groups.
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